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Directors’ Report

To the Members,

Your Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank (NHB)
and regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

On behalf of the Board of Directors (Board), it is our pleasure to present the 25th Annual Report
along with the Audited Financial Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024
(fiscal 2024).

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

Your Company is a Housing Finance Company (HFC), headquartered in Mumbai with branches
in major cities across India. Your Company is part of the 69-year old ICICI Group. The vision of
your Company is to make the dream of owning a new home come true, for millions of Indians.

The primary business of the Company is to provide a range of home loans and home improvement
loans, office premises loans, home equity loans, loan against property to customers and
construction finance to developers.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The financial performance for fiscal 2024 is summarised in the following table:

X in million

Particulars Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2024 % of change
Net interest income 9,295.9 13,233.1 42.4
Other income 14.1 74.8 430.5
Operating expenses 4,062.6 5,832.8 43.6
Impairment on financial instruments/

write-off (Including fair value changes) 1,775.0 626.1 (64.7)
Profit before tax 3,868.2 7,384.5 90.9
Profit after tax 3,018.2 5,723.2 89.6
Total comprehensive income 4,679.5 6,112.1 30.6

Net interestincome was higher by X3,937.2 million, primarily on account of higher interest income
attributable to growth in loan book and increase in prime lending rate. Operating expenditure
was higher by X 1,770.1 million on account of higher cost in the financial year ended March 31,
2024 due to increase in business operations and expansion of infrastructure facilities in the
current fiscal.

APPROPRIATIONS

The profit after tax for fiscal 2024 was X 5,723.2 million after provision for impairment on financial
instruments/write-off of X 626.1 million, provision for taxes of X 1,661.3 million and all expenses.
The accumulated profit was X9,427.0 million, taking in to account the balance of X5,149.7 million
brought forward from the previous fiscal year and after appropriating the disposable profit as

follows:
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X in million

Particulars Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2024

To Special Reserve (created and
maintained in terms of Section 29 C of
National Housing Bank Act, 1987) 604.0 1,145.0

Dividend paid during the year

- Equity Shares 164.7 300.9

Leaving balance to be carried forward to
the next year 5,149.7 9,427.0

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised share capital of the Company is X24,000,000,000/- (X24,000.0 million) divided
into 2,385,000,000 equity shares having a face value of X 10/- per equity share and 15,000,000
preference shares having a face value of X 10/- per preference share. The paid up share capital
of the Company at the end of the year was X12,035,278,700/-(X12,035.3 million) divided into
1,203,527,870 equity shares having a face value of X 10/- per equity share.

Changes during the year:

During the financial year under review, there were no changes in the authorized and paid up
share capital of the Company.

Sweat Equity Shares:

During the financial year under review, the Company has not issued any sweat equity shares to
its employees and therefore the requirement of making disclosure under Rule 8(13) of Companies
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP):

The Company does not have a designated ESOP Plan for its employees and therefore the
requirement of making disclosure under Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have recommended a final dividend of X0.50 per equity share (fiscal 2023:
X0.25 per equity share). The final dividend is subject to the approval of the Members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your Company has a Dividend Payout Policy as a matter of
good corporate governance for bringing transparency in the matter of declaration of dividend
and to protect the interest of investors. The payment of final dividend is in line with the Dividend
Payout Policy of the Company and in compliance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Company expanded its footprint in deeper geographics and opened 18 branches during
fiscal 2024 and has pan-India presence with 216 brances and offices at March 31, 2024 as
compared to 200 branches at March 31, 2023. The employee strength stood at 4,483 at March
31, 2024 compared to 2,751 at March 31, 2023. The Company increased its channel partner
network during fiscal 2024, specifically focused on enhancing synergy with ICICI Bank through
its branches and Central Processing Centres (CPC) network and initiated efforts to establish a
developer ecosystem model for sourcing loans.

The Company capitalised on its investments made over the years as the disbursements during
fiscal 2024 increased by ~46% y-o-y to X130.26 billion as compared to X89.20 billion in fiscal
2023. During fiscal 2024, the Company assigned loans amounting to X42.88 billion compared to
X24.03 billion last fiscal. Accordingly, total Assets Under Management (AUM) grew by 35.4% to
X298.50 billion at March 31, 2024.

The Company continued to focus on improving its asset quality in fiscal 2024 by putting
comprehensive efforts on collection through various means including legal enforcements and
auction of repossessed assets. These steps along with technical write off of stressed assets in
deeper buckets helped improve the gross NPA ratio to 1.7% at March 31, 2024 as compared to
3.1% at March 31, 2023.

The Company during the fiscal 2024 initiated sourcing through comprehensive loan origination
system (LOS) on pilot basis in certain branches of the country and plans to go-live during the
upcoming fiscal across all branches pan-India. This shall help the Company achieve operational
efficiency and reduce turnaround time and manual interventions.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
from the end of fiscal 2024 and the date of the report.

CHANGE OF NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the fiscal 2024.
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the Company’s going concern status and future operations.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENT

Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the provisions of Section
186 of the Act, except sub-section (1), do not apply to a loan made, guarantee given, security
provided or investment made by a housing finance company in the ordinary course of business.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of the Company as at March 31, 2024, comprises of six Directors consisting of three
Non-Executive Independent Directors, the Managing Director & CEO and two Non-Executive

Directors.

The Directors of the Company are:

Sr. No. | Name of the Director Designation DIN
1 Rakesh Jhat Non-Executive Director and Chairman 00042075
2 S. Santhanakrishnan | Non-executive Independent Director 00032049
3 G. Gopalakrishna Non-executive Independent Director 06407040
4 Sandhya Gadkari Nf)n-executlve Independent Woman 02005378
Sharma Director
Atul Arora Non-Executive Director 01999097
Vineeta Rajadhyaksha | Managing Director & CEO 10483840

1. Rakesh Jha (DIN: 00042075) was appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of the
Company effective from January 14, 2024.

Changes in the Directorship during the financial year:

Appointment/ Date of
Sr. No. Nan_1e of the DIN Cessation/ Appomtl_nent/ Designation
Director . Cessation/
Retirement .
Retirement
1 Atul Arora 01999097 | Appointment | July 25, 2023 Non-Executive
Director
2 Sanjay Singhvi 09317585 | Cessation July 25,2023 Non-Executive
Director
3 Zeenat Hamirani | 09851630 | Cessation November 29, |Non-Executive
2023 Woman Director
4 Sandhya Gadkari [ 02005378 | Appointment | January 13, Non-Executive
Sharma 2024 Independent
Woman Director
5 Vinod Kumar 02591373 | Retirement January 17, Non-Executive
Dhall 2024 Independent
Director
6 Anirudh Kamani |[07678378 | Early February 16, Managing Director
Retirement 2024 & CEO
7 Vineeta 10483840 | Appointment |February 16, Managing Director
Rajadhyaksha 2024 & CEO
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Thelndependent Directors have confirmed that they satisfy the criteria prescribed for Independent
Directors as stipulated in the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR Regulations), which have been relied upon by the Company and
were placed at the Board Meeting held on April 06, 2024. The names of all the Independent
Directors of the Company have been included in the Independent Directors databank maintained
by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA). None of the Directors have any pecuniary relationship
or transactions with the Company. None of the Directors of the Company are related to each
other. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in
terms of Section 164 of the Act and are not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue
of any SEBI order or any other such authority.

Inthe opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the necessary criteria forindependence
as stipulated under the statutes.

The Board has formed the opinion that the Independent Directors have requisite expertise and
experience required by the Company based on their skills, knowledge and competencies.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Rakesh Jha, Non-Execuitve Director and
Chairman, retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

APPOINTMENT AND CESSATION OF DIRECTORS

During the fiscal, Sanjay Singhvi (DIN: 09317585) ceased to be Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director of the Company effective from close of business hours of July 25, 2023 on account
of withdrawal of his nomination by ICICI Bank Limited and Atul Arora (DIN: 01999097) was
appointed as Additional Non-Executive Non-Independent Director effective from July 25,
2023. Further, Atul Arora (DIN: 01999097) was appointed as Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director of the Company in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Members of the Company
convened on October 18, 2023.

During the fiscal, Zeenat Hamirani (DIN: 09851630) ceased to be Non-Executive Woman Director
of the Company effective from close of business hours of November 29, 2023 on account of
withdrawal of her nomination by ICICI Bank Limited.

During the fiscal, Sandhya Gadkari Sharma (DIN: 02005378), was appointed as Additional
Non-Executive Independent Woman Director effective from January 13, 2024 for first term of
five years from January 13, 2024 to January 12, 2029 and further appointed as Non-Executive
Independent Woman Director of the Company in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the
Company convened on January 16, 2024. Further, G. Gopalakrishna (DIN: 06407040) was re-
appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for second term of five years
commencing from January 16, 2024 to January 15, 2029 in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
of the Members of the Company convened on January 16, 2024.
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During the fiscal, Vinod Kumar Dhall (DIN: 02591373) ceased to be Non-Executive Chairman
of the Board of the Company effective from close of business hours of January 13, 2024 and
Rakesh Jha (DIN: 00042075) was appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of the
Company with effect from January 14, 2024. Further, Vinod Kumar Dhall retired as a Non-
Executive Independent Director of the Company effective from January 17, 2024.

During the fiscal, Anirudh Kamani (DIN: 07678378) ceased to be Managing Director & CEO
of the Company effective from February 16, 2024 on account of early retirement and Vineeta
Rajadhyaksha (DIN: 10483840) was appointed as Managing Director & CEO of the Company
effective from February 16, 2024.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the fiscal, Anirudh Kamani (DIN: 07678378) ceased to be Managing Director & CEO
of the Company effective from February 16, 2024 on account of early retirement and Vineeta
Rajadhyaksha (DIN: 10483840) was appointed as Managing Director & CEO of the Company
effective from February 16, 2024.

During the fiscal, Vikrant Gandhi ceased to be Chief Financial Officer (CFO) effective from close
of business hours of January 23, 2024 and Shyamsunder Tailor was appointed as CFO of the
Company effective from January 24, 2024.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, Vineeta Rajadhyaksha (Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer), Shyamsunder Tailor (Chief Financial Officer) and Priyanka Shetty
(Company Secretary) are Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

RBI on April 27, 2021 issued guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/
Statutory Auditors (SAs) for Banks and NBFCs (including HFCs) (RBI Guidelines). As per the
requirement of the said guidelines, the Company can appoint Statutory Auditors for a continuous
period of maximum three years, subject to the firms satisfying the eligibility norms on a continuous
basis. Additionally, the said guidelines also require NBFCs/HFCs with asset size of X150.00
billion and above at March 31, 2021 to appoint joint auditors for audit of their accounts. The
said guidelines were applicable for the first time to NBFCs (including HFCs) and hence, NBFCs/
HFCs were given flexibility to adopt these guidelines from second half of fiscal 2022, in order to
ensure that there is no disruption.

Further, as per the aforesaid RBI guidelines and pursuant to Section 139 of the Act and Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 and as recommended by the Audit Committee and the Board,
the shareholders of the Company at its EGM held on July 30, 2021 appointed M/s. Singhi &
Co. (Firm Registration no. 302049E) and M/s. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., (Firm Registration No.
106655W), Chartered Accountants, as Joint Statutory auditors with effect from July 30, 2021
till the conclusion of 23rd AGM for the fiscal 2022. The auditors meet the eligibility criteria as
required under the Act.

On recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of the Company proposed the

Annual Report 2023-24 ﬁ



Directors’ Report

re-appointment of M/s Singhi & Co. (Firm Registration no. 302049E) and M/s Mukund M. Chitale
& Co., (Firm Registration No. 106655W), Chartered Accountants, as Joint Statutory auditors of
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 23 AGM till the conclusion of 25" AGM
of the Company.

As per the applicable laws and regulations, the term of three years of the existing joint statutory
auditors of the Company is over.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on April 20, 2024 have recommended
the appointment of M/s. Borkar & Muzumdar (Firm Registration no. 101569W) and M/s.
Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP (Firm Registration No. 104607W/LLP W100166) as Joint Statuory
Auditors of the Company to hold office of the Company from 25% AGM to 26" AGM to be held for
FY2025, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in the ensuing general meeting.

Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to schedules is enclosed to this
report. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification. The Notes to Accounts referred
to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. Parikh & Associates, Company Secretaries were
appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for FY2024 in the meeting of the Board
of Directors of the Company held on October 13, 2023. The secretarial auditors have submitted
their report for fiscal 2024 and the report does not contain any qualification. The report of the
Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure 1 to this report.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for fiscal 2024 is available on the website of the
Company at www.icicihfc.com and on the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

In terms of Section 138 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company
has a dedicated team of professionals presided by the Head-Internal Auditor to conduct the
internal audit of the functions and activities of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

In terms of provisions of Section 118 of the Act, the Company is in compliance with Secretarial
Standards on Meetings of the Board and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and as amended from time to time.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

In terms of the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements (LODR) Regulations,
the certification by the Managing Director & CEO and Chief Financial Officer on the financial
statements and internal controls relating to financial reporting has been obtained.
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SUCCESION PLANNING

In compliance with the Regulation 17 of SEBI LODR regulations and other applicable regulations
and on recommendation of the Board Governance Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Board had put in place a succession planning policy for ascertaining the need for filling positions
in the Board, senior management and other critical positions. It also involves identification of next
generation for the above roles, assessment of their potential and developing them as potential
successors for key leadership roles in the organization.

PERSONNEL
The Company had 4,483 employees at March 31, 2024.

The disclosure as required in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
for fiscal 2024 is given in Annexure 2.

The statement containing details of employees as required in terms of Section 197 of the Actread
with Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure 2A and forms part of this report. In terms of Section
136(1) of the Act, the Annual Report and the financial statements are being sent to the Members
excluding Annexure 2A. The said Annexure is available for inspection at the Corporate Office
of the Company. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of the Annexure may write to the
Company Secretary of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal controls and processes in place with respect to its financial
statements, which provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements. These controls and processes are implemented
through various policies, procedures and certifications, which are commensurate with the size
and nature of the Company’s business. The processes and controls are reviewed periodically.
The Company has a mechanism of testing the controls at regular intervals for their design and
operating effectiveness to ascertain the reliability and authenticity of financial information.

These systems provide reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and operational
information, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company,
prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and
ensuring compliance with the Company’s policies.

REGULATORY & STATUTORY COMPLIANCES

In August 2019, the Central Government conferred the powers for regulation of HFCs to RBI
from NHB. NHB continues to carry out the function of supervision of HFCs. On February 17,
2021, RBI issued Master Direction - NBFC - HFC (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (RBI HFC
Directions). Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, which is applicable for HFCs, were issued by RBI on October
19, 2023. These directions came into force with immediate effect as amended/updated from

time to time.
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During fiscal 2024, the RBI/NHB had issued various circulars, notifications, directions and
guidelines to HFCs, the updates of which were duly placed before the Board at regular intervals.
The Company had put in place adequate systems and processes in place to ensure compliance
with RBI HFC Directions and other applicable directions/guidelines issued by RBI/NHB from time
to time.

Your Company is also in compliance with the provisions of SEBI LODR Regulations to the extent
applicabletoitand subsequentamendments thereof and other applicable statutory requirements.

Your Company has registered itself on BSE bond platform to avail the facility of Electronic Bidding
Platform (EBP) to issue debt securities/non-convertible debentures on a private placement basis.

Your Company has put in place policy and processes to ensure adherence to the requirement of
Fair Practices Code, Know Your Customers (KYC) and Anti Money Laundering (AML) norms as
per the regulatory guidelines.

Your Company is registered with Legal Entity Identifier (LEl) India Limited (wholly owned
subsidiary of Clearing Corporation of India Limited) and has obtained the LEI code
335800GH1L1U8BHKSRGO5. The same has a validity period of one year upto April 08, 2025.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has put in place a Whistleblower Policy through which it has set-up a mechanism
that enables employees or stakeholder to report about potentially illegal and/or unacceptable
practices. It seeks to enable employees to report such practices without fear of victimisation and
reprisal. The Whistleblower Policy aims to administer good governance practices in the Company
and to ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and addressed. The Whistleblower Policy
is available on the website of the Company at https://www.icicihfc.com/policies.

The purpose of the Whistleblower Policy is to enable a person who observes an unethical practice
(whether or not a violation of law) to approach the Head-Internal Audit without necessarily
informing his supervisors. The Whistleblower Policy governs reporting and investigation of
allegations of suspected improper activities.

Employees of the Company are encouraged to use guidance provided in the Whistleblower Policy
for reporting all alleged or suspected improper activities. In all instances, the Company retains
the right to determine when circumstances warrant an investigation and in conformity with the
Whistleblower Policy and applicable laws and regulations, the appropriate investigative process
is employed. Strict confidentiality is maintained with regard to the identity of the complainant
both during and postinvestigation, barring disclosure of identity, if required, under applicable law.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to conservation of
energy and technology absorption do not apply to the Company. The Company uses information
technology extensively in its operations.
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During fiscal 2024, the Company has not earned/received any foreign exchange (fiscal 2023: Nil)
and the total foreign exchange used was USD NIL million.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The transactions between the Company and its related parties, during fiscal 2024, were in the
ordinary course of business and based on the principles of arm’s length. The Company has a
Board approved policy on related party transactions, which has been disclosed on the website
of the Company at https:/www.icicihfc.com/policies. The details of related party transactions
under Section 188 (1) of the Act required to be disclosed under Form AOC-2 pursuant to Section
134 (3) of the Act and material related party transactions at an aggregate level for fiscal 2024
are given in Annexure 3.

ARM’S LENGTH PRINCIPLES

The transactions between the Company and its group companies are to be undertaken on an

arm’s length basis. The following broad principles shall be adhered to at the time of undertaking

such transactions:

a. All transactions shall have the substantive characteristics of a transaction between
independent parties

b. The transactions shall be entered into in a need based manner and shall be based on principle
of impartiality

c. Thepricingforspecifictransactions shall be atmarketrelated rates and would be benchmarked
against comparable quotes for similar transactions in the market between independent
parties

d. The transactions shall comply with all statutory/regulatory guidelines, internal policy norms
and procedures (including appropriate documentation) applicable to such transactions, if
engaged with independent parties with similar background.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return at March 31,
2024 is available on the Company’s website on https://www.icicihfc.com/investors.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company is exposed to various kinds of risks like credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and
operational risk arising out of business operations, which includes mortgage lending, construction
finance, gold loan liability management etc. In order to mitigate these risks, a risk management
policy is in place under the supervision of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the Company
and the same has been approved by the Board of the Company. The Company has laid down
appropriate systems to facilitate reporting pertaining to key risks to the Board of Directors,
Board committees and the senior management. The Company has adopted the Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) approach to look at entity level risks in a holistic way and evaluate the same
at an organizational level. The broad strategic approach is to identify and assess core perceived
risks and put in place robust strategies and mitigation plans to counter the core perceived risks
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faced by an organization. As part of the ERM, the Company has formulated a Risk Appetite
Statement. The Risk Appetite Statement provides a comprehensive summary of Risk Appetite
parameters guiding the operations of the Company. Its main purpose is to facilitate concise
presentation and informed periodic review of the amount of risk the Company is prepared to
take in its key activities.

The Company has a robust credit risk management framework implemented through various
policies, manuals and guidelines. The Company has implemented a pre and post disbursement
credit risk control system ensuring effective risk analysis and measurement, periodic monitoring
and reporting based on various parameters and adherence to amendments in policy changes.
The delegation structure for approval of credit limits is approved by the Board of Directors. All
credit proposals other than retail loans and certain other specified products are rated as per
the limit prescribed under the policy by the risk management team prior to consideration at the
appropriate delegated authority. Further, retail loans having exposure of more than X 100.0
million for entities other than individuals are also rated as per internal norms.

The Company reviews its portfolio through Early Warning Mechanism (EWM) covering Non starter
/early mortality reports, portfolio dashboard, product / segment reporting etc. The Company
is taking the following additional measures to ensure the effectiveness of risk management,
maintaining a strong, diversified and resilient portfolio and ensuring that areas of growth are
well controlled and sustainable:

e For developer loans, stringent escrow management, field monitoring and engagement with
promoters

e Micro segment policies for enabling effective sourcing

e Branch level portfolio monitoring and intervention

The Company is susceptible to market-related risks such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
fundingrisk. Liquidity risk arises when there is an asset-liability mismatch caused by the difference
in the maturity profile of assets and liabilities. The risk may arise when the Company may not
able to generate sufficient cash flow at reasonable cost to meet expected and/or unexpected
claims. The Company is exposed to liquidity risk in view of the fact that the assets generated by
the Company are in a tenor band of seven to eight years against liability tenor of three to five
years.

The Company actively monitors the liquidity position. Moreover, various triggers are identified and
monitored (as per liquidity contingency plan) regularly to ensure that the Company can meet all
the requirements of borrowers and lenders while being able to consider investment opportunities
as they arise. Liquidity risk is monitored and reported to the senior management of the Company
and the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) on an ongoing basis. The Company
seeks diverse sources of finances to facilitate flexibility in meeting funding requirements. The
Company’s operations are principally funded by borrowings from capital markets, banks, fixed
deposits, NHB refinance and financial institutions.

The Company has observed no negative impact on liquidity during the fiscal year. The Company
continues to maintain ample liquidity and monitor liquidity positions as a part of the Liquidity
Contingency Plan.
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Market risk of the investments of the Company is governed by the Investment Policy and Risk
Management Policy. The Investment Policy has established limits for various risk metrics, which
helps to control the market risk. It describes investment functions, incorporating various limits
approved for investment, in line with regulations of the Reserve Bank of India.

Additionally, the Risk Management group also analyses the results of various stress testing
scenarios from the perspective of ensuring the Company’s capital adequacy under any
unfavorable/unforeseen market circumstances and ensuring timely actions, wherever required,
towards avoidance of situation that could threaten the financial stability of the Company.

The Operational Risk Management team identifies and monitors the operational risks in various
products as well as processes of the Company. It ensures that major risks are covered or mitigated
in order to avoid or minimize operational risk loss.

The operations of the Company are periodically subject to Internal Audit/Concurrent Audit, as
per the annual risk based audit plan duly approved by the Audit Committee, to ensure that the
business operations of the Company are being undertaken as per the Board approved policies
and risk management framework.

Over the last few years, the manifold increase in dependence on technology to run critical
businesses has also led to the manifestation of newer risks and threats pertaining to the area
of cyber security. In order to effectively manage cyber security and at the same time to ensure
compliance with regulatory guideline, the Company has developed a comprehensive Cyber
Security Policy. The Policy lays down a comprehensive set of measures and practices that would
ensure protection of the Company’s cyberspace against cyber-attacks, threats and vulnerabilities.

The IT Risk (including cyber security risk) is guided by the Information Technology Strategy
Committee (ITSC) of the Company. The core IT systems of the Company is presently hosted
at ICICI Bank datacenter and the ICICI Group follows Information Security Risk Management
framework for risk assessment of these IT systems. The Company ensures awareness of cyber
security among all employees by periodic trainings and guidance issued through periodic mailers.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS

The Company has in place an evaluation framework for evaluation of the Board, Directors and
Chairman. Your Company has defined a manner of evaluation as per the provisions of the Act
and SEBI LODR Regulations. The Board also carries out an evaluation of the working of the
Audit Committee, Board Governance Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, RiskManagement Committee
and Information Technology Strategy Committee. The evaluation of the Committees is based on
the assessment of the compliance with the terms of reference of the Committees. The evaluations
for the Directors and the Board were done through circulation of questionnaires for evaluation
of the performance of the Board, the Committees of the Board and the individual Members of
the Board, which assessed the performance of the Board on selected parameters related to
roles, responsibilities and obligations of the Board and functioning of the Committees including
assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
management and the Board that was necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties. The evaluation criteria for the Directors (including Independent Directors)
was based on their participation, contribution and offering guidance to and understanding of
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the areas that were relevant to them in their capacity as Members of the Board. A separate
meeting of Independent directors without the attendance of Non-Independent directors and the
Management team was held during the fiscal as per the provisions of Schedule IV of the Act. In
the opinion of Board, Independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and SEBI
LODR Regulations and are independent of the management.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD

During fiscal 2024, six Board meetings were held. For details of the meetings of the Board,
please refer to the Corporate Governance section.

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with the provisions related to constitution of Internal Complaint
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the SEBI LODR Regulations, the details pertaining to complaints for the fiscal 2024
is given below.

a. number of complaints received/filed during the fiscal: 3
b. number of complaints disposed off during the fiscal: 3
c. number of complaints pending at end of the fiscal: 0

All complaints received during fiscal 2024 have been closed within the applicable turnaround
time of 90 days.

DEPOSITS AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Provisions and schedules pertaining to deposits under the Companies Act, 2013 are exempted.

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTING TO NHB AS PER RBI MASTER DIRECTION

The Company has duly reported 37 fraud cases during FY2024 out of which 14 cases were
detected during FY2023 (and reported within prescribed timelines of NHB) and 23 cases were
detected during FY2024 as per the Master Direction — Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended from time to time and other applicable circular(s)guidelines,
as may be issued, with respect to frauds involving value of 100,000 and above. Of these 37
cases, in 28 cases, frauds were found to be perpetrated by the borrowers and in remaining 9
cases, frauds were committed by outsiders and/or company staff.

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTING AS PER PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134 (3) OF THE ACT,
READ WITH SECTION 143 (12) OF THE ACT

There were no material fraud cases detected and required to be reported during fiscal 2024,
as per the provisions of section 134 (3) read with section 143 (12) of the Act to the regulatory
authorities.
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TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Company filed the necessary form and uploaded the
details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company, as on the date of closure of
financial year (i.e. March 31, 2024) with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

During fiscal 2024, the aggregate matured deposits (including interest accrued) with the
Company, which were unclaimed for more than seven years from the date of maturity of X 0.22
million were transferred to IEPF as required by the Act.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD

The Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of Section 148(1) of the Act.
SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture company within the
meaning of Section 2(87) and 2(6) of the Act and no new subsidiary, associate and joint venture
company was formed during fiscal 2024.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, forms a part of this
Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Philosophy of Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance philosophy encompasses comprehensive compliance
with regulatory and legal requirements, which aims at a high level of business ethics, effective

supervision, and enhancement of value for all stakeholders. The Company promotes a culture of
accountability, transparency and ethical conduct across the Company.
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1. Rakesh Jha was appointed as Non- Executive Chairman of the Board of the Company with
effect from January 14, 2024.

2. Vinod Kumar Dhall ceased to be the Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of the Company
effective from close of business hours of January 13, 2024 and retired as Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company from January 17, 2024.

3. G. Gopalakrishna was re-appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company
for second term of five years commencing from January 16, 2024 to January 15, 2029 in the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Members of the Company convened on January 16,
2024.

4. Sanjay Singhvi ceased to be Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company
effective from close of business hours of July 25, 2023.

5. Atul Arora was appointed as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company
effective from July 25, 2023 and further reqularized as Director effective from October 18,
2023.

6. Zeenat Hamirani ceased to be Non-Executive Woman Director of the Company effective from
close of business hours of November 29, 2023.

7. Sandhya Gadkari Sharma was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent Woman
Director effective from January 13, 2024 and further appointed as Independent Director
effective from January 16, 2024.

8. Anirudh Kamani ceased to be Managing Director & CEO of the Company effective from
February 16, 2024.

9. Vineeta Rajadhyaksha was appointed as Managing Director & CEO of the Company effective
from February 16, 2024.

Details of change in composition of the Board during Fiscal 2024:

Capacity
(i.e., Executive/ Non- Nature of <_:hange
Sr. Executive/ Chairman/ (cessation,
N X Name of Director . appointment/ change Effective date
o Promoter nominee/ in designation)
Independent) ih desig

1 Atul Arora Non-Executive Appointment July 25, 2023
Director

5 Sanjay Singhvi Non-Executive Cessation July 25, 2023
Director

3 Zeenat Hamirani Non-Executive Cessation November 29,
Woman Director 2023

Sandhya Gadkari Non-Execuitve Appointment January 13, 2024

4 Sharma Independent Woman
Director

5 Vinod Kumar Dhall Non-Executive Retirement January 17, 2024
Independent Director

6 Anirudh Kamani Managing Director & | Early Retirement February 16,
CEO 2024

- Vineeta Rajadhyaksha | Managing Director & | Appointment February 16,
CEO 2024
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Details of change in composition of the Board during the Fiscal 2023:

DY | Nature of change
. (cessation,
Sr Non-Executive/ appointment/
: Name of Director Chairman/ - Effective date
No . change in
Promoter nominee/ designation)
Independent)
1 Anup Bagchi Non-Executive Cessation September 17, 2022
Non-Independent
Director
2 Supritha Shetty Non-Executive Cessation January 05, 2023
Non-Independent
Woman Director
3 Rakesh Jha Non-Executive Appointment October 13, 2022
Non-Independent
Director
4 Zeenat Hamirani Non-Executive Appointment January 05, 2023
Non-Independent
Woman Director

During the current financial year, six Board Meetings were held on April 17, 2023, June 16,
2023, July 14, 2023, October 13, 2023, January 13, 2024 and January 23, 2024. The attendance
details of Board Members are given below. The intervening gap between the Board Meetings
was within the period prescribed under the Act.

Disclosure of relationships between directors interest
There were no inter-se relationships between any of the Directors of the Company.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors;
None of the Non-executive Directors hold any equity shares or convertible instruments of the
Company.

Familiarisation Programs

Independent Directors are familiarised with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company
as well as with the nature of the industry and the business model of the Company through
induction programs at the time of their appointment as Directors and through presentations on
economy and industry overview, key regulatory developments, strategy and performance, which
are made to the directors from time to time. The details of the familiarisation programs have
been hosted on the website of the Company at https://www.icicihfc.com/policies.
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Skills/expertise/competence of the Board

As required under Schedule V and other applicable provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations in
the context of the Company’s business activities, the Company has diversity of distinguished
individuals on its Board of Directors with each of the Directors having the requisite core
skills/expertise/competence as well as vast experience and knowledge in one or more of the
various diversified functions and fields namely, banking, finance, business strategy, asset
liability management, regulatory compliances, risk management, corporate governance,
information technology, corporate social responsibility, stakeholder management, banking,
law and governance, agriculture and rural economy, businesss management, corporate law,
accountancy, taxation, branch banking, micro-finance, sales and distribution etc. The Board has
a right blend of dynamism, leadership and experience. The Independent Directors are Members
of the Board of Directors of various reputed companies including listed entities and they provide
their treasured inputs and guidance at the Meetings of the Board which have been of immense
help to the Company in pursuing strategic goals.

As per Section C of the Schedule V of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the details of the core skills/
expertise/competence possessed by the existing directors of the Company is detailed as given
below:

Name of Director Areas of expertise
Rakesh Jha Banking, Finance, Business strategy, Assetliability management
G. Gopalakrishna Regulatory Compliances, Risk Management, Corporate

Governance, Information Technology, Corporate Social
Responsibility, Stakeholder Management, Banking, Law and
Governance

S. Sanathanakrishnan Agriculture and rural economy, Banking, Business management,
Risk management, Finance, Corporate law, Business Strategy,
Accountancy, Law and Governance, Law, Taxation

Sandhya Gadkari Sharma Corporate Governance, Finance, Stakeholder Management,
Banking

Atul Arora Banking, Branch Banking, Finance, Micro Finance, Business
Strategy

Vineeta Rajadhyaksha Branch Banking, Banking, Sales and Distribution

In the opinion of Board, Independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and SEBI
LODR Regulations and are independent of the management.
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Commiittees of the Board

The details of composition of the Board Level Committees and its meetings held are given
below.

a. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides direction to the audit function and monitors the quality of internal
and statutory audit. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee includes the following:

o The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company

o Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process

o Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon

o Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors

. Review with the management, the annual financial statements and the auditors’ report

thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

» matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included
in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013

» changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

» major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management

» significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

» compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

» disclosure of any related party transactions

» modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report

o Review with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval.
o Review with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document /
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter
o Oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial

information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible
and inter-alia focusing primarily on:

» Key changes in accounting policies and practices, if any.

» Compliance with prevailing accounting standards

. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties

o Discuss with statutory auditors, before the audit commences, the nature and scope of
audit as well as have post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern

o Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

o Review with the management, performance of statutory auditors and internal auditors,
the adequacy of internal control systems

o Review the adequacy of internal audit function, reporting structure coverage and

frequency of internal audit
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Discuss with internal auditors, any significant findings and follow up there on
Review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.
Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary
Review and oversee the functioning of Company’s Vigil Mechanism as defined under the
Whistle Blower Policy of the Company

e Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors

e Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding
company in the subsidiary exceeding Rupees One hundred crore or 10% of the asset size
of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments
existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision

e Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders

e To have powers to seek information from any employee, obtain outside legal or other
professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it
considers necessary.

e To undertake all such other matters and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be
required under the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
To exercising oversight of Information Security Audit
To review critical issues highlighted related to IT / information security / cyber security
and provide appropriate direction and guidance to the management

During fiscal 2024, five meetings of the Committee were held on April 17, 2023, July 14, 2023,
October 13, 2023, January 12, 2024 and January 23, 2024.

Sr. Names of Chairman/ Memb?r of Numb_er of
No Members Members Committee meetings
: since attended/held
1 S. Santhanakrishnan Chairman March 20, 2019 5/5
2 Atul Arora? Member July 26, 2023 3/3
3 Sanjay Singhvi? Member January 06, 2023 1/2
4 G. Gopalakrishna?® Member October 17, 2022 4/4
5 Sandhya Gadkari Sharma* Member January 13, 2024 1/1

Appointed as member effective from July 26, 2023.
Ceased to be a member effective from July 26, 2023
Ceased to be a member effective from January 13, 2024.
Appointed as a member effective from January 13, 2024.

PWNPE
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b. Board Governance, Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The constitution of Board Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee was done in
compliance with the requirements of provisions of Section 178 of the Act read with Regulation
19 of SEBI LODR Regulations. The terms of reference of the Committee includes the following:

. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board,
their appointment and removal

. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees

. Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of Independent Director for
their appointment and based on such evaluation, to prepare a description of role and
capabilities required for their appointment as an independent director. To ensure
existence of such capabilities in the person before their recommendation to the Board for
appointment, to also avail the services of an external agency(s) to consider candidates
from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity and to also consider
the time commitments of the candidates for identification of suitable candidates for
appointment as an independent director

o Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the
Board of Directors

. Decide whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of an Independent
Director based on the report of his/her performance evaluation

o Devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors

o Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management (SM) and evaluate performance appraisal of SMP.

. Review the Fit & Proper status of the proposed/existing directors and to ensure no

conflict of interest in appointment of Directors, Key Management Personnel (KMPs) and
senior management

. To oversee the framing, review and implementation of compensation policy

. To work in close coordination with Risk Management Committee (RMC) for effective
alignment between compensation and risks

. To ensure that compensation levels are supported by the need to retain earnings of the

Company and the need to maintain adequate capital based on Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

o To undertake all such other matters and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be
required under the applicable laws, rules and regulations

During fiscal 2024, four meetings of the Committee were held on April 17, 2023, July 14, 2023,

January 13, 2024 and January 23, 2024.
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. Member of Number of
Sr. Chairman . -
No Names of Members /Members Committee meetings
) since attended/held
1 G. Gopalakrishna Chairman March 20, 2019 4/4
2 Vinod Kumar Dhall? Member March 20, 2019 3/3
3 Rakesh Jha Member October 17, 2022 4/4
4 S. Santhanakrishnan? Member January 13, 2024 1/1
1. Ceased to be a member effective from January 13, 2024.
2. Appointed as a member effective from January 13, 2024.
C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

As per section 178 of the Act, read with Regulation 20 of SEBI LODR Regulations, the Company
had duly constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to consider and resolve the
grievances of security holders of the Company. The terms of reference of the Committee are as
follows:

To consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company including

complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report,

non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings,

etc.

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of

various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/

annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company

To undertake all such other matters and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be

required under the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During fiscal 2024, one meeting of the Committee was held on March 20, 2024 and there were
no complaints or pending grievances from the institutional lenders and bond holders of the
Company.

Priyanka Shetty is the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of the Company.
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Sr. Chairman/ Member of Numb_er of
No Names of Members Members Committee since meetings
] attended/held

1 Sanjay Singhvi? Chairman September 17, 2021 0/0

2 S. Santhanakrishnan Member January 23, 2015 0/1

3 Anirudh Kamani? Member November 01, 2017 0/0

4 Vineeta Rajadhyaksha?® Member February 16, 2024 1/1

5 Atul Arora* Chairman July 26, 2023 1/1

1. Ceased to be a chairman effective from July 26, 2023.

2. Ceased to be a member effective from February 16, 2024.

3. Appointed to be a member effective from February 16, 2024.

4 Appointed as a chairman effective from July 26, 2023.

d. Risk Management Committee

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee include the following:

o To delegate monitoring and reviewing of the risk management plan and functions such
as cyber security and various other functions as it may deem fit.
o To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

» A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the
listed entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability
(particularly, Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) related risks), information,
cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee

» Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks
» Business continuity plan

o To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company
o Review and monitor, the implementation of the risk management policies and oversee

its compliance including evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems. To
periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity

o To keep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken

o Review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer

o To have powers to seek information from any employee, obtain outside legal or other

professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it
considers necessary
o Review key risk indicators covering areas such as credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk, foreign exchange risk, operational and outsourcing risks and the limits framework,
including stress test limits for various risks
Monitoring of regulatory and reputation risk
Review the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
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o Review of risks associated with Information Technology (IT)
o Review of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework and Risk Appetite
Framework (RAF)

. Review the Materiality and Risk assessment of outsourced activities
. Review the Annual Compliance Certificate for outsourcing activities
. To undertake all such other matters and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be

required under the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During fiscal 2024, five meetings of the Committee were held on April 14, 2023, June 16, 2023,
July 13, 2023, October 12, 2023 and January 12, 2024.

. Number of
Sr. Chairman/ Member of ! b_e ©
No Names of Members Members Committee since meetings
] attended/held
1 Vinod Kumar Dhall* Member October 17, 2022 5/5
2 S. Santhanakrishnan Chairman May 02, 2020 5/5
3 G. Gopalakrishna? Member January 13, 2024 0/0
4 Zeenat Hamirani? Member January 06, 2023 4/4
5 Atul Arora* Member November 29, 2023 1/1
6 Anirudh Kamani® Member April 17, 2023 4/4
7 Vineeta Rajadhyaksha® Member February 16, 2024 0/0
1. Ceased to be a member effective from January 13, 2024 .
2. Appointed as a member effective from January 13, 2024.
3. Ceased to be a member effective from November 29, 2023.
4, Appointed as a member effective from November 29, 2023.
5. Ceased to be a member effective from February 16, 2024.
6. Appointed as a member effective from February 16, 2024.
e. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As per section 135 of the Act, the Company had duly constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The functions of the Committee includes the following:

Review of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives.

o Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which
shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule
VII of the Act.

o Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities undertaken by
the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Act.

o Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.
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. Reviewing and recommending the annual CSR plan to the Board, making recommenda-
tions to the Board with respect to the CSR initiatives, policies and practices of the ICICI
Group, monitoring the CSR activities, implementation and compliance with the CSR
Policy and reviewing and implementing, if required, any other matter related to CSR
initiatives as recommended/suggested by RBI or any other statutory Authority.

During the fiscal 2024, two meetings of the Committee were held on April 17, 2023 and October

13, 2023.
Sr. Chairman/ Member of Numb_er of
No Names of Members Members Committee since meetings
) attended/held
1 S. Santhanakrishnan? Chairman October 21, 2016 2/2
2 G. Gopalakrishna Member March 20, 2019 2/2
3 Zeenat Hamirani? Member January 06, 2023 2/2
4 Atul Arora® Member November 29, 2023 0/0
5 Sandhya Gadkari Chairperson |January 13, 2024
Sharma* 0/0
6 Vinod Kumar Dhall® Member March 20, 2019 2/2
1. Stepped down as chairman effective from January 13, 2024
2. Ceased to be a member effective from November 29, 2023.
3. Appointed as member effective from November 29, 2023.
4, Appointed as Chairperson effective from January 13, 2024.
5. Ceased to be a member effective from January 13, 2024

Detailed report on CSR activities/initiatives is enclosed as Annexure 5.
f. Management Committee

The Management Committee was duly constituted by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Committee are as follows:

o All credit / investment proposals of ICICI Home Finance Company Ltd (ICICI HFC Ltd.)
with its subsidiaries / companies which use ‘ICICI’ as a part of their name

o Any proposal exceeding the individual and / or group borrower prudential exposure
ceilings, if prescribed by the NHB. However, such proposals for additional exposure,
over and above the prudential exposure ceilings, shall be considered within the
guidelines prescribed by NHB from time to time. Prior to obtaining approval of
Management Committee for such higher exposures, a pre-approval of the proposed
limits to the borrower / borrower group shall be required from the Board.

o All proposals exceeding the exposure limits of COD/ COE would be placed before the MC
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for approval

. Any credit / investment proposal relating to a borrower, rated A or below, which is in
default in payment of simple interest and / or principal or has any other outstanding
financial irregularity to the Company for a period in excess of 60 days

o To approve transfer of loan exposure transactions of any amount with related parties
and non related parties over X2,000.0 million

During fiscal 2024, three meetings of the Committee were held on May 31, 2023 December 22,
2023 and March 14, 2024.

Sr. Chairman/ Member of Numb.er of
No Names of Members Members Committee since Meetings
] attended/held
1 S. Santhanakrishnan Member October 16, 2014 1/3
2 G. Gopalakrishna Member March 20, 2019 3/3
3 Sanjay Singhvi! Member September 17, 2021 0/1
4 Rakesh Jha Member October 17, 2022 1/3
5 Zeenat Hamirani? Member January 06, 2023 1/1
6 Atul Arora?® Member July 26, 2023 1/2
7 Sandhya Gadkari Member January 13, 2024
Sharma* 1/1
Vinod Kumar Dhall® Member January 18, 2019 2/2
Vineeta Rajadhyaksha® Member February 16, 2024
1/1
10 Anirudh Kamani’ Member February 16, 2024 22

Ceased to be a member effective from July 26, 2023.
Ceased to be a member effective from November 29, 2023.
Appointed as a member effective from July 26, 2023.
Appointed as a member effective from January 13, 2024.
Ceased to be a member effective from January 13, 2024.
Appointed as a member effective from February 16, 2024.
Ceased to be a member effective February 16, 2024.

Nouo,wWNE
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g. Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee

Pursuant to the circular issued by NHB on IT Framework for Housing Finance Companies (HFCs),
the Company had duly constituted an Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee, the terms
of reference of which are as follows:

o Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the management has
put an effective strategic planning process in place.

o Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure
that the IT delivers value to the business.

o Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are
acceptable.

. Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to
achieve strategic goals and provide high level direction for sourcing and use of IT
resources.

o Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining Company’s growth and
becoming aware about exposure towards IT risks and controls.

. To recommend to the Board various policies pertaining to IT framework which include

Information Security (IS) Policy, cyber security policy, Information Technology (IT) policy,
Cyber Crisis Management Plan (CCMP), Change Management Policy for implementation
of IT projects, Business Continuity Planning (BCP) detailing various aspects related to
each such policy as well as Risk Management Policy considering the risk associated with
existing and planned IT operations and the risk tolerance.
To ensure that the Company has put an effective IT strategic planning process in place.
To guide in preparation of IT Strategy and ensure that the IT Strategy aligns with the
overall strategy of the RE towards accomplishment of its business objectives.

o To satisfy itself that the IT Governance and Information Security Governance structure
fosters accountability, is effective and efficient, has adequate skilled resources, well
defined objectives and unambiguous responsibilities for each level in the organization.

o To ensure that the Company has put in place processes for assessing and managing IT
and cybersecurity risks
. To ensure that the budgetary allocations for the IT function (including for IT security),

cyber security are commensurate with the RE’s IT maturity, digital depth, threat
environment and industry standards and are utilised in a manner intended for meeting
the stated objectives.

o To review, at least on annual basis, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Business
Continuity Planning and Disaster Recovery Management of the RE.
To oversee progress on Key Projects and critical IT Systems
To review of Technology resilience initiatives, Enterprise Architecture update,
unsupported software version, application downtime incidents and action plans, and key
migrations at its quarterly meetings.

o To review of Cloud framework and IT Infrastructure.
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To recommend the Board IT services outsourcing policy and to do the following in
respect of outsourced operations:

instituting an appropriate governance mechanism for outsourced processes,
comprising of risk based policies and procedures, to effectively identify, measure,
monitor and control risks associated with outsourcing in an end to end manner;
Defining approval authorities for outsourcing depending on nature of risks and
materiality of outsourcing Developing sound and responsive outsourcing risk
management policies and procedures commensurate with the nature, scope and
complexity of outsourcing arrangements;

Undertaking a periodic review of outsourcing strategies and all existing material
outsourcing arrangement;

Evaluating the risks and materiality of all prospective outsourcing based on the
framework developed by the Board;

Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of policies and procedures;
Communicating significant risks in outsourcing to the Board on a periodic basis;
Ensuring an independent review and audit in accordance with approved policies and
procedures;

Ensuring that contingent plans have been developed and tested adequately;
Ensure that Company’s business continuity preparedness is not adversely
compromised on account of outsourcing, adopt sound business continuity
management practices as issued by NHB and seek proactive assurance that that the
outsourced service provider maintains readiness and preparedness for business
continuity on an ongoing basis;

To monitor/ review comprehensive risk assessment of IT systems;

To discuss the reports of the information system audit and to propose appropriate
action to be taken for compliance of the same.

During fiscal 2024, two meetings of the Committee were held on July 13, 2023 and January 12,

2024.
Sr. Chairman/ Member of Numb_er of
No Names of Members Members Committee since meetings
] attended/held
1 G. Gopalakrishna Chairman March 20, 2019 2/2
2 S. Santhanakrishnan Member March 20, 2019 2/2
3 Sanjay Singhvi? Member January 06, 2023 1/1
4 Atul Arora? Member July 26, 2023 1/1
5 Anirudh Kamani3 Member November 01, 2017 2/2
6 Vineeta Rajadhyaksha* Member February 16, 2024 0/0
1. Ceased to be a member effective from July 26, 2023.
2. Appointed as a member effective from July 26, 2023.
3. Ceased to be a member effective February 16, 2024.
4, Appointed as a member effective from February 16, 2024.
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h. Asset Liability Management Committee

The Company had duly constituted an Asset Liability Management Committee inter-alia, to
review the ALM profile, set and monitor the market risk limits including limits on liquidity, interest
rate and exchange rate positions for the structural balance sheet and the trading book, decide
the business strategy on asset and liability side, oversee the implementation of the Asset Liability
Management (ALM) system and review its functioning periodically, consider and approve any
other matter related to liquidity and market risk management.

During fiscal 2024, 13 (thirteen) meetings of the Committee were held on April 10, 2023, April 13,
2023, May 08, 2023, July 10, 2023, July 12, 2023, October 09, 2023, October 12, 2023, November
07, 2023, December 15, 2023, January 09, 2024, January 11, 2024, March 27, 2024 and March
30, 2024.

Sr. Chairman/ Member of Numb_er of
No Names of Members Members Committee since meetings
] attended/held
1 Rakesh Jha Member October 17, 2022 12/13
2 Sanjay Singhvi! Member September 17, 2021 4/5
3 Atul Arora? Member July 26, 2023 8/8
4 Zeenat Hamirani3 Member January 06, 2023 5/8
5 Vineeta Rajadhyaksha* Member February 16, 2024 2/2
6 Anirudh Kamani® Member November 01, 2017 9/11
1. Ceased to be a member effective from July 26, 2023.
2. Appointed as a member effective from July 26, 2023.
3. Ceased to be a member effective from November 29, 2023.
4. Appointed as a member effective from February 16, 2024
5. Ceased to be a member effective from February 16, 2024.

i. Committee of Directors

The Company had duly constituted the Committee of Directors inter-alia to approve various
matters namely the sanction proposals, Information Memorandum for issuance of debentures.

During fiscal 2024, fifteen (15) meetings of the Committee were held on April 13, 2023, April 24,
2023, June 16, 2023, June 27, 2023, June 28, 2023, July 12, 2023, September 11, 2023, October
12,2023, November 8, 2023, December 14, 2023, December 22, 2023, January 04, 2024, January
11, 2024, February 22, 2024 and March 05, 2024.
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Sr. Chairman/ | Member of Commit- Nurr_nber of
No. Names of Members Members tee since meetings at-
tended/held

1 Sanjay Singhvi?! Member September 17, 2021 6/6

2 Atul Arora? Member July 26, 2023 9/9

3 Zeenat Hamirani3 Member January 06, 2023 8/9

4 Rakesh Jha# Member November 29, 2023 2/6

5 Anirudh Kamani® Member November 01, 2017 10/13

6 Vineeta Rajadhyaksha® Member February 16, 2024 2/2

Ceased to be a member effective from July 26, 2023.
Appointed as a member effective from July 26, 2023.
Ceased to be a member effective from November 29, 2023.
Appointed as a member effective from November 29, 2023.
Ceased to be member effective from February 16, 2024.
Appointed as a member effective from February 16, 2024.

oA WNE

j- Other Committees

In addition to the above, the Board, has from time to time constituted various committees, namely
the Committee of Executives, Product and Process Approval Committee, Customer Services and
Grievances Redressal Committee, IT Steering Committee and Information Security Committee.
These committees are responsible for specific operational areas like approval of credit proposals,
approval of products and processes, ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and
benefits, approval for issuance/allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures, opening/closing of
various accounts maintained with other counterparts, etc.

Remuneration of directors:

(a)  all pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the
listed entity: Not applicable

(b)  criteria of making payments to non-executive directors: Not Applicable

(c) disclosures with respect to remuneration:
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Details of Remuneration for fiscal 2024:

a. Non-executive directors -
X (in million)
Sr.No Name of the Director Commiission? Sitting Fees?
1 Vinod Kumar Dhall, Chairman? 0.60 0.86
2 Santhanakrishnan S 0.75 1.27
3 Gopalakrishna G 0.75 1.16
4 Sanjay Singhvi? - -
5 Atul Arora3 - -
6 Zeenat Hamirani# - -
7 Rakesh Jha® - -
8 Sandhya Gadkari Sharma® 0.16 0.18
1. Vinod Kumar Dhall ceased to be Non-Executive Chairman of the Company effective from close
of business hours of January 13, 2024 and retired as Non-Executive Independent Director of the
Company effective from close of business hours of January 17, 2024.
2. Sanjay Singhvi ceased to be Non-Executive Director of the Company effective from July 25, 2023.
3. Atul Arora was appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company effective from July 25, 2023 and

his appointment was regularized in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Members of Company
held on October 18, 2023.

4. Zeenat Hamirani ceased to be Non-Executive Director of the Company effective of close of business
hours of November 29, 2023.

5. Rakesh Jha was appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Company effective from
January 14, 2024.

6. Sandhya Gadkari Sharma was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent Director effective
from January 13, 2024 and her appointement was regularised in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
of the Members of the Company held on January 16, 2024.

7. Excluding GST

b. Managing Director & CEO Z (in million)

Nun_ie of the Particulars Amount
Director

Anirudh Kamani Basic Salary 9.7

(Early Performance bonus paid in fiscal 2024 7.7

Retirement :

with Allowances and perquisites? 18.9

effect from

February 16, Contribution to provident fund 1.2

2024) Contribution to superannuation Fund -
Contribution to gratuity fund 0.8
Stock Options (Number)?2- Fiscal 2023 76.300
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1. Allowances and perquisites excludes previous year’s stock options exercised in fiscal 2024 ESOP.
Also excluded Insurance Premium paid for GHI, GTL & GPA in fiscal 2024.
2. Stock Options (Number) are granted in April 2023 for fiscal.

X (in million)

Nan_1e of the Particulars Amount
Director
Vineeta Rajadhyaksha | Basic Salary 0.5
(A_ppomted Performance bonus paid in fiscal 2024 _
with effect from
February 16, Allowances and perquisites! 1.2
2024)
Contribution to provident fund 0.1
Contribution to superannuation Fund _
Contribution to gratuity fund 0.0
1. excluded Insurance Premium paid for GHI, GTL & GPA in fiscal 2024.

Note: Service contracts and severance fees. — NA

The criteria for appointment of Directors and the Compensation Policy of the Company
is available on the website of the Company at https:/www.icicihfc.com/policies

The Board at its meeting held on March 31, 2015, adopted criteria for appointment of Directors’
(amended from time to time) including a matter on Board Diversity. The Board while appointing
a director considers the areas of expertise as required to be possessed by him/her under the
Act and the due diligence checks to confirm the fit and proper status. The fundamental core
attributes which may be considered for the position of an Executive Director would be proven
leadership capability, ability to successfully manage diverse stakeholder relationships and ability
to devise and drive the business strategy of the Company with focus on productivity and risk
management.

The Company while appointing senior management candidates considers proven skills,
performance track record, relevant competencies, maturity and experience in handling core
functions relevant to the role. The Whole-time Directors should have sufficient expertise and
tenure to enable them to deliver on the Company’s long-term business strategy.

Remuneration for the Independent Directors includes fees for attending each meeting of
Committee/Board or for any other purpose whatsoever as may be approved by the Board from
time to time are within the limits as provided under the Act.

Additionally, the Independent Directors of the Company are paid a profit related commission of
X 7,50,000 each per annum effective fiscal 2016. The payment would be subject to the provisions
of the Act and availability of net profits at the end of each fiscal. The Independent Directors would
be entitled to reimbursement of expenses for attending Board/Committee meetings, official visits
and participation in various forums on behalf of the Company and any other expenses as may
be approved by the Board.
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Details of General Body meetings

a. Details of last three Annual General meetings of the Company are given below.

General Body Meeting | Day, Date Time Venue
Twenty-Second Annual Friday, June 4, [03.00 PM Meeting held through video
General Meeting (fiscal 2021 conferencing/other audio visual
2021) means
Twenty-Third Annual Friday, June 3, [03.30 PM Meeting held through video
Genral Meeting (fiscal 2022 conferencing/other audio visual
2022) means
Twenty-Fourth Annu- Tuesday, May |[04.30 PM Meeting held through video
al Genral Meeting (fiscal 30, 2023 conferencing/other audio visual
2023) means

b. Special Resolutions passed in the Annual General Meetings held in the previous
three years are given below

General Body
Meeting

Day, Date

Venue

Annual General

Meeting 2021

Friday, June 4,

Placement

March 31, 2021

e Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures under Private

e Waiver of recovery of excess Managerial
remuneration paid to Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer for the year ended

e Amendment in Articles of Association of the Company

Annual General
Meeting

Friday, June 3,
2022

e Fixing overall Borrowing Limits under Section 180(1)
(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

e Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures under Private
Placement

e Waiver of recovery of excess Managerial
remuneration paid to Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer for the year ended
March 31, 2022

e Re-appointment of Anirudh Kamani (DIN : 07678378)
as Managing Director & CEO of the Company

e Continuation of Vinod Kumar Dhall (DIN : 02591373)
as an Independent Director of the Company
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General Body

Meeting Day, Date Venue
Annual General Tuesday, May | e Fixing overall Borrowing Limits under Section 180(1)
Meeting 30, 2023 (c) of the Companies Act, 2013
e Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures under Private
Placement

e Amendment in Articles of Association of the Company
e Creation of charge/security on the assets upto an
amount of X250.00 billion to secure its borrowings

c. Whether special resolutions were put through postal ballot last year, details of voting
pattern:

During fiscal 2024, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot.
d. Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot:

No Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot as on the date of this
Report.

Means of Communication

We have established robust procedures to disseminate relevant information in a planned manner
to our Shareholders, Bondholders, analysts, employees and the society at large. The details of
the means of communication with Shareholders/ Bondholders /analysts are given below:

1. Publication of Quarterly Results

Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are sent to the Stock
Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed i.e. BSE Limited and published in The
Financial Express, leading English newspaper having nationwide circulation. Simultaneously,
they are also put on the Company’s website and can be accessed at www.icicihfc.com.

2. Website
The Company’s website, www.icicihfc.com contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investors’ and
‘Investor Relations’ where all the Shareholders’ information is available.

3. Annual report

The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statements, Board’s Report, Auditors’
Report and other important information is circulated to the Members and others entitled thereto.
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of the Annual Report.
The Company’s Annual Report is also available in a downloadable form on the Company’s
website i.e. www.icicihfc.com.

4. Stock Exchange

The Company makes timely disclosures of necessary information to the BSE Limited in terms of
the SEBI LODR Regulations and other rules and regulations issued by the SEBI.
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General Shareholder Information
(i) Company Registration Details

The Company is registered in the State of Maharashtra. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is U65922MH1999PLC120106.

(ii) Annual General Meeting
Date :May 14, 2024

Day :Tuesday

Time :11.00 a.m.

Place : ICICI HFC Tower, Andheri Kurla Road, J.B. Nagar, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 059.

(iii) Financial Calendar

Financial Year: April 01 to March 31

(iv) Dividend Payment Date

Dividend will be paid/dispatched on or after May 14, 2024.

(v) Listing on Stock Exchanges

Your Company has issued privately placed non-convertible debentures, which are listed on BSE
Limited located at Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001. Your Company has
paid the Annual Listing Fees to BSE Limited where its bonds are listed for the year ending 2024.

(vi) Registrars & Transfer Agent

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company are as given below. Investor ser-
vices related queries requests/grievances may be directed to Mr. Sunny Abraham (Bonds) at the
address as under:

Datamatics Business Solutions limited (Debt Instruments)
Plot no. B-5, part B Crosslane, MIDC,

Andheri (east), Mumbai — 400093.

Tel: 022-66712196

3l Infotech Limited (Equity Shares)
International Infotech Park, Tower # 5,
3rd Floor, Vashi Railway Station Complex,
Vashi Navi Mumbai 400 703,
Maharashtra, India

Tel. No.: +91-22-7123 8000
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(vii) Distribution of Shareholding at March 31, 2024

Range — Shares No. of Share Holders No. of Shares
Number % of Total Shares % of Total
Upto 1,000 6 85.71 1,100 *
1,001 - 5,000 - - - -
5,001 -10,000 - - - -
10,001 - 50,000 - - - -
50,001 & above 14.29 1,203,526,770 100
Total 7 100.00| 1,203,527,870 100.00

*Insignificant percentage

(viii) Category of Shareholders at March 31, 2024

Category

No. of Shares held

% of Shareholding

Promoters & Promoter’s
group

1,203,527,870

100.00

Financial Institution & Banks

Foreign Portfolio Investors

Mutual Funds

Bodies Corporate

NRI

Individual

HUF

Trusts

Clearing Member

NBFCs registered with RBI

Employee Benefit Trust

Total

1,203,527,870

100.00
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(xiii) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion Date
and likely impact on Equity

Your Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/ Convertible Instruments
at March 31, 2024.

(xiv) Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

Your Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of ICICI Bank Limited and the Equity Shares are
held by ICICI Bank Limited and its nominees in dematerialised form.

(xv) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The Company is not in the Commodity business; hence no direct commodity price risk affects the
Company. However, the Company does have Gold loan lending business where suitable margins
are maintained to eliminate the risk of fluctuation of gold prices. Further, gold loan lending are
done within 75% Loan to Value (LTV) limit as per regulatory guidelines.

The Company does not have any foreign currency exposure at March 31, 2024, hence no foreign
exchange risk is applicable to the Company. Further, no derivatives have been taken for hedging
purpose.

(xvi) Plant Locations: Not Applicable

(xvii) Address for Correspondence

Priyanka Shetty

Company Secretary

ICICI Home Finance Company Limited ICICI HFC tower, Andheri Kurla Road, J.B. Nagar, Andheri
(East), Mumbai - 400059

Email: secretarial@icicihfc.com

Website: www.icicihfc.com

Tel.: (+91-22) 40093231

(xviii) Credit Ratings at March 31, 2024
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Credit Instruments Ratings Revision, if [Revision
Rating any Rational
Agency
Fixed Deposits CRISIL AAA/Stable
Senior Bonds / Non-Con- | CRISIL AAA/Stable
vertible Debentures
CRISIL
Subordinated Bonds CRISIL AAA/Stable
Market Linked Deben- CRISIL PPMLD AAA/
tures Stable
Fixed Deposits ICRA AAA/Stable
Senior Bonds / Non-Con- |ICRA AAA/Stable
vertible Debentures
ICRA Subordinated Bonds ICRA AAA/Stable
None NA
Commercial Papers ICRA Al+
Long term Bank facilities |ICRA AAA/Stable
Fixed Deposits CARE AAA/Stable
Senior Bonds / Non-Con- | CARE AAA/Stable
vertible Debentures
CARE Subordinated Bonds CARE AAA/Stable
Commercial Papers CARE Al+
Market Linked Deben- CARE PPMLD AAA/
tures Stable

The Company also has a standalone issuer credit rating of ICRA AAA/Stable’ by ICRA.

During fiscal 2024, there were no revisions in the credit ratings obtained by the Company.

(xix) Market Price Data - High, low during each month in last financial year - Not

Applicable

(xx) Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL Index
- Not Applicable

(xxi) In case of, any of the Securities of the Company are suspended from trading — Not

Applicable

(xxii) Share Transfer System

Your Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of ICICI Bank Limited.
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OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. There are no materially significant transactions with related parties i.e., directors,
management, Holding Company conflicting with the interests of your Company.

2. Detdils of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company
by the Stock Exchange(s), RBI or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years: Nil.

3. Detdils of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy, and affirmation that
no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee

The Company has put in place a Whistleblower Policy through which it has set-up a mechanism
that enables employees, secondee or stakeholder to report about potentially illegal and/or
unacceptable practices. It seeks to enable employees to report such practices without fear
of victimisation and reprisal. The Whistleblower Policy aims to administer good governance
practices in the Company and to ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and addressed.

The purpose of the Whistleblower Policy is to enable a person who observes an unethical practice
(whether or not a violation of law) to approach the Head-Internal Audit without necessarily
informing his supervisors. The Whistleblower Policy governs reporting and investigation of
allegations of suspected improper activities.

Employees of the Company are encouraged to use guidance provided in the Whistleblower Policy
for reporting all alleged or suspected improper activities. In all instances, the Company retains
the right to determine when circumstances warrant an investigation and in conformity with the
Whistleblower Policy and applicable laws and regulations, the appropriate investigative process
is employed. Strict confidentiality is maintained with regard to the identity of the complainant
both during and post investigation, barring disclosure of identity, if required, under applicable
law.

4. Details of Compliance with the Mandatory requirements and adoption of Non-Mandatory
Requirements

Mandatory requirements as mentioned under SEBI LODR Regulations are not applicable to the
Company. However, the Company has adopted the following non-mandatory requirements of
Regulation 27 of the SEBI LODR Regulations:

a. The Chairman of the Company is a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

b. Internal auditors of the Company make direct presentations of their reports to the Audit
Committee.

c. The auditors’ reports on statutory financial statements of the Company are with an
unmodified opinion.

d. The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are published
in the newspapers and are also hosted on the Company’s website i.e. www.icicihfc.com.
The same are also available on the website of BSE limited i.e. www.bseindia.com.
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5. SEBI Listing Regulations were amended through notification dated September 07, 2021,
providing for the applicability of Regulations 16 to 27, relating to corporate governance on high
value debt listed entities on comply or explain basis until March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory
basis thereafter. The Company being high value debt listed entity has ensured compliance with
the new requirements to the extent applicable to the Company.

6. Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: not applicable
7. Remuneration to Statutory Auditors

As required under Part C of the Schedule V of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the total fee to the
statutory auditors is as under:

(X in million)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2024

Statutory audit fees 5.5
Tax audit fees 0.5
Certification and other fees 3.1
Reimbursement of expenses 0.5
Total 9.6
Total including GST disallowance 104

8. Disclosure by listed entity of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/
companies in which directors are interested by name and amount

No such loans and advances are given by the Company

9. Where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the Board,
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year

All the recommendations made by the committees of the Board during the relevant financial
year were accepted by the Board.

10. Web-link where policy for determining “material” subsidiaries is disclosed
The Company has no subsidiaries.
11. Web-link where policy on dealing with the Related Party Transaction is disclosed

The policy on dealing with the Related Party Transaction is hosted on the website of the Company
i.e. www.icicihfc.com.

12. Details of Utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualifies
institutional placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) - Nil

Annual Report 2023-24 ﬁ



ICICI Home Finance

13. Compliance Certificate on conditions of Corporate Governance by a Practicing Company
Secretary

Your Company has annexed to this Report as Annexure - 4, a certificate obtained from B.S.Vyas
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Schedule V of SEBI LODR Regulations.

14. Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Board Members of
the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of Companies by the SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any - Certificate from a
Practicing Company Secretary has been provided under Annexure 6.

15. The Company has complied with discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of
Schedule Il to the extent applicable.

16. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account:
Not applicable

DISCLOSURES AS PER THE NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY- HOUSING
FINANCE COMPANY (RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2021 (AS AMENDED FROM
TIME TO TIME)

A. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

As required by the aforesaid Directions, the details of public deposits unclaimed and unpaid at
March 31, 2024, are given below:

e The total number of accounts of public deposits (including interest) which have not been
claimed by the depositors or not paid by the Company after the date on which the
deposit became due for repayment: 32

e The total amounts due (including interest) under such accounts remaining unclaimed or
unpaid beyond the dates referred to in clause (i) as aforesaid: X 3.9 million.

The total amount of interest due and included in such unclaimed or unpaid deposits amounted
to 2.0 million at March 31, 2024.

The Company has sent reminders to the depositors and requested them to claim the same. There
are no overdue deposits other than unclaimed deposits.

The Company raised public deposits worth X6,922.7 million during fiscal 2024. The Company’s
Fixed Deposits programme has received the highest credit ratings of ‘MAAA’ by ICRA, ‘CARE
AAA (FD)’ by CARE and ‘FAAA’ by CRISIL with stable outlook.

B. DEBENTURES

i. The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by the investors
or not paid by the Company after the date on which the non- convertible debentures became
due for redemption: Nil

ii. The total amount in respect of such debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond the

date of such debentures become due for redemption: Nil
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DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

There is no application made or pending against the Company under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOF

The Company has not availed one-time settlement for any of its loan from banks or financial
institutions.

DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

As per SEBI circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/18/2013 dated October 29,2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the details of Debenture Trustees are as under:

Name Axis Trustee Services Limited

Address | The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West, Mumbai — 400
028

Contact | Tel. No.: 022-62300451
details | Fax No.: 022-43253000
Email: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.in

DISCLOSURE OF LARGE CORPORATE ENTITY

Pursuant to SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/2018 dated November 26, 2018 and other ap-
plicable regulations as amended from time to time, the Company has been identified as Large
Corporate Entity as per the applicability criteria.

As per the requirement of said circular, the Company after being identified as a Large Corporate
entity had to raise 25% of its incremental borrowings during fiscal 2024 through issuance of
debt securities. The Company was able to meet the criteria of minimum 25% (it raised 29.45 bil-
lion i.e.; 37.86% during the year) of its incremental borrowings through issuance of NCDs, which
are in the nature of debt securities.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act confirm that:

(a)  Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b)  They had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the fiscal 2024 and of the profit
and loss of the Company for that period;

(c) They had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)  They had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

()  They had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) They had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors thank the National Housing Bank, the Reserve Bank of India, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, other statutory authorities, BSE Limited, vendors, channel partners
and the bankers and lenders of the Company for their continued support.

The Directors express their gratitude for the support and guidance received from the Company’s
shareholder, ICICI Bank Limited and other ICICI Group companies and also express their
warm appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their commendable teamwork,
professionalism and contribution during the year. The Directors extend their sincere thanks to
the customers of the Company for their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board

ICICI Home Finance Company Limited
Rakesh Jha

Non Executive Chairman

DIN: 00042075

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2024
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Compliance with the Group Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

| confirm that all Directors and Members of the senior management have
affirmed compliance with Group Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for fiscal 2024.

Vineeta Rajadhyaksha
Managing Director & CEO

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2024
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Annexure 1

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
ICICI HOME FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ICICI Home Finance Company Limited
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information provided by the
company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the
Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
Securities and Exchange Board of India, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, generally complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31,
2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings;
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(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) as amended from time to time:

(a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time; (Not applicable to
the Company during the audit period)

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); and

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

(vii)  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

« Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 as amended from time to time

« Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company- Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023

« The National Housing Bank Act, 1987

« Income Tax Act, 1961

« Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

+ Integrated Good and Services Tax Act, 2017

« Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

« Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

o Other relevant applicable laws and regulations

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect
to board and general meetings.

(i) The Listing Agreement entered by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and BSE Limited with respect to Non Convertible Debentures issued by the
Company read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above.
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We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We report that as regards the compliance of Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI LODR, 2015 on a
Comply or explain basis until March 31, 2024, the Company has been providing the necessary
explanation in the quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance submitted to the Stock
Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI LODR, 2015.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other than those held at
shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes, the decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company had following events which had
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards etc.

A. During the year, the Company had issued and redeemed the following Non- Convertible
Debentures:

i. Issued 294500 Listed, Secured, Rated Non-Convertible Debentures having face value of
Rs.1.00 lac for an aggregate amount of Rs. 2948.43 crores (including premium and accrued
interest).

ii. Redeemed:

. -2000 Listed, Secured, Rated Non-Convertible Debentures having
face value of Rs. 5.00 lac for an aggregate amount of Rs. 100 crore.
- 6750 Listed, Secured, Rated Non-Convertible Debentures having face value of Rs. 10.00 lac
for an aggregate amount of Rs. 675 crore.

o - 2642 Listed, Secured, Rated Morket Linked Debentures having face value of Rs. 10.00 lac
for an aggregate amount of Rs. 264.2 crore.

B. During the year, the Company had issued and redeemed the following Commercial Papers
(“CPS"):
i. Issued 4175 units Commercial Papers at face value of Rs. 1.00 crore for an aggregate amount
of Rs. 4175 crores.
ii. Redeemed 4225 units Commercial Papers at face value of Rs. 1.00 crore for an aggregate
amount of Rs. 4225 crore.
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For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Mumbai Jigyasa Ved
Date: April 20, 2024 Partner
FCS No: 6488
CP No: 6018

UDIN: PR No.: 1129/2021

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure | and Forms
an integral part of this report.

‘Annexure I’

To,
The Members
ICICI HOME FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

the Company.
For Parikh & Associates

Company Secretaries

Jigyasa Ved

Partner

FCS No: 6488

CP No: 6018

UDIN: PR No.: 1129/2021
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Annexure 2

Disclosures in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014.

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the fiscal 2024:

Anirudh Kamani, MD & CEO (Early retirement 75:1
with effect from end of working hours of

February 16, 2024)

Vineeta Rajadhyaksha, MD & CEO (Appointed 33:1
as MD & CEO with effect from February 16,

2024)

S. Santhanakrishnan' 1.8:1
Vinod Kumar Dhall* 1.4:1
G. Gopalakrishnat 1.8:1
Sandhya Gadkari Sharma? 0.4:1

1. Includes Commission paid during fiscal 2024 and sitting fees has been excluded for calculation
of remuneration.

(if) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the fiscal 2024
During the fiscal, the increase in remuneration of MD & CEO, CFO and Company Secretary
stood at 6%, 15% and 10% respectively.

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the fiscal
The median remuneration of employees in the fiscal has increased by 14%.

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
The number of permanent employees on rolls of the Company is 4483 at March 31, 2024.

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last fiscal and its comparison with the percentile increase
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration
The average percentile (percentage) increase made in the salaries of total employees
other than the key managerial personnel in fiscal 2024 is around 13% v/s 10% increase in
the remuneration of the key managerial personnel in fiscal 2024.

(vi) Key parameters for any variable components of remuneration availed by the
Directors
On the Company’s Key Performance Indicators achievement.

(vii) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

Yes.
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Annexure 3
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8
(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of material related party transactions at arm’s length principles for the year ended March 31, 2024 on
an aggregate basis are given below.

X in million
Sr. Nature of Name of Nature of Duration t':':"::n:f
No. Contracts/ the Related . - of Amount
. Relationship Contracts/
Transactions Party Contracts .
Transactions
1 Sell down of ICICI Bank Holding - -
retail Limited Company
mortgage loans
by way of Direct
Assignment (DA) 39,196.7
2 Bank/Book ICICI Bank Holding Various At market
overdraft in Limited Company Maturities | price
current 11,259.8
3 Letter of ICICI Bank Holding Various At market
Undertaking Limited Company Maturities | price
8,260.9
4 Term Loans ICICI Bank Holding Various At market
tak Limited C Maturiti i
aken imite ompany aturities | price 2.000.0
5 Investment in ICICI Bank Holding Various At market
Bonds issued by | Limited Company Maturities | price
the Company 2,200.0
6 Bank balances ICICI Bank Holding Various At market
(including fixed | Limited Company Maturities | price
deposits and
interest accrued
thereon) 2,167.7

Vineeta Rajadhyaksha

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 10483840
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Annexure - 4

Certificate on Compliance with the Corporate Governance Requirements under SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To

The Members

ICICI Home Finance Company Limited
ICICI Bank Towers, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Mumbai -400051

I have reviewed the relevant records of ICICI Home Finance Company Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Company”) for the purpose of certifying compliance of the disclosure requirements
and corporate governance norms as specified for the high-value debt listed companies under
Regulations 17 to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”) for the year ended March 31, 2024. | have also obtained all the information and
explanations to the best of my knowledge and belief, which were necessary for the purpose of
this certification.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to
me, | certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of Listing Regulations
during financial year FY 2023-24.

| state that the compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the
management, and my review was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted
by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of Listing Regulations.
The review is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company. | further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For B. S. Vyas & Associates
Practicing Company Secretary
ICSI Unique Code: S2022G)883000

Bhargav Vyas

Proprietor

Membership No. A46392

COP No. 26078

Peer Review Certificate No. 2782/2022 Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: A046392F000158768 Date: April 17, 2024
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Annexure 5

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES/
INITIATIVES

1.

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the
CSR policy and projects or programs:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has been a long-standing commitment at your
Company. The Company’s contribution to social sector development includes several
pioneering interventions and was implemented through the involvement of stakeholders
within the Company and through the broader community. As per the CSR Policy, CSR
activities are being undertaken by the Company directly or through ICICI Foundation or
through any other entity.

The CSR Policy of the Company sets the framework guiding the Company’s CSR activities.
It outlines the governance structure,operating framework, monitoring mechanism and
CSR activities that would be undertaken. The CSR committee is the governing body
that articulates the scope of CSR activities and ensures compliance with the CSR policy.
The Company’s CSR activities are largely focused in the areas of education, health, skill
development and financial inclusion and other activities as the Company may choose
to select in fulfilling its CSR objectives. The CSR policy was approved by the Committee
in October 2014 (and is amended from time to time). The CSR policy is hosted on the
Company’s website https://www.icicihfc.com/policies

2. The composition of the CSR Committee
The Company’s CSR Committee comprisesthreeIndependentDirectors and a Non-Executive
Director and is chaired by the Non-Executive Independent Director. The composition of the
Committee is set out below.
Number of CSR
- . Number of
Sr. Chairman/ Commiittee .
Name . meeting attended
No. Members meeting held .
- during the year
during the year
1 S. Santhanakrishnan? Member 2 2
2 G. Gopalakrishna Member 2 2
3 Vinod Kumar Dhall? Member 2 2
4 Zeenat Hamirani® Member 2 2
5 Atul Arora* Member 0 0
6 Sandhya Gadkari Sharma® | Chairperson 0 0
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Stepped down as chairman effective from January 13, 2024.
Ceased to be a member from November 29, 2023.

Ceased to be a member effective from November 29, 2023.
Appointed as member effective from November 29, 2023.

Appointed as Chairperson effective from January 13, 2024

o AWNE

The functions of the Committee include review of CSR initiatives undertaken by the Company,
formulation and recommendation of CSR policy indicating the activities to be undertaken and
recommendation of the annual CSR plan and amount of the expenditure to be incurred on such
activities to the Board, monitoring the CSR activities, implementation of and compliance with
the CSR Policy and reviewing and implementing, if required, any other matter related to CSR
initiatives as recommended/suggested by the Board.

3. The web-link where composition of the CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:
https://www.icicicom/policies

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable.

5 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the C
panies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off
for the financial year, if any:

Sr. | Financial Amount available f_or Amount required to be set-off for
No Year set-off from preceding the financial year, if any (in X)
) financial years (in X) yedr, y
1 2022-23 151,081.98 Nil
2 2021-22 2,469,258.96 2,469,258.96
3 2020-21 Nil Nil
Total 2,620,340.94 2,469,258.96

6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013
was X 2101.0 million.

7. a. Two per cent of the average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for fiscal 2023 is X 42.0 million.
b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil
c. Amount required to be set off for the financial year: Nil
d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) was X 42.0 million.

8. a. CSR amount spent or unspent during fiscal 2024:
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X in million

Amount Unspent

Total Total amount
amounts transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified under
for the CSR Account as per Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Fiscal 2024 section 135(6)
Date of
Amount Name of the Fund Amount Date of Transfer
transfer
42.0 Nil NA NA Nil NA

b. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA
c. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year

1) |2 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sr | Name of the | Item from | Local Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of
No project the list of area project spent implementation implementation
activities in | (Yes/ for the Direct Through
schedule VIl | No) Project (Yes/ No) implementing agency
to the Act (inX
million)
State District Name CSR
Registration
No.

1. Environmental/ | Item no: (iv) No Gujarat Kutch 36.5 No ICICI CSR0000
Social ensuring Foundation 1979
Project environmental Madhya Khargone, for Inclusive
Rain water sustainability, Pradesh Ratlam, Growth
harvesing in ecological Damoh,
rural schools/ balance, Tikamgarh
universities/ protection of
industrial flora and Karnataka | Raichur
centers

Rajasthan | Sirohi,
Jaipur,
Jodhpur
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(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Item from Amount Mode of
. Local spent e . .
Sr Name th? !'sft o_f area Location of the for the | implementation Mode of wrnplementa’:lon
of the activities in . . . Through implementing
No . (Yes/ project Project Direct
project | schedule VII No) (in % agency
to the Act ° - (Yes/No)
million)
State District Name CSR
Registration No.
government | fauna, animal Himachal Hamirpur,
schools/ welfare, Pradesh Bilaspur
universities/ | agroforestry,
industrial conservation
centers of natural
resources and
maintaining
quality of soil,
air and water
and ensure
social well
being.
Punjab Ludhiana,
Rupnagar
2. Contribution | (ix) (a) No Maharash- | Mumbai 1.0 No Society for | CSR0001
to M/s. Contribution to tra Innovation 5436
Albatross incubators or and
Energetics research and Entrepre-
Private development neurship
Limited for | projects in
specializing | the field
in building of science,
highly technology,
energy engineering
efficient and | and medicine,
sustainable | funded by
heating, the Central
cooling Government
and other or State
thermal Government or
engineering | Public Sector
solutions Undertaking
or any agency
of the Central
Government
or State
Government
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(1) |[(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Item_from Amount
the list of
. Local spent for Mode of
Name of | activities . Mode of . .
Sr . area | Location of the the . . implementation
the in . . implementation . .
No . (Yes/ project Project . Through implementing
project schedule N in X Direct
VIl to the o) m(ill::on) agency
Act
State District Name CSR
Registration
No.
3. Construction | Item no: (ix) Yes Tamil Madras | 2.5 No Indian
of Affordble | (b) Nadu Institute of
Housing Contribution Teechnology
Multistorey | to Indian Madras
Apartment | Institute of
Clusters Technology
in Tier 1/2 (IITs)
Cities using
Off-Site 3D
Printing
4. Cardicac Item No: (iv) | Yes Maha- Mumbai | 2.0 No ICICI CSR0000
Stress Test promoting rashtra Foundation | 1979
Machine to health care for Inclusive
KEM including Growth
Hosiptal, preventive
Mumbai health care
TOTAL 42.0

d. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

e. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
f. Total amount spent for the fiscal 2024: X 42.0 million

g. Excess amount for set off, if any:
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X in million
Sr |Particulars Amount
No.
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 42.0
section 135(5) for Fiscal 2023
(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 42.0
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii) - (i)] Nil
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years Nil
[(iii) - (iv)]
0. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years
Amount Amount transferred to any
u Amount fund specified under Schedule Amount
transferred . . . .
. spent in the VIl as per section 135(6), if remaining to
Preceding | to Unspent . .
Sr. . . reporting any. be spent in
Financial | CSR Account . . .
No. Financial succeeding
Year. under . Name . .
. Year (in Amount | Date of | financial years.
section 135 Rs.) of the ! (in Rs.)
(6) (in Rs.) .- Fund (in Rs) transfer. .
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding fiscal(s):
(1) (2 (3) (4) (5 (6) (7) 8 9
Financial Total Amount spent Cumulative
Name Year in amount on the project | amount spent | Status of
Sr. Project fu th hich th Project allocated in the at the end the project
No. ID. Po e whic © duration. for the reporting of reporting Completed
roject. project was . . . . . . .
d project (in | Financial Year | Financial Year. | /Ongoing.
commenced. Rs.). (in Rs). (in Rs.)
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10.In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details) as detailed

below.

Sr. No.

Detdails of Capital
Assets created or
acquired (including
complete address
and location of the
capital asset.)

Date of creation or
acquisition of the
capital asset(s):

Amount of CSR
spent for creation
or acquisition of
capital asset:

Detdails of the entity
or public authority
or beneficiary
under whose name
such capital asset
is registered, their
address etc.
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Annexure 6

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To

The Members

ICICI Home Finance Company Limited

ICICI Bank Towers, Bandra-Kurla Complex,

Mumbai -400051

| have examined the relevant disclosures provided by the Directors to ICICI Home Finance
Company Limited bearing CIN: U65922MH1999PLC120106, having registered office at ICICI
Bank Towers, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400051 (hereinafter referred to
as ‘the Company’), provided to me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate,
in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Clause 10(i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”).

In my opinion and to the best of my information, based on (i) documents available on the website
of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) as on April 17, 2024, and Stock Exchanges as on
April 17, 2024 (ii) Verification of Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the website of
MCA, and (iii) disclosures provided by the Directors (as enlisted in Table A) to the Company,
| hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company (as enlisted in Table
A) have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, MCA or any such other statutory
authority as on March 31, 2024.
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Table A
Sr. No DIN Name of Directors Date of Appointment
1 06407040 GOPALAKRISHNA GURRAPPA January 18, 2019
2 00042075 RAKESH JHA October 13, 2022
3 00032049 SANTHANAKRISHNAN SANKARAN October 16, 2014
4 02005378 SANDHYA GADKARI SHARMA January 13, 2024
5 10483840 VINEETA SANDEEP RAJADHYAKSHA February 16, 2024
6 01999097 ATUL ARORA July 25, 2023

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

General Disclaimer: Our Analysis for this certificate does not cover the verification of criteria
pertaining to appointment as Independent director and Non-Executive Non Independent
Director and criteria pertaining to appointment as Managing Director under relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder

For B. S. Vyas & Associates
Practicing Company Secretary
ICSI Unique Code: S2022G)883000

Bhargav Vyas

Proprietor

Membership No. A46392

COP No. 26078

Peer Review Certificate No. 2782/2022 Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: A046392F000158944 Date: April 17, 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &
ANALYSIS

OVERALL BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Global Economy Overview:

The global economy has proved to be resilient
despite multiple shocks observed during the past
four years viz. COVID-19 pandemic, geopolitical
conflicts in Europe and Middle East and the
tightened monetary policies to curb inflationary
pressures. Major economies emerged mostly
unaffected after the fastest rise in interest rates
in 40 years, with World Bank estimating the
inflation to be tamed without tipping off the
world into recession. With receding inflationary
pressures and steady growth observed in
major world economies, the global economy is
beginning its final descent towards soft landing.

Downside risks to the global growth outlook
include commodity price shocks arising from
escalated geopolitical conflicts in Europe and
Middle East, financial stress amid elevated debt
and high borrowing costs, trade fragmentation
and climate related disasters. Despite the
above headwinds, inflation is falling faster than
expected in most regions, amidst unwinding
supply side issues and restrictive monetary
policy, and the risks to global growth are
broadly balanced.

As per International Monetary Fund (IMF)
projections, global inflation is expected to
fall from its 2022 peak to 5.8 % in 2024 and
4.4 % in 2025. Further, IMF projects global
growth at 3.1 % in 2024 and 3.2 % in 2025,
on account of greater than expected resilience
in developed economies and large emerging
market economies.

Indian Economy Overview:

India has been one of the fastest growing
economies in terms of GDP growth across the
globe in recent years and is expected to be the
fastest growing economy in next fiscal year as
well. As per IMF, medium-term growth forecast
for India remains strong, supported by

improving macroeconomic fundamentals and
resilient domestic demand.

The tailwinds supporting India’s growth story
include the effectiveness of RBI's monetary
policy to contain inflationary pressures,
increase in household consumption, robust
digital public infrastructure, decline in systemic
financial risks bolstered by stronger balance
sheets and healthy capital buffers of financial
institutions and government thrust towards
capital expenditure. The factors that need
cautious watch for the economy to remain on
the consistent growth path include the adverse
effects of ongoing geopolitical conflicts,
security on important trade routes, volatility
in international financial markets, rise in
geo-economic fragmentation and irregular
monsoon.

On the back of the above factors, RBI estimates
Indian economy to grow by 7.6% during fiscal
2024 and projected to grow by 7.0% in fiscal
2025.

Capital investment is expected to be the
dominant growth driver for the Indian economy
in medium term. It has been supported through
initial revival in the investment cycle. The Indian
economy has seen consistent improvement
in the post-pandemic period with the
government’s thrust on capital infrastructure
build-up through budgetary spending, which
has also resulted in an increase in private
consumption.

Private consumption in India has seen an
increase in recent times and is expected to
gather momentum in future fiscal years as
well with higher spending expected towards
housing, travel and mobility and personal
services (health and education) segments.

Source: IMF & ICICI Bank Research
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Real Estate Sector Overview:

The Indian real estate sector presents
a promising landscape characterised by
resilience and positive indicators in 2024.
The residential real estate sector saw robust
demand in current fiscal in the luxury housing
segment. The underlying fabric of the market
remained skewed towards mid and premium
segments which constituted bulk of the sales.
The momentum in residential real estate
sector is expected to sustain as the supply
continues to ramp up in the current fiscal
and is expected to remain resilient, despite
inflation and elevated interest rate scenario.
In the commercial real sector, steady growth
is observed, with a nuanced rebalancing in
the office space domain.

Rise in income levels, stable mortgage
rates, rising property prices, and a focus
on homeownership contribute to a positive
market sentiment. Despite these optimistic
trends, challenges such as rising interest rates
and geopolitical uncertainties persist.

However, despite these challenges, the real
estate sector is poised for growth in next fiscal
as the sector is under consolidation phase and
is moving towards organised growth with an
upsurge in private investment. Further, the
extension of the PM Awas Yojana (Gramin)
in the Interim Union Budget 2024 to build 2
crore more houses in the next five years is
expected to boost the construction sector
which shall have an economic multiplier effect
on consumption and jobs. The Government’s
proposal in the Interim Union Budget 2024 to
launch a housing scheme for the middle class
to encourage them to buy or build their own
houses is also likely to boost construction
activity.

Indian Real Estate Market (USD bn)
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Source: India Brand Equity Foundation

Housing Finance Sector Overview:

The housing credit space has been increasing
over the past few years, it has grown at
a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR)
of ~12% over the past five years to X 31.8
trillion at September 30, 2023. Of the total on-
book housing loan portfolio, banks contribute
largely considering the outreach of banks
across India, comprehensive product suite
with competitive rates and a recent merger
of major housing finance company with the
bank. The share of housing finance companies
in the total housing credit is at modest 18%
at September 30, 2023. Though the share of
credit of HFCs has been modest, credit by
HFCs has grown by ~16% year on year to
housing portfolio of X 5.7 trillion at September
30, 2023, whereas credit by banks has grow
by ~14% year on year to X 26.1 trillion at
September 30, 2023.

Source: ICRA research report AUM: Assets under management

The Indian home mortgage finance market
is projected to expand at ~15% CAGR over
FY2021-2025. The growth is expected to be
driven by rising disposable incomes, enhanced
affordability and substantial government
support. Despite the positive trajectory, the
mortgage penetration rate in India remains
modest at ~11%. In rural and semi-urban
areas, this rate is even lower, languishing
under 5% and there is significant untapped
India’s

potential in these regions. While

housing loan penetration slightly surpasses
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the global average of 10%, there is ample

room for growth, especially in rural and semi-
urban territories.

The affordable housing segment is one of the
swiftest-growing domains in Indian consumer
finance. It caters to consumers in the lower
to middle-income brackets and is supported
by government initiatives for both developers
and customers alike. The affordable housing
segment is set to play a pivotal role in meeting
the housing needs of the country due to its
manifold benefits and wide-reaching impact.
Owing to this, the affordable housing finance
companies (AHFCs) have been growing at a
faster pace compared to other HFCs.

The total loan portfolio of HFCs stood atX 7.6
trillion at September 30, 2023 registering a
growth of ~10% year on year, primarily driven
by healthy demand for home loans. Of which,
AHFCs reported a loan portfolio of X 970.00
billion at September 30, 2023 registering a
growth of ~28% year on year. Housing finance
companies are expected to grow in the range
of 12-14% in near to medium term.

The share of non-housing loans in the total
portfolio of HFCs at September 30, 2023 has
declined to 25% from 27% at March 31, 2023,
owing to HFCs moving towards maintenance
of mandatory principal business criteria and
decline in construction finance portfolio of
housing finance companies. However, as
per ICRA estimates disbursements under
non-housing segment are expected to pick up
as companies shall aim at balancing margins
and principal business criteria in the next
fiscal.

The average industry gross NPA for HFCs was
2.9% at September 30, 2023 owing to the
efforts putin by HFCs to contain the flows from
restructured portfolio, positive resolutions
from stressed construction finance portfolio
and transfer of distressed assets to asset
reconstruction companies. The said trend is
expected to be maintained and the gross NPA
is projected to further come down with the

growth in total loan portfolio of HFCs.

The housing finance companies saw an
improvement in their margins during the last
fiscalhoweverthesameisexpectedtomoderate
as the replacement of low cost borrowings
tick-in leading to contraction in margins.

However, the credit costs appear to be coming
down for the HFC industry as the stressed
period of escalated loan loss provisions is in
the past; this is expected to compensate for the
loss of profits due to shrinking margins. The
return on managed assets for HFCs was 1.9%
during H1-2024 compared to 1.1% during
H1-2023 and is expected to be maintained in
the same range in near to medium term.

Source: ICRA research report *ROMA: Return on managed assets
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KEY REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS

As a result of the monetary policy measures
by central banks across the globe, the
inflationary pressures were contained and the
RBI put a pause to further rate hikes during
the last fiscal 2024. The repo rate remained
at 6.50% throughout the last fiscal and there
was no change in prime lending rate (PLR) by
the Company.

The major regulatory developments as
announced by various agencies/regulatory
bodies during the last fiscal are as under:

1. RBI introduced regulatory measures
towards consumer credit and bank credit
to NBFCs, increasing its risk weight from
100% to 125%.

2. SEBI issued procedural framework for
dealing with unclaimed amounts lying
with entities having listed non-convertible
debentures and manner of claiming such
amounts by investors.

3. RBI issued guidelines for investment in
Alternate Investment Funds that covers
transactions which involves substitution
of direct exposures to borrower through
investment in AlFs.

4. RBI issued guidelines with respect to fair
lending practices for penal charges in loan
accounts.

5. RBI issued comprehensive regulatory
framework for compromise settlements
and technical write-offs.

6. RBI issued guidelines with respect to
responsible lending for release of movable
or immovable property documents on
repayment/settlement of personal loans.

7. RBl issued guidelines with respect to reset
of floating interest rate on EMI based
personal loans (incl. housing loans).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW:
Distribution and other initiatives

The last fiscal was a year of stable and
satisfactory performance for the Company
as it started reaping the benefits of capital
and human investments over the years.
The Company ended fiscal 2024 with
disbursements of X 130.26 billion as compared
to X 89.20 billion during fiscal 2023, registering
a growth of ~46% Y-o-Y, and the AUM was
X 298.50 billion at March 31, 2024 compared to
X 220.44 billion at March 31, 2023.

The Company undertook a calibrated approach
in terms of expanding its outreach across
India and opened 18 branches and closed 2
branches during fiscal 2024. There were 216
branches/offices at March 31, 2024 compared
to 200 branches/offices at March 31, 2023. The
employee strength stood at 4,483 employees on
March 31, 2024 compared to 2,751 employees
at March 31, 2023.

The Company reviewed its focus towards non-
housing segment with cautious increase in
disbursements and simultaneously meeting
the mandatory principal business criteria. The
disbursements under non-housing segment
during fiscal 2024 accounted for ~36% of the
total retail mortgage disbursements which
helped boost margins for the Company. The
Company disbursed X10.25 billion towards
construction finance during fiscal 2024
compared to X 5.28 billion during fiscal 2023.

The Company diversified its sourcing network
during fiscal 2024 as it worked on leveraging
its parent and group network in gaining
business. The Company sourced ~15.5% of
business through ICICI group during fiscal 2024
compared to ~10.8% during fiscal 2023. The
Company is focusing to enhance its developer
ecosystem model to gain further business
under prime and near-prime segments.
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The Company in addition to primary mortgage
business, acts as corporate agent for its group
insurance companies and offers their insurance
products to the customers of the Company.
The Company earned third party referral fees
of X 171.3 million in fiscal 2024 as compared
to X 122.4 million in fiscal 2023, registering
a growth of 39.8%.

Loan portfolio

The loan book of the Company stood at
X 225.22 billion at March 31, 2024 as
compared to X 175.44 billion at March 31,
2023, registering a growth of ~28.4%.
Disbursements under housing segment
during fiscal 2024 was X 76.40 billion which
constituted ~64% of the total retail mortgage
disbursements.

Direct assignment of loans has been an
important source of funding for the Company,
which aids in easing leverage for the Company.
During this fiscal, the Company assigned
loans amounting to X 42.88 billion and booked
net gain on derecognition of such loans of X
2.59 billion as per Ind AS 109 as compared
to X 24.03 billion worth of loans assigned in
fiscal 2023 with net gain on derecognition of
X 1.21 billion.

Asset quality

Under Ind AS, asset classification is done
based on expected credit loss model instead
of the earlier incurred loss model under Indian
GAAP. Accordingly, provisions are based on
the Company’s historical loss experience and
future expected credit loss in addition to other
parameters. The Company undertook efforts to
contain its stressed asset portfolio. The gross
NPA portfolio of the Company was X 3.92 billion
at March 31, 2024 translating to GNPA ratio of
1.7% as compared to X 5.61 billion at March
31, 2023 translating to GNPA ratio of 3.1%.
With regards to the retail gross NPA portfolio,
the Company has strengthened its provision
cushioning by building up management
overlays and maintaining a healthy provision
coverage ratio of 39.1% at March 31, 2024 on
it's retail asset portfolio as compared to 25.9%
at March 31, 2023.

Gross NPAs for under construction finance
segment was Nil at March 31, 2024 as
compared to 14.1% at March 31, 2023 on
account of recovery from major NPA account.

Risk Management

The Company has a well-established Enterprise
Risk  Management framework (covering
market, credit, liquidity & operational risks).
This framework governs policies, procedures
and systems to monitor, review and report
key risks. In order to mitigate these risks
a risk management policy has been placed
under the supervision of the Risk Management
Committee (RMC) of the Company and the
same has been approved by the Board. The
Company has laid down appropriate systems
to facilitate reporting pertaining to key risks
to the Board of Directors, Board committees
and the senior management.

The Company is taking the following measures
to ensure the effectiveness of risk management,
maintaining a strong, diversified and resilient
portfolio and ensuring that areas of growth are
well controlled and sustainable:

e Micro segment policies for enabling effective
sourcing

e Branch level
intervention

e Early warning monitoring like early mortality
and non-starters reporting

portfolio monitoring and

The Company has a robust credit risk
management framework implemented through
various policies, manuals and guidelines.
The Company has implemented pre and post
disbursement controls ensuring effective risk
analysis and measurement, periodic monitoring
and reporting based on various parameters and
adherence to amendments in policy changes.
The delegation structure for approval of credit
limits is approved by the Board of Directors.
All credit proposals other than retail loans and
certain other specified products are rated as
per the limit prescribed under the policy by the
risk management team prior to consideration
at the appropriate delegated authority.
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The Company mainly uses non-financial
collateral to mitigate the underlying credit
risk in its regular lending operations. The
Credit Recovery Policy and Valuation Policy
of the Company provides the risk mitigation
guidelines to be followed by it whereby the list
of eligible credit risk mitigants and permissible
stipulations and policy matters has been laid
down.

Technology and digitisation

The Company continues to leverage its parent
ICICI Bank’s technology infrastructure for
shared business applications and processes
and the information and cyber security
practice. The Company has also engaged with
various technology vendors who facilitate
ease in credit underwriting and customer
income assessment processes.

The Company during this fiscal initiated
sourcing through comprehensive loan
originationsystem (LOS) on pilotbasisincertain
branches of the country and plans to go-live
during the upcoming fiscal across all branches
pan-India. This shall help the Company
achieve operational efficiency and reduce
turnaround time and manual interventions.
The Company also plans to provide
enhanced IVR support in the near future. The
Company currently makes use of prescriptive
analytics to manage its collections from
delinquent buckets and intends to scale
up to predictive model in upcoming period
to manage collections and reduce current
bucket flows.

Borrowing profile

The borrowing/resource profile of the Company
is well diversified with reasonably long tenor
and therefore is one of the key strengths of
the Company. The Company has borrowings
through Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs),
Commercial Papers (CPs), Refinance from
NHB, Rupee Term Loans (RTLs) and Fixed

Deposits (FDs) wherein borrowing through a
singleinstrumentdoes notexceed 38% thereby
managing concentration risk. Additionally,
reliance on short tenor instruments like CPs
remains low at 3%. Further, more than 20
private and public sector banks/financial
institutions have lent money to the Company
in form of RTLs/NCDs and institutional
investors like Asset Management Companies,
Banks, Pension Funds, Insurance Companies,
Corporates have invested in its capital market
instruments. The Company has also been
augmenting funds through transfer of loan
exposures of retail mortgage loans primarily
to various Private and Foreign Banks.
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The aggregate mix of FD stands at a healthy
20% of the total borrowings at March 31,
2024, wherein more than 60% of FDs are from
public and remaining 40% from corporates.
Further contracted tenor of majority of FDs is
more than 3 years thereby supporting ALM of
the Company.

While interest rates continue to remain at
elevated levels during the year, the Company
took various steps to reduce its impact
on incremental and outstanding cost of
borrowings. In fiscal 2024, the Company
raised funds amounting to X 29.45 billion
through fixed rate medium to long tenor NCDs,
X 18.38 billion through fixed rate FDs, and
X 33.00 billion through floating/fixed rate
medium and long tenor loans upto 15 years
which includes X 15.00 billion refinance from
National Housing Bank (NHB). These floating
rate loans are linked to benchmarks like
Repo, Treasury Bills (T-Bills), Marginal Cost
of Funds Based Lending Rate (MCLRs) and
NHB Prime Lending Rate (PLR). Additionally,
the Company raised X 42.88 billion through
transfer of loan exposures of retail mortgage
loan book. Further, the Company prepaid
term loans amounting to X 4.64 billion and
negotiated interest rate reduction with various
RTL lenders. The cost of funds increased from
6.9% in fiscal 2023 to 7.1% in fiscal 2024.
These developments including the strategy
to borrow short to medium term fixed rate
liabilities and borrow long term floating rate
liabilities, helped the Company in managing
the cost of funds, support ALM and maintain
the average duration of its liability book at 31
months.

Cost of Funds (%)

7.8
7.2
6.9 7.1
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2021 2022 2023 2024

Asset Liability Management (ALM)

The Company’s policy norms of restricting
reliance on short-term instruments and
ongoing efforts to increase the duration of its
liabilities had placed its ALM in a comfortable
position. Further, the policy of carrying
adequate liquidity and liquidity buffers
insulated the Company from any liquidity
shocks.

The Company uses behavioral analysis of
prepayments and other assumptions in
accordance with the guidelines issued by the
regulator.

Strategy

The Company during the last fiscal 2024
capitalised on its investments made over
the past few years and has consolidated its
position in the housing space, supported
by factors like unmet housing demand and
strong parental support creating scope for
enhanced synergy. The Company’s branch
network reaching 216 branches and offices
spread across India gives it the advantage
to cater to pan-India customers and it
intends to furtherexpandits branchbase going
ahead. The Company offers a diverse product
suite with addition of Prime HL product in its
offerings during the last fiscal 2024 to cater to
the mortgage requirements of each class and
segmentandbuildalow-riskbusinesssegment.

The Company shall in the upcoming fiscal
continue to focus on enhancing operational
efficiency through digitisation of processes
and accelerating underwriting processes.
The Company shall deeply focus to tap the
potential business by leveraging the ICICI
ecosystem for future growth. The Company
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shall focus to build its developer ecosystem
vertical during the upcoming fiscal.

The Company shall continue its efforts
on improving the asset quality through
synchronised use of measures already in place
like digital collections and use of SARFAESI
or other legal tools to drive the recovery
fromdelinquent pool. The Company intends
to focus on early buckets and restricting flow
to deeper buckets, strengthening the legal
enforcement and auction processes to ensure
faster resolution of stressed assets.

The Company intends to leverage its liability
franchise with the support of highest ratings
from leading credit rating agencies and shall
strive to achieve a cost effective and efficient
liability mix as the interest rate cycle is already
at its peak and expected to reverse in the
upcoming fiscal.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The performance highlights for fiscal 2024 are
given below.

¢ Net interest income increased from X 9.30
billion in fiscal 2023 to X 13.23 billion in
fiscal 2024, primarily due to higher interest
income and higher income from sell down.

e Yield improved from 11.0% in fiscal 2023
to 11.5% in fiscal 2024.

e Fee income primarily includes income from
third party referrals, loan related login and
other charges. Fee income improved from
X 0.40 billion in fiscal 2023 to X 0.54 billion
in fiscal 2024.

e Operating expenses primarily include
employee benefits expenses and other
administrative expenses. Employee benefit
expenses increased from X 2.19 billion in
fiscal 2023 to X 3.50 billion in fiscal 2024.
Other administrative expensesincluderent,
rates and taxes, repairs and maintenance,
direct marketing and sourcing business
expenses, collection expenses and

depreciation on assets. Other operating
expenses increased from X 1.87 billion in
fiscal 2023 to X 2.33 billion in fiscal 2024.

Provisions and write-offs decreased
from X 1.78 billion in fiscal 2023 to X 0.63
billion in fiscal 2024 primarily due to
reversal of provision on account of recovery
from a developer NPA account.

The Company appropriated X 1.15 billion
fromretained earningsto Special Reservein
fiscal 2024 in accordance with Section 29C
of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.
Transfer to Special Reserve amounted to
X 0.60 billion in fiscal 2023.

Total AUM increased from X 220.44
billion at March 31, 2023 to X 298.50 billion
at March 31, 2024. Loan book increased
from X 175.44 billion at March 31, 2023 to
X 225.22 billion at March 31, 2024.

GNPA decreased from X 5.61 billion at
March 31, 2023 to X 3.92 billion at March
31, 2024.NNPA also decreased from X 3.56
billion at March 31, 2023 to X 2.39 billion
at March 31, 2024. The gross and net NPA
ratios at March 31, 2024 were 1.7%
(March 31, 2023 - 3.1%) and 1.1%
(March 31, 2023 - 2.0%) respectively.

Investments were X 3.30 billion at March
31, 2024 compared to X 4.99 billion at
March 31, 2023.

Total borrowings increased from X 148.62
billion at March 31, 2023 to X 188.25 billion
at March 31, 2024.

The capital adequacy ratio was 19.9%
at March 31, 2024 compared to 23.5%
at March 31, 2023. The Tier-1 capital
adequacy ratio was 16.6% at March 31,
2024 compared to 19.2% at March 31,
2023.
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e The return on average equity (net worth) improved from 13.0% in fiscal 2023 to 20.6% in
fiscal 2024, primarily on account of increase in profits after tax from X 3.02 billion in fiscal
2023 to X 5.72 billion in fiscal 2024. The total equity of the Company increased from X
28.07 billion at March 31, 2023 to X 33.88 billion at March 31, 2024.

e Other comprehensive income (OCI) increased from X 3.28 billion at March 31, 2023 to X 3.68
billion at March 31, 2024, primarily on account of increase in fair value change on loans held
under “hold and sell” business model.

Key financial indicators of last 5 years
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the key financial ratios.

Particulars Fiscal 2020 | Fiscal 2021 | Fiscal 2022 | Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2024
Return on average equity (%) * 1.3 9.0 13.0 20.6
Return on average assets (%) * 0.1 1.1 1.7 2.7
Earnings per share (Basic &

Diluted) () 0.0 0.2 1.5 2.6 4.8
Net interest margin (%) 2.5 3.0 4.0 5.0 5.2
Debt Equity Ratio (times) 7.7 7.1 6.0 5.3 5.6
Gross NPA (%) 5.9 6.6 5.8 3.1 1.7
Net NPA (%) 33 5.2 4.3 2.0 1.1
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 14.8 20.9 21.9 235 19.9
Fee/lncome (%) 6.2 5.4 4.6 4.1 39
Cost/Income (%) 56.2 45.9 43.4 41.9 42.1
Net Profit Margin (%) * 1.3 10.3 155 21.6

*Insignificant amount.

1. Return on average equity is the ratio of the net profit after tax to monthly average equity
share capital and reserves.
2. Return on average assets is the ratio of net profit after tax to monthly average assets.
3. Cost represents operating expense. Income represents net interest income and non-interest
income.
4. The following ratios are not applicable to the Company - Debtors Turnover, Inventory Turn-
over, Interest Coverage ratio, Current ratio and Operating Profit margin.
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REINFORCING OUR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY )

The Company has undertaken CSR activities through ICICI Foundation for Inclusive Growth (ICICI
Foundation), Society for Innovation and Entrepreneurship (SINE) - IIT Bombay and IIT- Madras for
the FY2024.

ICICI Foundation for Inclusive Growth (“ICICI Foundation”) is the CSR arm of the ICICI Group and
is registered with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs as an implementing agency. It was set up
with certain objectives which include catalyzing and accelerating inclusive social and economic
development through empowerment of the poor by integrated action in the diverse fields connected
to the society in order to augment India’s inclusive growth process. As a part of achieving such
objectives, ICICI Foundation undertakes various skill development initiatives for sustainable
livelihood as well as various initiatives for environment sustainability.

The Company has undertaken certain initiatives in the field of environment and healthcare through
ICICI Foundation.

CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS RAIN WATER HARVESTING IN RURAL GOVERNMENT SCHOOLS,
UNIVERSITIES AND INDUSTRIAL CENTRES

The Company implemented an environmental project pertaining to Rain water harvesting in the
schools, universities and industrial centres in the states of Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka,
Rajasthan, Himachal Pradesh and Punjab.

Rainwater harvesting is the simple
process or technology used to
conserve rainwater by collecting,
storing, conveying and purifying of
rainwater thatruns off from rooftops,
parks, roads, open grounds, etc. for
later use. 95% of the rainwater is
lost through run-off into the seaq,
with hardly 5% of the available
rainwater being put to use.
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CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS HEALTHCARE
EQUIPMENTS

The Company has contributed cardiac stress
test machine with treadmill to KEM Hospital
Mumbai through ICICI Foundation.

The cardiac stress test machine with treadmill
is a state of the art machine which is used for
giving exercise to the patient on treadmill. The
cardioselective radiopharmaceutical is injected
simultaneously for diagnosis of coronary
artery disease which is a non-invasive way of
diagnosis.

2. Contribution to Society for Innovation &
Entrepreneurship (“SINE”): The Company
has made CSR Contribution to SINE which
promotes and incubates technology-based
enterprises at IIT Bombay. The Company
has contributed to a climate tech start-up
involved in building highly energy efficient and
sustainable heating, cooling and other thermal
engineering solutions.

CONTRIBUTIONFORSTART-UPINCUBATION

The CSR Committee of the Company contributed
towards incubation of start-ups which are into
activities related to construction and housing.
Accordingly, during the year the Company did
the following CSR contributions:

1. Contribution to Indian Institute Technology,
Madras (“lIT Madras”): The Company has made
CSR contribution to IIT Madras who acts as an
incubator to a start-up involved in construction
of affordable housing multi-storey apartment
clusters in Tier 1/2 cities using off-site 3D
printing. The said 3D printing technology can
be used for testing of thermal conductivity
and other parameters required for Green
Certification of a 3D Printed building. It can
also be used for testing of on-site 3D printing . L=
process for large-scale. . ENERGETICS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT )

Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

B2 402B, Marathon Innova,

4th Floor Off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg,
Lower Parel,

Mumbai - 400013, India

To
The Members of ICICI Home Finance Company
Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1. OPINION

We have audited the accompanying
Financial Statements of ICICI Home Finance
Company Limited (hereinafter referred as “the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies information and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of ourinformation
and according to the explanations given to
us, the accompanying financial statements
gives a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024, the profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date

Mukund. M. Chitale & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

2nd Floor, Kapur House,
Paranjape Scheme B Road No.1,
Vile Parle East,

Mumbai - 400057, India

2. BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Financial
Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).
Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl)
together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on Financial Statements.

3. KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that,
in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial
Statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Sr.No. Key audit matters How our audit addressed the
key audit matter
1. Expected Credit Loss - Our Audit Approach:
Impairment of carrying value of
loans and advances: Our audit approach was a

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments
(“Ind AS 109”) requires the Company
to provide for impairment of its
Loans and Advances (“Financial
Instruments”) using the Expected
Credit Losses (“ECL”) approach. ECL
involves an estimation of probability-
weightedlossonFinanciallnstruments
over their life, considering reasonable
and supportable information about
past events, current conditions,
and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the
credit quality of the Company’s loans
and advances.

As at March 31, 2024, the carrying
value of loan assets measured at
amortized cost, aggregated Rs.
120,034.3 million (net of allowance of
ECL Rs. 2,385.2 million) constituting
50.25% of the Company’s total assets.

In the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management for:

a. Data inputs - The application of
ECL model requires several data
inputs. This increases the risk of
completeness and accuracy of the
data that has been used to apply
assumptions in the model.

b. Model estimations - Inherently
judgmental models are used to
estimate ECL which involves
determining  Probabilities  of
Default (“PD”), Loss Given Default
(“LGD”) and Exposures at Default
(“EAD”) considering impact of

combination of test of internal
controls and substantive procedures
which included the following:

a. Evaluating the Company’s
policy, as approved by the Board
of Directors, for impairment
of carrying value of loans
and advances and assessing
appropriateness of the Company’s
impairment methodologies as
required under Ind AS 109.

b. Obtained an  understanding
of the ECL model adopted by
the Company including the key
inputs and assumptions including
management overlays.

c. Testing the design and
effectiveness of internal controls
over the following:

e Key controls over the
completeness and accuracy
of the key inputs, data and
assumptions into the Ind
AS 109 impairment models.

e Keycontrolsovertheapplication
of the staging criteria
consistent with the definitions
applied in accordance with
the policy approved by the
Board of Directors including
the appropriateness of
the qualitative factors.

e Management’'s controls over
authorisation and calculation
of post model adjustments to
the output of the ECL model.
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Sr.No.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

infrequent past events on future
probability of default and forward
-looking macro - economic
factors. The PD and the LGD
are the key drivers of estimation
complexity in the ECL and as a
result are considered the most
significant judgmental aspect
of the Company’s modelling
approach.

c. Defining qualitative/ quantitative

thresholds for ‘significant increase
in credit risk’ (“SICR”) and ‘default’
particularly for corporate portfolio,
wherein  Company’s credit risk
function also segregates loans
with specific risk characteristics
based on trigger events identified
using sufficient and credible
information available from
internal sources supplemented
by external data. Impairment
allowance for these exposures is
reviewed and accounted for on a
case-by-case basis.

d. Also,forasampleof ECLallowance
on loan assets tested:

e Sample testing over key
inputs, data and assumptions
impacting ECL calculations
to assess the completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data,
reasonableness of economic
forecasts, weights, model
assumptions applied, and make
inquiries with management.

e We tested the operating
effectiveness of the controls for
staging of loans and advances
based on their past-due status.

e We evaluated reasonableness
of LGD estimates by comparing
actual recoveries post the loan
asset becoming credit impaired
with estimates of LGD.

e Tested a sample of performing
(stage 1) loans to assess
whether any SICR or loss
indicators were present
requiring them to be classified
under stage 2 or 3.

e We tested the mathematical
accuracy and computation of
the allowances by using the
same input data used by the
Company.

e We have relied on the PD’s and
LGD provided by the ICICI Bank
Limited, the Holding Company,
for Corporate Real Estate
Funding (CREF) portfolio.

e. Testing management’s controls
on compliance with disclosures to
confirm the compliance with the
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Sr. No.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

d. Qualitative and quantitative
factors used in staging the loan
and estimation of behavioral life
for the loan assets measured at
amortized cost.

e. Adjustments to model driven ECL
results to address emerging trends
including management overlay.

Refer Note 3.8 and 44 of the Financial
Statements.

provisions of relevant provisions
of Ind AS 109 and the RBI.

f. Evaluating the appropriateness
of the Company’s Ind AS 109
impairment methodologies and
reasonableness of assumptions
used.

g. We also made management
enquiries with respect to the
overlay quantum.

h. For models which were changed
and updated during the year,
evaluating whether the changes
were appropriate by assessing
the updated model methodology.

i. Discussed with the management,
the approach, interpretation,
systems and controlsimplemented
in relation to probability of default
and stage-wise bifurcation of
product-wise portfolios for timely
ascertainment of stress and early
warning signals.

j- Read and assessed the
disclosures included in the
financial statements in respect
of expected credit losses with
the requirements of Ind AS 107
Financial Instruments: Disclosure
(“Ind AS 107”) and Ind AS 1009.

Assessment ofbusiness model for
classification and measurement
of financial assets

Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
contains three principal measurement
categories for financial assets i.e.

e Amortised Cost;

Our Audit Approach:

We have followed the following audit
procedures:

a. Evaluated the Company’s policy
as approved by the board of
directors for identification of
loan portfolio on sample basis,
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Sr. No.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

e Fair Value through  Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI);
and

e Fair Value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL).

We have considered business
model assessment as a key audit
matter because of the management
judgementinvolvedindeterminingthe
intent (to hold and to sell) at the time
of origination for holding financial
assets which could lead to different
classification and measurement
outcomes of the financial assets
and its significance to the financial
statements of the Company.

As at March 31, 2024, the carrying
value of loan assets measured at
FVOCI aggregated X 105,183.6
million (net of allowance) constituting
44.03% of the Company’s total
assets.

Refer Note 3.4 of the Financial
Statements

b. Assessing the

which needs to be considered
under the business model of “Hold
and Sell”.

design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controls over management’s
intent at the origination, to hold
or to sell a financial asset, and
the approval mechanism for such
stated intent and classification of
such financial assets.

c. For financial assets classified

at amortised cost, we tested
controls over the classification
of such assets and subsequent
measurement of assets at
amortised cost. Further, we
tested key internal controls over
monitoring of such financial assets
to check whether there have been
any subsequent sales of financial
assets classified at amortised cost
and the subsequent sale does
not alter the hold category of the
financial assets.

d. Test of details of classification and

measurement of financial assets
in accordance with management’s
intent.

e. We selected a sample of financial

assets entered during the year to
test whether their classification
as at the Balance Sheet date is in
accordance with management’s
intent.

f. For a selection of loans held at

FVOCI, tested management’s
calculation of fair valuation at
Balance Sheet date.
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Sr. No. Key audit matters How our audit addressed the
key audit matter
3. Information Technology (IT) Our Audit Approach:

Systems and Controls

The Company is dependent on its
Information Technology (“IT”) systems
due to the significant number of
transactions that are processed daily
across such multiple and discrete IT
systems. Also, IT application controls
are critical to ensure that changes
to applications and underlying data
are made in an appropriate manner
and under controlled environments.
Appropriate controls contribute to
mitigating the risk of potential fraud
or errors as a result of changes to
applications and data.

On account of the pervasive use of its
IT systems, the testing of the general
computer controls (i.e. user access
management, segregation of duties
and controls over system change) of
the key IT systems used in financial
reporting was considered to be a Key

With the assistance of our IT
specialists, we have obtained an
understanding of the Company’s
IT applications, databases and
operating systems relevant to
financial reporting and the control
environment. For these elements
of the IT infrastructure the areas of
our focus included access security
(including controls over privileged
access), program change controls
and segregation of duties.

In  particular, we have tested
the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the
Company’s general IT controls over
the key IT systemsrelevant to financial
reporting. This included evaluation of
Company’s controls over segregation
of duties and access rights being
provisioned / modified based on
duly approved requests, access for
exit cases being revoked in a timely

Audit Matter.

manner and access of all users being
recertified during the period of audit.

4. Information other than the financial
statements and Auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors
Report (which includes Corporate Governance
Report and Management Discussion and
Analysis) but does not include the Financial
Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
These reports are expected to be made
available to us after the date of our auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does
not cover the other information and we will

not express any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the other information included
in the above reports, if we conclude that there
is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance and determine
the actions under the applicable laws and
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5. Responsibilities of Management and
Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

TheCompany’sBoardofDirectorsisresponsible
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

6. Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on auditing will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with
Standardsonauditing, we exercise professional
judgmentand maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence thatis
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal
financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.
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iii. Evaluatetheappropriatenessofaccounting
policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Company to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the
misstatement in the statement that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the statement may
be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in; (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effects of any identified
misstatements in the statement.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the
audit of financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

i. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s
report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, and on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the Company as we
considered appropriate and according to
the information and explanations given to
us, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

ii. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act,
we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the
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c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial
Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act,
read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of written representations
received from the directors as on March
31, 2024, taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from
being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respectto the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to the
financial statements of the Company with
reference to these Financial Statements
and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, we request you to refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B” to this
report.

Inouropinion,the managerialremuneration
for the year ended March 31, 2024, has
been paid / provided by the Company to its
directors in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

With respect to the other matters to
be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact

Auditors’ report

of pending litigations on the financial
position in its financial statements
— Refer Note 39 to the financial
statements;

. The Company has made provision, as

required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative
contracts - Refer Note 6 to the financial
statements;

There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

(a) The Management has represented
that no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries (Refer footnote 4 in Note
8 to financial statements);

(b) The Management has represented
that no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party
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(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(Refer note 3 in Note 16 to financial
statements); and

(c) Based on audit procedures that
have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances;
nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The final dividend proposed in the
previous year, declared and paid by
the Company during the year, is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act,
as applicable. The Board of Directors of
the Company has proposed final dividend
for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The amount of
dividend proposed is in accordance with

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302049E

Amit Hundia

Partner

Membership No. 120761
UDIN: 24120761BKCMQF1248
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 20, 2024

section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

As provisionto Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(qg)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trail
as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 106655W

A. V. Kamat

Partner

Membership No. 039585
UDIN: 24039585BKCZKG8407
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 20, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph [7(i)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our report of even date

According to the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Assets and
Intangible Assets:

a.

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and the relevant
details of Right-of-use Assets.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-Use Assets have been physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the operations of the Company
and on the basis of explanations received no material discrepancies were noticed during
the verification.

Based on our examination of the records of the Company provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds of immovable properties included in Property, Plant and Equipment (other
than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or Intangible Assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or is pending against the Company during the year
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The Company is primarily engaged in lending business. Accordingly, it does not hold any
inventories. Thus paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) As stated in note 2 in Note 16 to the financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks
or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Basis the information
and explanation provided to us and basis our audit procedures undertaken, we have not
come across any difference between the information submitted in the quarterly returns /
statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions when compared
with the books of account and other relevant information provided by the Company.
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iii. During the year, in the ordinary course of its business, the Company has made investments
in, provided security to and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured and
unsecured, to companies, firms, LLP’s and other parties, with respect to such investments,
security and loans and advances:

(a) The Company is primarily engaged in lending activities and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(iii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) Considering that the Company is a Non — Banking Finance Company, the investments
made, security given and the terms and conditions of all loans and advances granted in the
nature of loans during the year are prima facie not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.
According to information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not provided
any guarantees during the year.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans (together referred to as “loan
assets”), the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated. Note 3.8 to the Financial Statements explains the Company’s accounting policy
relating to impairment of financial assets which includes loans assets. In accordance with
the policy, loan assets with balances as at 31 March, 2024, aggregating X 3,916.0 million
were categorised as credit impaired (“Stage 3”) and X 8,575.6 million were categorised
as those where the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition (“Stage
2”). Disclosures in respect of such loans have been provided in note 44 to the Financial
Statements. Additionally, out of loans and advances in the nature of loans with balances
as at the year-end aggregating X 215,856.5 million, where credit risk has not significantly
increased since initial recognition (categorised as “Stage 1”), delinquencies in the repayment
of principal and payment of interest aggregating X 58.6 million were also identified, although
of less than 31 days. In all other cases, the repayment of principal and interest is regular.
Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business and the volume of information
involved, it is not practicable to provide an itemised list of loan assets where delinquencies
in the repayment of principal and interest have been identified.

(d) Inrespect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company,
there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days as at the Balance Sheet date except
for the following cases as on March 31, 2024:

(X in million)

Number of Cases

Principal Amount
Overdue

Interest Amount
Overdue

Total Amount
Overdue

2,468

111.6

177.1

288.7

Further, basis discussions with the management we understand that the reasonable steps
have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal and interest.

(e) The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Auditors’ report

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans that were
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Thus,
reporting under paragraph 3(iii) (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable, and hence not commented
upon.

The Company is a registered deposit taking housing finance company and accordingly
basis the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India, the provision of sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder are not applicable to
the Company. Further, we are informed by management of the Company that no order has
been passed by the Company Law Board, National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank
of India or any other court.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Thus, reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In respect of Statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax,
cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities. As
explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, cess and other material statutory dues which
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, there are no dues of provident fund, employees’ state insurance
and goods and services tax, cess that have not been deposited on account of any dispute
except, in case of following dues of income tax which have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes:
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Name of the Nature of the Disputed Period to which Forum where dispute is
statute dues Amount the amount pending
(X In million) relates
The Income Commissioner of Appeal
Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 27.4| FY.2007-08 |(Income-tax)
Income Tax Appellate
Income Tax 13.7| FY.2008-09 |Tribunal, Mumbai
Commissioner of Appeal
Income Tax 114.8| FY.2010-11 |(Income-tax)
Commissioner of Appeal
Income Tax 200.4| FY.2011-12 |(Income-tax)
Commissioner of Appeal
Income Tax 1.2| FY.2019-20 [(Income-tax)
Total 357.5

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, there are
no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of account but have been
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

iX. (a) Accordingto the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) Basis the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not been
declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowl-
edge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed during the year by the Company were
applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained, other than temporary deploy-
ment pending application of proceeds.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis do not seem to have used during the year for long-term purposes.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X.  (a) During the year, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (x)
(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
and hence reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.
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(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, there have been 28 instances of fraud on the Company by its
customers amounting to X 137.1 million as disclosed in Note 65 to the financial statements,
which have been duly reported/reporting of the same is in process to the National Housing
Bank. We did not come across any instances of fraud by the Company.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed
by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year and provided to us, while determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have taken into consideration, the internal audit reports for the period under audit
issued to the Company till the date while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has entered into
non-cash transactions with one of the directors, during the year, for transfer of one of the
assets for Nil value which is as per the provisions of section 192 of the Act.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934. Thus,
paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is a registered Housing Finance Company (HFC) and holds a valid Certifi-
cate of Registration (CoR) from National Housing Bank and hence reporting under para-
graph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under paragraph 3
(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the Group.

Annual Report 2023-24 ﬁ



@lClCl Home Finance

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial
year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year
and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, undrawn credit lines, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance
Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

xX. (a) TheCompany hasfully spenttherequired amounttowards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount on account of ongoing projects or other than
ongoing projects for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VI to the
Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135
of Companies Act as disclosed in Note 80 to the Financial Statements.

xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures of the
Company and hence the paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Singhi & Co. For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 302049E Firm registration No. 106655W
Amit Hundia A. V. Kamat

Partner Partner

Membership No. 120761 Membership No. 039585

UDIN: 24120761BKCMQF1248 UDIN: 24039585BKCZKG8407
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 20, 2024 Date: April 20, 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph [7 (ii) (f)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
the Financial Statements (“the internal financial controls over financial reporting”) of the
ICICI Home Finance Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India” (ICAIl). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

4. A Company’sinternal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

5. (i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and

(iii)Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

7. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024 based on the criteria for internal financial control
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.
For Singhi & Co. For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302049E Firm registration No. 106655W
Amit Hundia A. V. Kamat
Partner Partner
Membership No. 120761 Membership No. 039585
UDIN: 24120761BKCMQF1248 UDIN: 24039585BKCZKG8407
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: April 20, 2024 Date: April 20, 2024
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Balance sheet at March 31, 2024 Z in million )

. At At
Particulars NoteNo.  \jarch31,2024  March 31, 2023
I  ASSETS
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4 4,502.3 4,373.1
Bank balance other than above 5 25 25
Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 7 23.4 20.7
(ii) Other receivables - -
Loans 8 225,217.9 175,436.2
Investments 9 3,298.4 4,991.6
Other financial assets 10 3,189.9 2,081.6
236,234.4 186,905.7
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Current tax assets (net) 41 732.0 1,004.4
Property, plant and equipment 11 1,600.3 1,253.2
Capital work-in-progress 11 0.1 7.5
Intangible assets under development 12 54.1 334
Intangible assets 12 75.2 93.1
Other non-financial assets 13 190.8 151.4
2,652.5 2,543.0
238,886.9 189,448.7
Il LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Payables
Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 92.2 89.3
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 14 775.2 572.0
and small enterprises
Other Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 - -
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 14 - -
and small enterprises
Debt securities 15 74,014.6 54,563.6
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 16 71,9125 53,237.4
Deposits 17 38,005.4 36,500.4
Subordinate liabilities 18 4,318.8 4,316.8
Other financial liabilities 19 14,505.4 11,281.5
203,624.1 160,561.0
NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Provisions 20 252.5 65.0
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 41 912.0 565.3
Other non-financial liabilities 21 215.9 187.8
1,380.4 818.1
EQUITY
Equity share capital 22 12,035.3 12,035.3
Other equity 23 21,847.1 16,034.3
33,882.4 28,069.6
238,886.9 189,448.7
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For M/s Singhi & Co. For M/s Mukund M. Chitale & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants ICICI Home Finance Company Limited
Firm registration no.: 302049E Firm registration no.: 106655W
Amit Hundia A. V. Kamat Rakesh Jha Vineeta Rajadhyaksha
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No.:120761 Membership No.:039585 DIN-00042075 DIN-10483840
Place: Mumbai Shyamsunder Tailor Priyanka Shetty
Date : April 20, 2024 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 % in million )
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars NoteNo.  \jarch 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations
Interest income 24 23,138.8 17,732.6
Fees and commission income 25 535.5 395.8
Net gain on fair value changes 26 138.7 150.7
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments
- under amortised cost category 480.3 430.0
- under fair value through other comprehensive income 2,114.5 784.3
Total revenue from operations 26,407.8 19,493.4
Other income 27 74.8 14.1
Total income 26,482.6 19,507.5
Expenses
Finance costs 28 12,639.2 9,536.7
Fees and commission expense 29 97.1 65.8
Impairment on financial instruments/write-offs 30 626.1 1,775.0
(including write-offs on stressed loans transferred to ARCs)
Employee benefit expenses 31 3,499.9 2,193.6
Depreciation and amortisation expense - 3344 270.4
Other expenses 32 1,901.4 1,797.8
Total expenses 19,098.1 15,639.3
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 7,384.5 3,868.2
Exceptional items - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax 7,384.5 3,868.2
Tax expense 41
Current tax 1,445.4 827.6
Deferred tax 215.9 22.4
Profit/(Loss) for the year 5,723.2 3,018.2
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit plan (21.0) 8.5
Income tax impact 5.3 (2.1)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedge
Fair value change on derivatives designated as cash flow hedge - 246.8
Income tax impact - (62.1)
Financial instruments through other comprehensive income
Fair value changes on loans classified under “Hold & Sell” business model 540.7 1,964.6
Income tax impact (136.1) (494.4)
Total other comprehensive income 388.9 1,661.3
Total comprehensive income for the year 6,112.1 4,679.5
Earnings per equity share 36
Face value X 10/- per share (previous period: X 10/- per share)
(1) Basic () 4.76 2.58
(2) Diluted () 4.76 2.58

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Singhi & Co. For M/s Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm registration no.: 302049E Firm registration no.: 106655W
Amit Hundia A. V. Kamat

Partner Partner

Membership No.:120761 Membership No.:039585

Place: Mumbai
Date : April 20, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ICICI Home Finance Company Limited

Rakesh Jha Vineeta Rajadhyaksha
Chairman Managing Director & CEO
DIN-00042075 DIN-10483840
Shyamsunder Tailor Priyanka Shetty

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Annual Report 2023-24 ﬁ



Statement of changes in equity

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024  in million )

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance at April 1, 2022 10,987.5
Changes in equity share capital during the year 1,047.8
Balance at March 31, 2023 12,035.3

Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2024 12,035.3

B OTHER EQUITY

Other

Reserves and surplus P
comprehensive income

Particulars Retained earnings Capital Total
Statutory | General | Securities contribution | cqoh flow | Loans through
reserve reserve | Premium | Acturial gain/ hedge reserve oci
(losses) Others
Balance at
April 1, 2022 5,137.8 | 249.4 - 4.3 2,900.2 147.1 (184.7) 1,809.4 | 10,063.5
Profit for the year - - - - 3,018.2 - - - 3,018.2
Dividend - - - - (164.7) - - - (164.7)
Securities Premium
received during the - | 14522 - - - - - 1,452.2
year
Transfer to ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
retained earnings
Share based
payments to - - - - - 3.8 - - 3.8
employees
Cash flow hedge ) ) ) ) ) ) 184.7 ) 184.7
reserve
Actuarial gains/ ) ) ) 6.4 ) ) ) ) 6.4

(losses)

Fair value changes
on loans classified
under “Hold & Sell”
business model

- - - - - - - 2,057.2 2,057.2

Gain/(loss)
reclassified to
Profit & loss
(net-off tax)

- . _ - - § - (587.0)| (587.0)

Transfer to / from

604.0 - - -| (604.0) - - - _
reserve

Balance at

March 31, 2023 5,741.8 | 249.4 | 1,452.2 10.7 5,149.7 150.9 - 3,279.6 | 16,034.3
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X in million

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

Other

Reserves and surplus P
comprehensive income

Capital

Retained earnings
contribution

Particulars Total
Securities

Premium

General
reserve

Cash flow |Loans through
hedge reserve ocClI

Statutory

reserve Acturial gain/

(losses) Others

Balance at
April 1,2023

Profit for the year - - - -
Dividend - - - -

5,741.8 | 249.4 | 1,452.2 10.7 5,149.7 150.9 - 3,279.6 | 16,034.3

5,723.2
(300.9)

5,723.2 = = =
(300.9) = = =

Securities Premium
received during the - - - - - = = - -
year

Transfer to
retained earnings

Share based
payments to - - - - - 1.6 - - 16
employees

Cash flow hedge
reserve

Actuarial gains/
(losses)

Others - - - - - - - -

(15.7) = = = = (15.7)

Fair value changes
on loans classified
under “Hold & Sell”
business model

1916.4 1916.4

Gain/(loss)
reclassified to
Profit & loss
(net-off tax)

(1,511.8) | (1,511.8)

Transfer to / from

1,145.0 = = =
reserve

(1,145.0) - - - -

Balance at

March 31, 2024 6,886.8

249.4 | 1,452.2 (5.0) 9,427.0 152.5 - 3,684.2 | 21,847.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ICICI Home Finance Company Limited

For M/s Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no.: 302049E
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Statement of Cash flows

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

>4

X in million

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Interest Income on loans
Depreciation/amortisation
Loss on sale or write off of fixed assets
Fair value change in investment
Interest expense on borrowings
Impairment on financial instruments
Impairment on investments
Share based payment to employees
Fair value changes in gratuity
Net (gain)/loss on derecognition of financial instruments

Interest income on investments

Interest income received
Interest expenses on borrowings paid

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for increase or decrease in:
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Other non-financial assets
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade payables
(Decrease) / Increase in Other financial liabilities
(Decrease) / Increase in Other non financial liabilities
(Decrease) / Increase in Provisions
Loans given (net movement)

Cash (used in) / generated from operations before taxes
Income taxes paid (net)

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities - A

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment & Intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment & Intangible assets
Net (Purchase)/sale of mutual funds
Purchase of investments (other than mutual funds)
Sale of investments (other than mutual funds)
Sale of investments classified as assets held for sale
Interest received on investments

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities - B

7,384.5 3,868.2
(22,529.8) (17,273.9)
334.4 270.4
16.0 6.8
(138.7) (150.7)
12,639.2 9,536.7
626.1 1,775.0

1.6 38

(21.0) 8.5
(2,594.8) (1,214.3)
(227.5) (228.9)
(4,510.0) (3,398.4)
22,257.9 17,021.0
(11,651.7) (9,416.0)
6,096.2 4,206.6
(63.0) 16.4
1,486.5 1,376.9
(39.6) 13.8
206.1 167.7
2,881.3 1,308.9
28.1 33.9
187.6 (29.7)
(49,534.9) (30,033.4)
(38,751.7) (22,938.9)
(1,173.0) (875.5)
(39,924.7) (23,814.4)
(267.6) (268.9)
42.0 1.6
1,724.3 1,198.5

- (550.0)

100.0 500.0

- 425.7

235.1 243.7
1,833.8 1,550.6
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Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024 % in million )
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital (including share premium) - 2,500.0
Proceeds from borrowings® 121,368.7 101,653.6
Repayment of borrowings? (82,696.4) (79,937.0)
Repayment of lease liability (including interest payments)* (151.3) (108.6)
Dividend Paid (300.9) (164.7)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities - C 38,220.1 23,943.3
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 129.2 1,679.5
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,373.1 2,693.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 4,502.3 4,373.1
Notes :

1 Cash and cash equivalents consists of :

(i) Balances in current accounts 2,502.7 1,374.3
(ii) Other cash and cash equivalents (TREPs lending) 1,999.6 2,998.8
Less: Working capital demand loan - -

Total 4,502.3 4,373.1

2 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7 on “Statement of Cash Flows.”

3 a) Net movement in Borrowings (including Debt Securities), Deposits and Subordinated Liabilities amounting to X 39,633.1 million
(Previous year: X 21,051.2 million) includes fresh issuance amounting to X 121,368.7 million (previous year: X 101,653.6 million),
repayments amounting to X 82,696.4 million (previous year: X 79,937.0 million) and due to increase in movement in non cash com-
ponents such as interest accrual/unamortised cost amounting to X 960.8 million (previous year: decrease by X 665.3 million).

b) Refer note no. 38(a) for movement in lease liability.

4 There was no financing activities that affect the capital and asset structure of the Company without the use of cash and cash
equivalents.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Singhi & Co. For M/s Mukund M. Chitale & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants ICICI Home Finance Company Limited

Firm registration no.: 302049E Firm registration no.: 106655W

Amit Hundia A. V. Kamat Rakesh Jha Vineeta Rajadhyaksha
Partner Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No.:120761 Membership No.:039585 DIN-00042075 DIN-10483840

Place: Mumbai Shyamsunder Tailor Priyanka Shetty

Date : April 20, 2024 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Notes Forming Part Of The Accounts

1. Corporate Information

ICICI Home Finance Company Limited (the
Company) is a public limited company domiciled
in India and incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile
Companies Act, 1956). The Company is a
deposit taking Housing Finance Company
registered with the National Housing Bank
(NHB) and is governed by the provisions of
the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) (Master Directions).
The Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of
ICICI Bank Limited. The Company’s registered
office is at ICICI Bank Towers, Bandra-Kurla
Complex, Bandra, Mumbai, India. The principal
place of business of the Company is at ICICIHFC
Tower, | B Nagar, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri,
Mumbai. The Company is engaged in providing
loans for the purpose of acquiring, constructing,
erecting, improving, developing any house,
flats or buildings or any form of real estate
or any part or portion thereof. The Company
also provides loans for specified purposes
against the security of immovable property
and loan against gold. The redeemable and
non-convertible debentures of the Company
are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

The financial statements were approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on
April 20, 2024.

2. Statement of Compliance, Basis
of preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) and relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter and guidance given by RBI

through its Master Directions and other relevant
guidelines/circulars.

2.2 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments and plan assets of defined
benefit plans that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period as explained
in the material accounting policies information
below. The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Accounting policies have been consistently
applied, except where a newly-issued Ind AS is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing Ind
AS requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees (X), which is the functional and the
presentation currency of the Company. Except
as otherwise indicated, financial information
presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded
to the nearest million with one decimal.

2.4 Presentation and disclosure of financial
statements

The Company prepares its Balance Sheet,
Statement of profit and loss and Statement
of changes in equity in the format prescribed
in the Division Ill of Schedule Il of the Act
applicable for preparation and presentation
of the financial statements. The Statement of
Cash Flows has been prepared and presented
as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 ‘Statement
of Cash Flows'. Notes forming part of Financial
Statements are prepared as per Ind AS and as
required by Annexure lll and IV of the Master
Directions. The Company presents its Balance
Sheet in the order of liquidity. An analysis
regarding recovery or settlement within 12
months after the reporting date (current) and
more than 12 months after the reporting date
(non-current) is presented in note no. 33.
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asset and financial liabilities are
generally reported gross in the Balance Sheet.
They are offset and reported net when thereis a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

3. Material Accounting policies
information

3.1 Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Ind AS requires that the
management make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported
amount of assets, liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date
of the financial statements and the income and
expense for the year. The actual results could
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively, and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the relevant note in the notes to the
financial statements.

Accounting policies of the Company require
critical accounting estimates that involve
complex and subjective judgments and the
use of assumptions, some of which may be
for matters that are inherently uncertain and
susceptible to change. Such critical accounting
estimates could change from period to period
and may have a material impact on the
Company’'s financial condition, changes in
financial condition or results of operations.
Critical accounting estimates could also
involve estimates where management could
have reasonably used another estimate in the
current accounting period. The critical policies
that involves critical accounting estimates

includes fair value measurement of financial
instruments, business model assessment for
classification and measurement of financial
assets, recognition of gain on derecognition
of financial assets, impairment of financial
instruments, recognition of interest income/
expenses using Effective Interest Rate (EIR)
method, fair value of employee share options,
determination of useful life of Property, Plant
and Equipment, determination of useful life
of Intangible assets, measurement of assets
and obligations of defined benefit employee
plans, measurement of provisions and
contingencies and recognition of deferred tax.
Management believes that the estimates used
in the preparation of the Company’s financial
statements are prudent and reasonable.

3.2 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured and there exists reasonable certainty
of its recovery.

a. Interest income

Interest income for all interest earning financial
assets subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) are recognised as ‘interest
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss on
an accrual basis using the Effective Interest
Rate method (EIR).

The EIR method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of
allocating the interest income over the relevant
period. The EIR is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset on
initial recognition. When calculating the EIR,
the Company estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial asset
but does not consider future credit losses.
The EIR calculation includes all fees received,
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Notes Forming Part Of The Accounts

transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts. Where the estimates of cash flows
have been revised, the carrying amount of the
financial asset is adjusted to reflect the actual
and revised cash flows, discounted at the assets
original EIR. The adjustment is recognised as
interest income/expense in the period in which
the revision is made.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit
impaired financial assets. For credit-impaired
financial assets, interest income is calculated
by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of
the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less the allowance for
expected credit losses).

Interest on Government Securities and bank
deposits are recognised on a time proportionate
basis.

b. Income from Direct assignment

Gains arising out of direct assignment
transactions comprise the difference between
the interest on the loan portfolio and the
applicable rate at which the direct assignment
is entered into with the assignee, also known
as the right of Excess Interest Spread (EIS). The
future EIS based on the expected cash flows
on the execution of the transaction, discounted
at the applicable rate entered into with the
assignee is recorded upfront in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The EIS is reassessed
annually and any subsequent increase or
decrease in the fair value of future EIS is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c. Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income other than those
that are integral part of EIR are recognised
when the Company satisfies the performance
obligation over time and as the related services
are performed. Transactional charges in nature
of bounce charges and foreclosure charges are
recognised on realisation.

d. Rental income

Income from operating leases are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the
contractual rentals unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which benefits derived from the leased
assets.

e. Other Income

Other Income represents income earned from
the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income
is established as per the terms of the contract.

Interest on tax refunds where quantum of
accruals cannot be ascertained with reasonable
certainty, are recognised as income only when
revenue is virtually certain which generally
coincides with receipts.

3.3 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense
calculated using the EIR on respective financial
liabilities subsequently measured at amortised
cost, finance charges in respect of assets
acquired on finance lease and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs.

3.4 Financial assets
Recognition and Initial measurement

Financial assets include cash, or an equity
instrument of another entity, or a contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset
from another entity. Few examples of financial
assets are loan receivables, investment in
equity and debt instruments and cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial assets, other than loans, are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on
which the Company becomes the party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Loans are recognised when the fund transfer is
initiated or disbursement cheque is issued.

At initial recognition, the Company measures
a financial asset at its fair value including
transaction costs (other than those measured
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)) that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. However, trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price.

Classification of financial assets

Except where financial assets that are
irrevocably designated at initial recognition as
FVTPL, the Company classifies and measures
all its financial assets based on the Company’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the assets either at amortised
costoratfairvaluethrough othercomprehensive
income:

(A) Amortised cost

The Company classifies the financial assets
at amortised cost if the contractual cash
flows represents solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding and as per it's business model
where the management is intending to hold
these financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows. However, considering
the asset-liability maturity gap, liquidity
plans and funding needs, it may enter into
transactions to sell some of the financial assets
classified at amortised cost to banks/other
lending institutions without affecting the SPPI
criteria of the remaining portfolio measured at
amortised cost.

(B) Fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)

The Company classifies the financial assets as
FVOCI, if the contractual cash flows represents
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding and it's business

model is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flow and selling the financial assets.

On derecognition of the financial assets
measured at FVOCI, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in Other Comprehensive
income (OCI) is reclassified from the equity to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(C) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as FVTPL unless
they are classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI.

Equity instruments

The Company measures all equity investments
at FVTPL, unless the management has elected
to classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as equity instruments at FVOCI,
when such instruments meet the definition of
Equity under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. Such
classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The Company follows
trade date method of accounting for purchase
and sale of investments. Profit or loss on sale of
investments is determined on First in First out
(FIFO) basis.

Subsequent measurement of financial
assets

(A) Financial assets at amortised cost

These financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost as per EIR method.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, impairment losses
and gains and losses on derecognition are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(B) Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets included within the FVOCI
category are measured subsequently at each
reporting date at fair value. Interest income
and impairment loss are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Fair value
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movements on subsequent measurement are
recognised in the OCI.

(C) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets included within the FVTPL
category are measured subsequently at
each reporting date at fair value. Net gain or
loss, including interest and other income are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company changes classification of its
financial assets only on account of changes in
its business model for managing those financial
assets. The classification and measurement
requirements related to the new category
apply prospectively from the first day of the first
reporting period following the changes in the
business model that results in reclassification.

3.5 Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

The Company classifies these instruments
as financial liabilities or equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual terms of the instruments.

Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the face value and proceeds
received in excess of the face value are
recognised as securities premium.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified and measured
at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified at FVTPL, if it is classified as held-
for trading or it is designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition. All financial liabilities, other than
classified at FVTPL, are classified at amortised
cost in which case they are initially measured

at fair value, net of transaction costs and
subsequently at amortised cost using effective
interest rate.

3.6 Determination of fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument on
initial recognition is normally the transaction
price (fair value of the consideration given or
received). Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Company determines the fair value of
financial instruments that are quoted in active
markets using the quoted bid/ask prices and
using valuation techniques/methods for other
instruments. Valuation techniques/methods
include discounted cash flow method and other
unobservable inputs.

3.7 Modification and derecognition of
financial assets and liabilities

A modification of a financial asset occurs
when the contractual terms governing the cash
flows of a financial asset are renegotiated
or otherwise modified between initial
recognition and maturity of the financial asset.
A modification affects the amount and/or timing
of the contractual cash flows either immediately
or at a future date.

The Company renegotiates loans to customers
in financial difficulty, including loans where relief
measures on account of COVID-19 pandemic
was given, to maximise collection and minimise
the risk of default. Relief is generally given in the
form of extension of loan tenure, moratorium
on payment of equated monthly instalments
(EMIs) for a certain period with/without step-up
EMI subsequently. On modification, the financial
assets are assessed for de-recognition principle
and financial assets are de-recognised when,
and only when: (a) the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expires, or
(b) transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition as per the principles
laid down under Ind AS 109 - Financial
Instruments.
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When the contractual cash flows of a financial
asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified
and the renegotiation or modification does not
resultinthe derecognition of thatfinancial asset,
the Company recalculates the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset and difference, if
any, inthe gross carrying amount of the financial
asset is recognised as modification gain or loss
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets are de-recognised when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or where
the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership. If
substantially all the risks and rewards have
been neither retained nor transferred and the
Company retains control, the assets continues
to be recognised to the extent of it's continuing
involvement.

As loans transferred to asset reconstruction
companies, against  the  consideration
of security receipts issued by the Asset
Reconstruction Companies(ARCs), do not meet
the derecognition criteria, are not de-recognised
till such time as the ARCs redeem the security
receipts. Further, any loans transferred to ARCs
against upfront consideration are derecognised
and corresponding gain/(loss) on such transfer
is recognised at the time of transfer/sale.

The Company transfers loans through direct
assignment transactions. The transferred
loans are de-recognised and gains/losses are
accounted for, only if it transfers substantially
all risks and rewards specified in the underlying
assigned loan contracts. In accordance with
the Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, on de-
recognition of a financial asset for assigned
transactions, present value of future cash flows
accruing in the form of EIS over the expected life
of the assigned loansis recognised as receivable
with a corresponding credit to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The Company continues to perform servicing
of the assigned loans and receives servicing
fee from the assignee. If the fee to be received

is not expected to compensate the Company
adequately for performing the servicing
activities, a servicing liability for the servicing
obligation is recognised at its fair value. If
the fee to be received is expected to be more
than adequate compensation for the servicing
activities, a servicing asset is recognised.
Corresponding amount is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they
are extinguished, that is when the obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

3.8 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances
using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
under Ind AS 109 for the financial assets and
loan commitments, which are not fair valued
through profit or loss. ECL for loans and
advances is measured at an amount equal to
the 12-month ECL (ECL allowance on default
events on the financial instruments that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date), unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition
in which case that is measured at lifetime
ECL (ECL that results from all possible default
events over the life of the financial instrument).
Equity instruments are measured at fair value
and not subject to impairment loss. ECL
allowance (or reversal) recognised during the
year is recognised as expenses/(income) in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets are normally written-off, either
partially or in full, when there is no reasonable
expectation of further recovery. Subsequent
recoveries from fully written-off assets are
credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss and
in case of recoveries from partially written-off
assets, subsequent recoveries are appropriated
towards the loan outstanding and thereafter
credited to Statement of Profit and Loss.

For detailed information on categories of loans
into stages as defined under Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments, significant increase
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in credit risk, default and methodology of
calculating ECL using Probability of Default
(PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure at
Default (EAD), refer note no. 44.

3.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are
measured at costless accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The
cost comprises expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation
of the asset, net of tax/duty credits availed, if
any. PPE is recognised when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
item is expected to flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital  work-in-progress includes assets
not ready for the intended use on the date of
Balance Sheet and is carried at cost including
directly attributable expenses less accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. The gain/loss on disposal of an item of
PPE is determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with carrying amount of the item
of the PPE and is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of PPE are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when they are incurred.

Cost includes deemed cost which represents
the carrying value of PPE recognised as at
April 1, 2017 measured as per the previous
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP).

3.10 Intangible assets

Purchased software are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment  losses. The cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition and installation of the software,
net of tax/duty credits availed, if any. Intangible
assets are recognised when it is probable

that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the
Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended
use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed
as ‘Intangible assets under development’ and
is carried at cost including directly attributable
expenses less accumulated impairment loss,
if any.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefit is
expected from use of the asset. The gain/loss
on disposal of an item of intangible assets is
determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with carrying amount of the item of
the intangible assets and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.11 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable
amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual
value. Depreciation is provided on straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which are equal to or higher
than the rates prescribed under schedule I
of the Companies Act, 2013. Higher rates of
depreciation are used to reflect the actual usage
of the assets or based on internal assessment
by the management.
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The following table sets forth, useful life of
PPE.

Useful life

Particulars (No. of years)

Office Buildings on
freehold land

Right of use asset (ROU)

c0

Period of lease

Improvements to

leasehold property Period of lease

Furniture and fixtures* 5to 10
Office Equipment* 3to5
Electrical installations and 10
equipment

Motor vehicles* 5
Ser\(ers ong network 4106
equipment

Computers 3
Software* 4

* Based on actual usage/internal assessment

ltems individually costing upto X 5,000 are
depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation and amortisation methods, useful
lives and residual values are reassessed at
each reporting date and the effect of changes
are recognised prospectively. Advances paid
towards acquisition of PPE are disclosed as
capital advances.

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets and PPE are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to determine the extent
of impairment. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Animpairmentlossis recognised immediately in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment
loss is reversed in the Statement of Profit and
Loss if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

3.13 Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current and
deferred tax.

Current tax

Income tax expense is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity/OCI in which case it is recognised
in equity/OCI. Current income tax for current
and prior periods is recognised at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the
tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purpose and the amounts for tax
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised, for all
deductible temporary differences, to the extent
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised. Deferred tax assetis recognised for the
carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax
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losses can be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting
date and recognised to the extent that they
have become probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can
be used. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

3.14 Employee benefits
a. Accumulated leave

The undiscounted amount of short-term
employee benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognised during the year
when the employees render the service.

The Company measures the expected cost
of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Company treats
accumulated leave expected to be carried
forward beyond twelve months, as long term
employee benefit for measurement purposes.

The Company provides for leave encashment
benefits, which is a defined benefit obligation,
based on actuarial valuation conducted by an
independent actuary. Expenses towards leave
encashment benefits arising during the year
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

b. Long-term incentive plan

The Company pays long term incentives to
certain employees on fulfilment of prescribed
criteria/ conditions. The Company’s liability
towards long term incentive is determined
actuarially based on certain  assumptions
regarding rate of interest, staff attrition and
mortality as per the projected unit credit
method. Expenses towards long term incentive

and actuarial gains or losses arising during the
year are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

c. Post-employment obligations

Defined contributionplansare post-employment
benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and
will have no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment
benefit plans other than defined contribution
plans.

Gratuity

The Company pays gratuity, a defined benefit
plan, to employees who retire or resign after
a minimum prescribed period of continuous
service. The Company makes contribution to
a trust which administers the funds through
Insurance companies.

The Company recognises gratuity liability
based on actuarial valuation as determined by
the independent actuary. Actuarial valuation of
gratuity liability is determined based on certain
assumptions regarding rate of interest, salary
growth, mortality and staff attrition as per the
projected unit credit method. The actuarial gains
or losses arising during the year are recognised
in OCI and are not reclassified in to profit and
loss account in subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to
the extent that the benefits are already vested
and otherwise is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the
benefits become vested. The retirement benefit
obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of
planned assets.
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Provident fund/Employee State Insurance
Scheme

The Company used to make specified monthly
contributions towards Employee Provident
Fund scheme to a separate trust administered
by the Company. The monthly contributions
were being recognised as expense in the year
in which they were incurred. The Government
notifies the minimum interest payable by the
trust to the beneficiaries. As the Company
had obligation to make good the shortfall, if
any, between the return on investments of the
trust and the notified interest rate, actuarial
valuation for the interest rate guarantee on the
provident fund balances was being determined
by actuarial assessment or valuation. Any
shortfall in the amount was contributed by
the Company to the trust and charged to its
Statement of Profit and Loss.

With effect from August 1, 2022, the
administration of the Employees’ Provident
Fund was transferred to the Employees’
Provident Fund Organisation (EPFO) and the
monthly contributions are now directly paid to
the EPFO. Further, as the Company pays all
contributions to EPFO, the interest obligation will
be borne by the EPFO and hence, the Company
is not required to do actuarial measurement for
the same.

The Company’s contribution to provident
fund and employee state insurance scheme
are considered as defined contribution plans
and are charged as an expense based on the
amount of contribution required to be made and
when services are rendered by the employees.

Superannuation Fund and National Pension
Scheme

The Company contributes 15% of basic salary
for certain employees to superannuation
funds, defined contribution plan, managed
and administered by insurance company.
Further, the Company contributes 10% of the
basic salary for certain employees to National
Pension Scheme (NPS), a defined contribution

plan, which is managed and administered by
pension management company. The Company
also gives an option to its employees allowing
them to receive the amount in lieu of such
contributions along with their monthly salary
during their employment.

The amount so contributed/paid by the
Company to the Superannuation fund and
NPS or to employees during the period are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d. Share-based payments

The Parent Bank (ICICI Bank Limited) issues
stock options to certain employees of the
Company. These transactions are recognised
as equity-settled share based payment
transactions. The stock compensation expense
is determined based on grant date fair value
of options and the Parent Bank's estimate
of options that will eventually vest and is
recognised on a straight line basis over the
vesting period in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. For options granted till the year ended
March 31, 2020, corresponding impact is given
to equity as contribution from the Parent Bank
as the cost was not charged by the Parent Bank.
For options granted from the year ended March
31, 2021, the Company pays the cost charged
by the Parent Bank.

3.15 Leases

The Company has various lease arrangement
for certain assets including properties. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains
a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.
At the commencement of the lease, the
Company recognises a Right-of-Use (ROU)
asset and a corresponding lease liability for
all lease arrangements, except for leases with
a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and low value leases. For low-value and
short-term leases, lease rentals are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual

Annual Report 2023-24 ﬁ



Notes Forming Part Of The Accounts

basis. The ROU asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any prepaid lease
plus any initial direct costs paid at or before
the commencement date and subsequently
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
lease liability is measured at amortised
cost at the present value of the future lease
payment, discounted using the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability
is subsequently increased by interest cost on
the lease liability and decreased by the lease
payment made.

ROU assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the lease period. ROU assets are
tested for impairment whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.16 Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a
past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined based
on management estimate of cash outflow
to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet
date, supplemented by experience of similar
transactions. These are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current management estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or
nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability

that cannot be recognised because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognise a contingent liability but discloses
its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised. However,
where an inflow of economic benefitis probable,
the same is being disclosed.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.17 Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities, classified
and disclosed as follows:

a) Undrawn loan commitments;

b) Estimated amount of contracts remaining
to be executed on capital account and not
provided for;

¢) Uncalled liability on investments partly
paid; and

d) Other commitments, if any, to the extent
they are considered material and relevant
in the opinion of management.

3.18 Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount is intended to be recovered
principally through a sale (rather than through
continuing use) when the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sale of such asset and the sale
is highly probable and is expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

Assets classified as held for sale are measured
at lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

3.19 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted

earnings per share data for its ordinary
shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated
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by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.20 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of cash flows is prepared
segregating the cash flows into operating,
investing and financing activities. Cash flow
from operating activities is prepared using the
indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments
and items of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing activities.

3.21 Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the
Company’s functional currency are recorded
on initial recognition using the exchange
rate at the transaction date. At each Balance
Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items
are reported at the rates prevailing at the
year-end. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in foreign
currency are not retranslated.

3.22 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand
deposits with bank. Cash equivalents are
short-term (three months or less from the date
of acquisition), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

3.23 Accounting for derivative financial
instruments

The Company enters into derivative contracts

such as interest rate swaps, foreign exchange
contracts and currency swaps, to manage
its exposure to interest rate risk and foreign
exchange rate risk. The Company recognises
and measures such derivative instruments at
fair value. Except for those derivatives which
are designated as effective cash flow hedge,
the gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Further in the
case of derivatives which are designated as
effective cash flow hedge, the effective portion
of change in fair value of the designated
hedging instrument is recognised in the OCI.
The ineffective portion of designated hedges
is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. A derivative with a positive
fair value is recognised as a financial asset
whereas a derivative with a negative fair
value is recognised as a financial liability.

3.24 Dividend pay-out

The Company recognises a liability towards
the equity shareholders of the Company when
the dividend is authorised and the distribution
is no longer at the discretion of the Company.
As per the corporate laws in India, an interim
dividend is authorised when it is approved
by the Board of Directors and final dividend
is authorised when it is approved by the
Shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

Annual Report 2023-24 ﬁ



Notes Forming Part Of The Accounts

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents.

X in million

Particulars

At March 31, 2024

At March 31, 2023

Cash on hand

Balances with banks?

(in current accounts) 2,502.7 1,374.3
Other cash & cash

equivalents (TREPs lending) 1,999.6 2,998.8
Total 4,502.3 4,373.1

1. There was no earmarked balance at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil).

5. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents. . -
X in million
At At
March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023

Particulars

Balances with banks to the extent held as
margin money or security against borrowings,

guarantees, other commitments (in deposit ac-
counts with original maturity more than 3 months) 2.5 2.5
Total 2.5 2.5

1. There was no earmarked balance at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil).
6. Derivative financial instruments

The Company in the past had entered into derivatives transactions for risk management purposes.
The primary risk managed using derivatives instruments were foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk. The Company dealt in derivatives for hedging floating rate borrowings denominated in
foreign currency. The Company had borrowed aggregate to USD 275 million in form of ECBs and
in order to fully hedge the same, the Company had taken derivative positions in the form of a 5
year Principal-Only Swap (POS), 5 year USD Interest Rate Swap (IRS) and Currency Forwards
for all its coupon cash flows. These swaps hedge any adverse movement in the USD-INR rates
on its principal and interest obligations and also against any adverse movement in the LIBOR on
its interest rate obligations. Out of USD 275 million, the Company prepaid the ECB amounting
to USD 100 million during the year ended March 31, 2022 and the remaining USD 175 million
was prepaid during the year ended March 31, 2023. Further, the Company does not have any
unhedged foreign currency at March 31, 2024.

Interest Rate Swaps (IRS)

The Company does not have risk exposure in interest rate swaps at March 31, 2024

(March 31, 2023: Nil)
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Forward Rate Agreement (FRA)

The Company does not have any forward rate agreement at March 31, 2024
(March 31, 2023: Nil).

Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivative

The Company does not have any exchange traded interest rate derivatives at March 31, 2024
(March 31, 2023: Nil).

Currency and forward derivatives

The Company does not have any currency and forward derivatives at March 31, 2024
(March 31, 2023: Nil).

7. Receivables
The following tables set forth, details of trade receivables at March 31, 2024.

X in million
Particulars Gross Expected Net
value credit loss value
Trade receivables
Receivables considered good - secured - - -
Receivables considered good — unsecured? 234 - 234

Receivables which have significant increase
in credit risk - - =

Receivables - credit impaired - - -
Total 23.4 - 23.4
Included in above:

- Debts due by directors or other officers
of the Company - - -

- Debts due by firms/LLPs/private companies
in which any director is partner or a director
or a member - - -

1. Represents receivable from related parties.
X in million

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unal)leo' t|';e553 3-6 moﬁths 1-2 | 2-3 t:‘“:r:; Total | Total
moc:::hs months ~1year| YEOr | Years | o irs (B) | (A)+ (B)

Particulars

(i) Undisputed
Trade receivables

“consideredgood | 503| 29| 01| 01| - - -| 31| 234
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X in million

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled | Less 3-6 6 1-2 2-3 More | total | Total

Particulars
(A) than 3 |, onths | months year | years than 3 (B) | (A)+(B)
months -1 year years

(ii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables
- which have
significant
increase in

credit risk - - - - - - - - -

(iii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables
- credit impaired - - - - - = - - -

(iv) Disputed
Trade Receivables
- considered good - - - - - - - - -

(v) Disputed
Trade Receivables
- which have
significant
increase in

credit risk - - - - - - - - -

(vi) Disputed
Trade Receivables
-credit impaired - - - - = - - - -

Gross value 20.3 2.9 0.1 0.1 - - - 3.1 23.4

Less: ECL - = = = - - - - -

Net Value 20.3 2.9 0.1 0.1 - - - 3.1 23.4

The following tables set forth, details of trade receivables at March 31, 2023.
X in million

Expected

credit loss Net value

Particulars Gross value

Trade receivables

Receivables considered good -
secured - - -

Receivables considered good -
unsecured? 20.7 - 20.7

Receivables which have
significant increase in credit risk - - -
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Expected

credit loss Net value

Particulars Gross value

Receivables - credit impaired

Total 20.7 - 20.7

Included in above:

- Debts due by directors or
other officers of the Company - - -

- Debts due by firms/LLPs/
private companies in which
any director is partner or a
director or a member - - -

1. Represents receivable from related parties.

X in million

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Less 3-6 6
(A) than 3 -
months months

More
months| yle-:r yz;?'s than 3 T?;;‘I ( :)c:_tc('g)
-1 year years

Particulars

(i) Undisputed
Trade receivables
- considered good 15.0 5.7 - - - - - 5.7 20.7

(ii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables
-which have
significant
increase in

credit risk - - - - - - - - -

(iii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables
- credit impaired - - - - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed
Trade Receivables
- considered good - - - - - - - - -

(v) Disputed
Trade Receivables
- which have
significant
increase in

credit risk - - - - - - - - -
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X in million

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled ﬂ';:iSB 3-6 6 1-2 | 2-3 t:‘::':g Total | Total
(A) months | months | year | years (B) | (A)+(B)
onths years
(vi) Disputed
Trade
Receivables -

credit impaired - - - - - - - - -

Gross value 15.0 5.7 - - - - -| 5.7 20.7
Less: ECL - - - - - - - - -
Net Value 15.0 5.7 - - - - -| 5.7 20.7
8. Loans
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of loans.
X in million
At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
Particulars . Fair value . Fair value
Am:::;sed through Total Am:::;sed through Total
ocnr ocHr
(A)
Loans repayable
(i) |on demand - - - - - -
(ii) | Term loans 122,419.5( 105,183.6| 227,603.1| 106,928.8| 71,645.7| 178,574.5
(iii) | Others - - - - - -
Total loans -
Gross (A) 122,419.5| 105,183.6 | 227,603.1| 106,928.8| 71,645.7 | 178,574.5
Less:
Impairment loss
allowance (2,385.2) -| (2,385.2)| (3,138.3) -1 (3,138.3)
Total loans -
Net (A) 120,034.3| 105,183.6 | 225,217.9| 103,790.5| 71,645.7 | 175,436.2
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At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023

Fair value
through

Fair value
through

Particulars Amortised

cost

Amortised

Total
cost

Total

ocnr

ocH

(B)

Secured/
Unsecured

(i)

Secured by
tangible assets?

122,261.7

105,183.6

227,445.3

106,629.2

71,645.7

178,274.9

(ii)

Secured by
intangible
assets

(iii)

Covered
by bank/
government
guarantees

157.8

157.8

299.6

299.6

(iv)

Unsecured

Total loans -
Gross (B)

122,419.5

105,183.6

227,603.1

106,928.8

71,645.7

178,574.5

Less:
Impairment loss
allowance

(2,385.2)

(2,385.2)

(3,138.3)

(3,138.3)

Total loans -
Net (B)

120,034.3

105,183.6

225,217.9

103,790.5

71,645.7

175,436.2

(C)
(0

Loans in India

Public sector

Other than
Public sector

122,419.5

105,183.6

227,603.1

106,928.8

71,645.7

178,574.5

Total loans -
Gross (C)

122,419.5

105,183.6

227,603.1

106,928.8

71,645.7

178,574.5

Less:
Impairment loss
allowance

(2,385.2)

(2,385.2)

(3,138.3)

(3,138.3)

Total loans -
Net (C)

120,034.3

105,183.6

225,217.9

103,790.5

71,645.7

175,436.2

(ii)

Loans outside
India

Total loans -
Net (C)
(i) and (ii)

120,034.3

105,183.6

225,217.9

103,790.5

71,645.7

175,436.2
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1. Net of impairment allowance amounting to X 745.0 million at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: X 326.4 million).

2. Includes loans secured against deposits amounting to X 19.1 million at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023:X 18.2
million).

3. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

4. The Company is engaged in a retail lending business. The Company has not entered into any transaction or
arrangement with any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (intermediaries), which would result in

onward lending to or on behalf of the lender.

Loans against gold

Outstanding loans granted against collateral of gold jewellery was 0.14% of total assets at
March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 0.17%).

Break up of loans and advances and provision thereon

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of loans in housing and
non-housing.

X in million
At March 31, 2024
Particulars
Housing Non-Housing Total

Standard assets

Total Outstanding 157,5639.5 66,892.6 224,432.1

Provision 917.2 683.4 1,600.6
Non-performing assets (NPAs)
Sub- Standard

Total Outstanding 1,283.7 867.9 2,151.6

Provision 306.1 2243 530.4
Doubtful- 1

Total Outstanding 688.1 522.3 1,2104

Provision 3315 249.3 580.8
Doubtful- 2

Total Outstanding 300.6 2534 554.0

Provision 226.6 191.8 418.4
Doubtful- 3

Total Outstanding - - -

Provision - - -
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Particulars At March 31, 2024
Housing Non-Housing Total
Loss
Total Outstanding - - -
Provision - - -
Total
Total Outstanding 159,811.9 68,536.2 228,348.1
Provision 1,781.4 1,348.8 3,130.2

Standard assets represent loans classified as Stage-1 and Stage-2, NPAs represent loans classified as Stage-3, Total
outstanding represent Exposure at default and Provisions represent Expected credit loss in the above table.

X in million
Particulars At March 31, 2023
Housing Non-Housing Total

Standard assets

Total Outstanding 126,585.5 46,703.8 173,289.3

Provision 704.5 7125 1,417.0
Non-performing assets (NPAs)
Sub- Standard

Total Outstanding 1,459.2 1,328.8 2,788.0

Provision 228.1 202.0 430.1
Doubtful- 1

Total Outstanding 807.4 519.6 1,327.0

Provision 276.1 175.5 451.6
Doubtful- 2

Total Outstanding 361.8 354.7 716.5

Provision 199.0 186.9 385.9
Doubtful- 3

Total Outstanding 780.1 - 780.1

Provision 780.1 - 780.1
Loss

Total Outstanding - - -

Provision - - -
Total

Total Outstanding 129,994.0 48,906.9 178,900.9

Provision 2,187.8 1,276.9 3,464.7

Standard assets represent loans classified as Stage-1 and Stage-2, NPAs represent loans classified as Stage-3, Total
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Movement of Non-performing assets (NPAs)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, movement in Stage 3 loans (NPAs)
& movement in ECL (provisions).

X in million

Particulars At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
() |Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.06% 2.03%
() | Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) | Opening balance 5,611.6 8,597.0
b) | Additions during the year 3,207.2 5,689.0
) Reductions during the year 4,902.8 8,674.4
d) [Closing balance 3,916.0 5611.6
() [ Movement of NPAs (Net)
a) |[Opening balance 3,563.9 6,236.0
b) | Additions during the year 1,273.3 3,672.1
) Reductions during the year 2,450.8 6,244.2
d) Closing balance 2,386.4 3,563.9
(IV) [ Movement of provision for

NPAs (excluding provisions on

standard assets)
a) | Opening balance 2,047.7 2,361.0
b) Provisions made during the

year 1,933.9 2,116.9
C) Write off/ write back of excess

provisions 2,452.0 2,430.2
d) Closing balance 1,529.6 2,047.7

1. Standard assets represent loans classified as Stage-1 and Stage-2, NPAs represent loans classified as
Stage-3 and Provision for NPAs represent Expected credit loss in the above table.
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9. Investments

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details of investments.

X in million
At March 31, 2024
At fair value
Through De5|gnqted
at Fair
. Other |Through
. Amortised . Value Sub
Particulars Compre- | Profit or Others | Total
cost . Through Total
hensive Loss .
Profit or
Income
Loss

(A) Investments
in India
Mutual funds - - - - - - -
Government
securities? 3,196.5 - - - - -1 3,196.5
Equity
instruments? - - 101.9 -1 101.9 - 101.9
Total Gross 3,196.5 - 101.9 -| 101.9 -| 3,298.4
Impairment loss
allowance - - - - - - -
Total Net 3,196.5 - 101.9 - 101.9 -1 3,298.4
(B) Investments
outside India - - - - - - -
Total Investments
(A+B) 3,196.5 - 101.9 - 101.9 -1 3,298.4

1. Based on the assessment, no impairment loss has been recognised on government securities.

2. Investments in units of Emerging India Fund (EIF) amounting to X 15.3 million is fully provided for as required
by RBI/2023-24/90 DOR.STR.REC.58/21.04.048/2023-24 dated December 19, 2023, on Investments in
Alternative Investment Funds (AlFs).
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X in million
At March 31, 2023
At fair value
Through De5|gna_ted
at Fair
. Other |Through
. Amortised . Value Sub
Particulars Compre- | Profit or Others| Total
cost . Through Total
hensive Loss .
Profit or
Income
Loss

(A) Investments in
India
Mutual funds - - 1,615.4 -1 1,615.4 - 1,615.4
Government
securities! 3,304.1 - - - - -1 3,304.1
Equity instruments - - 72.1 - 72.1 - 72.1
Total Gross 3,304.1 - 1,687.5 -| 1,687.5 -| 4,991.6
Impairment loss
allowance - - - - - - -
Total Net 3,304.1 - 1,687.5 -| 1,687.5 -1 4,991.6
(B) Investments
outside India - - - - - - -
Total Investments
(A+B) 3,304.1 -| 1,6872.5 -| 1,687.5 -| 4,991.6

1. Based on the assessment, no impairment loss has been recognised on government securities.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of investments and the
movement in fair value changes (provision towards depreciation) on investments.
X in million
At At
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Particulars

Value of investments
(i) |Gross value of investments 3,298.4 4,991.6
(a) In India 3,298.4 4,991.6
(b) Outside India - -

(ii) | Provision for Depreciation - -

(a) In India - -
(b) Outside India - -
(iii) [ Net value of Investments 3,298.4 4,991.6
(a) In India 3,298.4 4,991.6

(b) Outside India - -
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At At

Particulars March 31,2024 |March 31, 2023

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
investments

(i) | Opening balance & -

(ii) |[Add: Provisions made during the year - -

(iii) | Less: Write-off/Written-back of excess provisions
during the year - -

(iv) | Closing balance - -

10. Other financial assets

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of other financial assets.

X in million
Particulars At March 31, 2024 | At March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
Security deposits 153.0 108.3
Advances recoverable 70.7 57.0
EIS receivable 2,964.8 1,914.5
Other financial assets 14 1.8
Total 3,189.9 2,081.6
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11. Property, plant and equipment

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of property, plant and equipment.

X in million
Gross block Depreciations/amortisation Net block
] At Dis- At At Adjust- | At At At
Particulars | april | Addi- |posals/| March | April |For the | ments/ | March | April | March
1, tions | adjust- 31, 1, year | deduc- 31, 1, 31,
2023 ments 2024 2023 tions 2024 2023 2024
Free hold 0.5 - - 0.5 - - - - 0.5 0.5
land?*
(0.5) - - (0.5) - - - - (0.5) (0.5)
778.4 - 55.0 723.4 89.6 14.5 7.1 97.0 688.8 626.4
Building?
(778.4) - -| 778.4)| (749 | (147 -| (89.6)| (703.5)| (688.8)
ROU 561.0( 473.7| 1884 846.3| 3228 130.3| 181.8( 2713 238.2( 575.0

(478.2) | (102.3)| (19.5)| (561.0)| (234.3)| (100.6) (12.1) | (322.8)| (243.9)| (238.2)

Improvements 241.6 60.8 20.3 282.1 151.3 41.7 20.1 172.9 90.3 109.2
to leasehold

property (181.3) (69.1) (8.8)| (241.6)| (111.7) (45.4) (5.8) | (151.3) (69.6) (90.3)
135.7 81.6 21.2 196.1 76.3 42.8 21.2 97.9 59.4 98.2
Computers
(84.6) (55.4) (4.3)| (135.7) (63.2) (17.2) (4.1) (76.3) (21.4) (59.4)
Office 161.6 21.8 4.0 179.4 104.2 29.6 3.6 130.2 57.4 49.2
Equipments (126.5) (38.5) (3.4)| (161.6) (79.9) (26.7) (2.4) | (104.2) (46.6) (57.4)
Furniture & 132.1 29.8 7.1 154.8 58.8 17.3 5.1 71.0 73.3 83.8
fixtures (101.6) (38.2) (7.7) | (132.1) (50.2) (13.2) (4.6) (58.8) (51.4) (73.3)
Electric 50.7 3.5 * 54.2 18.7 5.2 * 23.9 32.0 30.3
Installation &
Equipments (46.4) (5.0) (0.7) (50.7) (14.1) (4.8) (0.2) (18.7) (32.3) (32.0)
Server & 324 26.3 * 58.7 23.5 7.5 * 31.0 8.9 27.7
Network (28.2) (4.7) (0.5) (32.4) (17.2) (6.4) (0.1) (23.5) (11.0) (8.9)
5.0 - 5.0 - 0.6 0.9 1.5 - 4.4 -
Vehicles
(3.8) (5.0) (3.8) (5.0) (3.8) (0.6) (3.8) (0.6) - (4.4)
Total 2,099.0( 697.5( 301.0( 2,495.5 845.8| 289.8 2404 895.2 | 1,253.2| 1,600.3
Previous year | (1,829.5)| (318.2) (48.7) (2,099.0)| (649.3)| (229.7) (33.1)| (845.8)| (1,180.2) | (1,253.2)

*insignificant amount.

1. Title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company and there is no charge on
Building and Free hold land (March 31, 2023: Nil).
2. The Company does not hold any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.
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Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicating the details of CWIP and its ageing.
At March 31, 2024

X in million

CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
yedrs

Total

Projects in
progress

0.1

0.1

Projects
temporarily
suspended

Total

0.1

0.1

At March 31, 2023

X in million

CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Projects in
progress

7.5

7.5

Projects
temporarily
suspended

Total

7.5

7.5

12. Intangible assets
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of intangible assets.

X in million
Gross block Depreciations/amortization Net block
. Dis- Adjust- At
Particulars At April | Addi- | posals/ M:rtch At April | For the | ments/ | March | At April M:rtch
1, 2023 tions adjust- 31. 2024 1, 2023 year deduc- 31, 1, 2023 31. 2024
ments ’ tions 2024 ’
Computer
software 205.7 29.7 10.2 225.2 112.6 44.6 7.2 150.0 93.1 75.2
(149.3) [ (56.4) -1 (205.7) (71.9)| (40.7) -1 (112.6) (77.4) (93.1)
Total 205.7 29.7 10.2 225.2 112.6 44.6 7.2 150.0 93.1 75.2
Previous
year (149.3) [ (56.4) -1 (205.7) (71.9)| (40.7) -1 (112.6) (77.4) (93.1)
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Intangible assets under development
The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, ageing of intangible assets under

development.

X in million
Amount in CWIP for a period of
o Less than 1 More than 3 Total
March 31, 2024 ess than 1-2 years 2-3 years ore than
year years

Projects in

progress 28.0 18.7 7.4 - 54.1

Projects

temporarily

suspended - - - - -

Total 28.0 18.7 7.4 - 54.1
X in million

Amount in CWIP for a period of
o Less than 1 More than 3 Total
March 31, 2023 ess than 1-2 years 2-3 years ore than
year years

Projects in

progress 24.0 9.4 - - 334

Projects

temporarily

suspended - - - - -

Total 24.0 9.4 - - 334

13. Other non-financial assets
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of other non-financial assets.

X in million

Particulars At At
“ March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Input tax credit — Goods and Service Tax 56.9 116.1
Pre-paid expenses 1234 18.7
Other non-financial assets (Unsecured, considered 10.5 16.61
good)
Total 190.8 1514

1. Includes asset amounting to X 0.6 million at March 31, 2023, recognised towards gratuity as per actuarial

valuation (for detail refer note no. 46).
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14. Payables

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details of payables.
X in million

At At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

() Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium

enterprises (refer note a below) Sl 89.3

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small

. . 775.2 572.01
and medium enterprises

(ll) Other payables

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium
enterprises (refer note a below)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small
and medium enterprises

Total 867.4 661.3

1. AtMarch 31, 2023, amount of X 1,212.6 million, pertaining towards payable to assignee’s of sell down has been regrouped
to “Other Financial Liabilities”.

X in million
Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of
dues/ payment Total

Particulars Billed At March 31, 2024

but not | Less than 1-2 2-3 More than (A)+(B)

due (A) 1year years years 3years | Total (B)
(i) MSME 84.2 8.0 - - - 8.0 92.2
(ii) Others 709.3 64.4 0.3 0.4 0.8 65.9 775.2
(iii) Disputed _ _ ) _ _ _ _
dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed ) ) ) ) ) ) )
dues - Others
Total 793.5 72.4 0.3 0.4 0.8 73.9 867.4

X in million
Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of
dues/ payment

Particulars Billed At March 31, 2023 (;;):?é)

but not Less than 1-2 2-3 More than

due (A) Total (B)

1 year years years 3 years

(i) MSME 80.4 8.9 - - - 8.9 89.3
(ii) Others 463.7 106.8 0.6 0.1 0.8 108.3 572.0
(iii) Disputed ) _ _ . . - -
dues - MSME
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Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
dues/ Total
Particulars Billed At March 31, 2023 (A)+(B)
:ut nZt Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total (B)
ue (A) 1 year years years 3 years
(iv) Disputed ) ) ) ) ) ) )
dues - Others
Total 544.1 115.7 0.6 0.1 0.8 117.2 661.3

a. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006

The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified based on information
available with the Company. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the amount of

principal and interest outstanding.

X in million

Particulars

At

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

At

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (Interest -
March 31, 2024: Nil, March 31, 2023: Nil) remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year?

92.2

89.3

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section
16, of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year;

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006

1. Includes unbilled/billed amount which is not due.
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15. Debt securities

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of debt securities issued.

X in million
At March 31, 2024
. At fair value Desu__:'nated
. At amortised at Fair Value
Particulars through Total
cost Profit or Loss Through
Profit or Loss
(A) Debt securities in India
Non-convertibledebentures
- Secured? 67,625.8 - - 67,625.8
- Unsecured - - - -
Zero coupon bonds - - - -
Commercial papers 6,424.5 - - 6,424.5
Total - Gross 74,050.3 - - 74,050.3
Less — Unamortised
borrowing cost (35.7) ) i (35.7)
Total — Net 74,014.6 - - 74,014.6
(B) Debt securities outside ) } _ _
India
Total (A+B) 74,014.6 - - 74,014.6

1. The Non-convertible debentures (NCDs)/Bonds, other than Market linked debentures (MLDs) are issued with fixed/floating
coupon rate and redeemable at par/premium. NCDs/Bonds in the nature of MLDs are issued with coupon rate linked to
performance of underlying/reference index. Entire senior NCDs book at March 31, 2024 is secured by way of first ranking pari
passu floating charge over the eligible receivables to the extent of security cover of one time of the obligations.

X in million
At March 31, 2023
. Designated
. At amortised At fair value. at Fair Value
Particulars through Profit Total
cost or Loss Through
Profit or Loss
(A) Debt securities in India
Non-convertible debentures
- Secured? 47,713.3 - - 47,713.3
- Unsecured - - - -
Zero coupon bonds - - - -
Commercial papers 6,886.6 - - 6,886.6
Total - Gross 54,599.9 - - 54,599.9
It_)ess - L_Jnamortlsed (36.3) ) ) (36.3)
orrowing cost
Total — Net 54,563.6 - - 54,563.6
(B) Debt Securities outside ) ) ) )
India

Total (A+B) 54,563.6 - - 54,563.6
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1. The Non-convertible debentures (NCDs)/Bonds, other than Market linked debentures (MLDs) are issued with fixed/floating
coupon rate and redeemable at par/premium. NCDs/Bonds in the nature of MLDs are issued with coupon rate linked to
performance of underlying/reference index. Entire senior NCDs book at March 31, 2023 is secured by way of first ranking pari
passu floating charge over the eligible receivables to the extent of security cover of one time of the obligations.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of secured NCDs.

X in million

Description Date of Allotment | C S | nterest | 31,2034 | 312033
Fixed Rate Senior NCDs

120 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each August 12,2021 August 12, 2031 7.25% 120.0 120.0
1,460 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each November 02, 2021 August 12, 2031 7.25% 1,460.0 1,460.0
850 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each December 03, 2021 August 12, 2031 7.25% 850.0 850.0
200 NCDs of X 500,000 each November 20, 2020 November 20, 2030 7.07% 100.0 100.0
100 NCDs of X 500,000 each May 26, 2020 May 24, 2030 8.00% 50.0 50.0
60,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each February 15, 2024 February 15, 2029 8.04% 6,000.0 -
31,500 NCDs of X 100,000 each May 12, 2023 May 12, 2028 7.85% 3,150.0 -
8,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each June 15, 2023 May 12, 2028 7.85% 800.0 -
20,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each June 22,2023 May 12, 2028 7.85% 2,000.0 -
30,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each January 27, 2023 January 27, 2028 7.88% 3,000.0 3,000.0
40,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each March 06, 2024 March 05, 2027 8.10% 4,000.0 -
5,350 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each December 23, 2021 December 23, 2026 6.55% 5,350.0 5,350.0
100 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each September 28, 2021 September 28, 2026 6.27% 100.0 100.0
100 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each December 03, 2021 September 28, 2026 6.27% 100.0 100.0
10,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each February 15, 2024 September 15, 2026 8.09% 1,000.0 -
49,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each January 29, 2024 March 25, 2026 8.06% 4,900.0 -
4,500 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each November 24, 2022 November 24, 2025 7.95% 4,500.0 4,500.0
10,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each November 17, 2023 July 31, 2025 8.00% 1,000.0 -
1,500 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each December 23, 2021 June 23, 2025 6.12% 1,500.0 1,500.0
3,000 NCDs of X 500,000 each November 20, 2020 May 20, 2025 6.18% 1,500.0 1,500.0
2,400 NCDs of X 500,000 each April 28, 2020 April 28, 2025 7.60% 1,200.0 1,200.0
40,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each October 30, 2023 March 28, 2025 7.96% 4,000.0 -
26,000 NCDs of X 100,000 each April 27,2023 December 27, 2024 7.90% 2,600.0 -
2,400 NCDs of X 500,000 each December 05, 2019 December 05, 2024 8.00% 1,200.0 1,200.0
7,000 NCDs of X 500,000 each January 30, 2020 December 5, 2024 8.00% 3,500.0 3,500.0
2,000 NCDs of X 500,000 each October 19, 2020 October 18, 2024 6.18% 1,000.0 1,000.0
1,250 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each September 05, 2022 September 05, 2024 7.24% 1,250.0 1,250.0
1,500 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each July 20, 2021 July 19, 2024 5.89% 1,500.0 1,500.0
4,000 NCDs of X 500,000 each May 26, 2020 July 05, 2024 7.45% 2,000.0 2,000.0
6,500 NCDs of X 100,000 each March 29, 2023 June 28, 2024 8.00% 650.0 650.0
4,250 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each March 03, 2022 March 01, 2024 5.85% - 4,250.0
2,500 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each August 12, 2021 August 11, 2023 5.10% - 2,500.0
2,000 NCDs of X 500,000 each April 28, 2020 April 28,2023 7.40% - 1,000.0
Total (A) 60,380.0 38,680.0
Variable rate Senior NCDs

1,750 NCDs of X 1,000,000 each September 28, 2021 September 27, 2024 8.24%! 1,750.0 1,750.0
Total (B) 1,750.0 1,750.0
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. Date of Rate of | At March | At March
Description Date of Allotment Redemption Interest | 31,2024 | 31, 2023
NCDs in the nature of MLDs
400 MLDs of X 1,000,000 each November 14, 2022 April 29, 2025 7.65% 400.0 400.0
1,100 MLDs of X 1,000,000 each October 12, 2022 April 11, 2025 7.56% 1,100.0 1,100.0
570 MLDs of X 1,000,000 each September 26, 2022 March 26, 2025 7.30% 570.0 570.0
1,230 MLDs of X 1,000,000 each September 14, 2022 July 15, 2024 7.10% 1,230.0 1,230.0
843 MLDs of X 1,000,000 each August 24, 2022 February 23, 2024 7.00% - 843.0
1,799 MLDs of X 1,000,000 each July 27,2022 January 25, 2024 6.76% - 1,799.00
Total (C) 3,300.0 5,942.0
Total (A+B+C) 65,430.0 46,372.0
Add/(less)- Interest accrued 2,192.2 1,349.3
Add/(Less) — Unamortised
Premium/(Discount) = (8.0)
Total 67,625.8 47,713.3

1. Coupon linked to 3 months T-Bill rate as published by Financial Benchmarks India Pvt. Ltd.
The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details of commercial papers.
At March 31, 2024 (Interest rate - 7.82% to 8.10%)
X in million
.. 0-1 1-2 2-3 3-6 6-12
Maturities month months months months months Total
Face value - 6,000.0 500.0 - - 6,500.0
Carrying value - 5,934.0 490.5 - - 6,424.5
At March 31, 2023 (Interest rate — 7.55% to 7.83%)
X in million
.. 0-1 1-2 2-3 3-6 6-12
Maturities month months months months months Total
Face value - - 7,000.0 - - 7,000.0
Carrying value - - 6,886.6 - - 6,886.6
The following table sets forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agencies at March 31, 2024.
Instrument CRISIL ICRA CARE
Fixed deposits CRISIL AAA/Stable ICRA AAA/Stable CARE AAA/Stable
Senior bonds/non- CRISIL AAA/Stable | ICRA AAA/Stable CARE AAA/Stable
convertible debentures
Subordinate bonds CRISIL AAA/Stable ICRA AAA/Stable CARE AAA/Stable
Market linked CRISIL PP-MLD AAA/ ) CARE PP-MLD AAA/Stable
debentures Stable
Commercial paper - ICRA Al+ CARE Al+
Long term bank - ICRA AAA/Stable ;
facilities

1

AAA’ by ICRA.

In addition to the debt instrument wise specific credit ratings, the Company has been assigned the issuer Rating of ‘ICRA

2. There was no migration of rating during the year ended March 31, 2024.
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The following table sets forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agencies at March 31, 2023.

Instrument CRISIL ICRA CARE
Fixed deposits CRISIL AAA/Stable ICRA AAA/Stable CARE AAA/Stable
Senior bonds/non- convertible CRISIL AAA/Stable ICRA AAA/Stable | CARE AAA/Stable
debentures
Subordinate bonds CRISIL AAA/Stable ICRA AAA/Stable CARE AAA/Stable
. CRISIL PP-MLD AAA/ CARE PP-MLD
Market linked debentures Stable - AAA/Stable
Commercial paper - ICRA Al+ CARE Al+
Long term bank facilities - ICRA AAA/Stable -

1. In addition to the debt instrument wise specific credit ratings, the Company has been assigned the issuer Rating of ‘ICRA
AAA’ by ICRA.

2. As per CRISIL rating letter and credit bulletin dated June 20, 2022, CRISIL Ratings has migrated the rating to “CRISIL AAA/
Stable” from “FAAA/Stable”. The migration represents only a recalibration of the rating from one scale to another and does
not reflect any change in the credit risk profile of the fixed deposit programme. It is also neither an upgrade nor a downgrade
of the FD rating programme.

3. As per CRISIL credit bulletin dated February 7, 2023 and rating letter dated February 8, 2023, CRISIL has removed the ‘r’
suffix used in the rating symbol of principal protected market-linked debentures. Removal of ‘r’ suffix does not reflect a rating
change or a change in the CRISIL Ratings’ credit opinion or in the credit risk profile of the Company. In other words, it is
neither an upgrade nor a downgrade of the underlying credit risk profile of the issuer.

4. As per ICRA rating letter dated May 20, 2022 and rating rational dated May 27, 2022, ICRA Limited has revised its rating
symbol for fixed deposit rating to “ICRA AAA/Stable” from “ICRA MAAA/Stable” due to migration of rating from medium term
rating scale to long term rating scale

5. As per CARE Rating letter dated June 21, 2022, CARE Ratings Limited has revised its rating symbol for fixed deposit rating
to “CARE AAA/Stable” from “CARE AAA(FD)/Stable”. It is clarified that the change in rating symbols will have no bearing on
the existing rating assigned by CARE ratings Ltd. to the Fixed Deposit of the Company and should not be construed in any
manner, as a change in the rating.
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16. Borrowings (other than debt securities)
The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details of borrowings (other than debt

securities)

% in million

Particulars

At March 31, 2024

At amortised
cost

At Fair Value
Through Profit
or Loss

Designated
at Fair Value
Through Profit
or Loss

Total

(A) Secured/Unsecured

Secured borrowings

(a) Term loans
(Including re-finance)

(i) from banks?

47,109.8

47,109.8

(ii) from National Housing
Bank?

21,749.5

21,749.5

(b) Deferred payment
liabilities

(c) Loans from related
parties?

3,076.4

3,076.4

(d) Finance lease obligations

(e) Liability component of
compound financial
instruments

(f) Loans repayable on
demand

(i) from banks

(ii) from related parties

Unsecured borrowings

Total (A) - Gross

71,935.7

71,935.7

Less — Unamortised
borrowing cost

(23.2)

(23.2)

Total (A) — Net

71,9125

71,9125

(B) In India/Outside India

Borrowings in India

71,935.7

71,935.7

Borrowings outside India

Total (B) — Gross

71,935.7

71,935.7

Less — Unamortised borrowing
cost

(23.2)

(23.2)

Total (B) — Net

71,9125

71,9125

1. Secured by way of first ranking pari passu floating charge over the eligible receivables to the extent of security cover of one time of the

obligations.

2.  Secured by way of first exclusive charge over the identified receivables on borrowings amounting to X 8,093.2 million and by way of
negative lien on identified receivables on borrowings amounting to X 3,421.6 million.
3. At March 31, 2023 there are no borrowings guaranteed by directors and others.
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X in million

At March 31, 2023

At Fair Value Designated at

Particulars i i
At amortised Through Profit Fair Value ] Total
cost or Loss Through Profit

or Loss

(A) Secured/Unsecured

Secured borrowings

(a) Term loans (Including
re-finance)

(i) from banks? 40,532.1 - - 40,532.1

(ii) from National Housing
Bank? 11,514.8 - - 11,514.8

(b) Deferred payment liabilities - - - -
(c) Loans from related parties? 1,208.6 - - 1,208.6

(d) Finance lease obligations - - - -

(e) Liability component of com-
pound financial instruments - - - _

(f) Loans repayable on demand - - - -

(i) from banks - - - -

(ii) from related parties - - - _

Unsecured borrowings - - - -

Total (A) - Gross 53,255.5 - - 53,255.5

Less — Unamortised
borrowing cost (18.1) - - (18.1)

Total (A) — Net 53,237.4 - - 53,237.4

(B) In India/Outside India
Borrowings in India 53,255.5 - - 53,255.5

Borrowings outside India - - - -

Total (B) - Gross 53,255.5 - - 53,255.5

Less — Unamortised borrowing
cost (18.1) - - (18.1)

Total (B) — Net 53,237.4 - - 53,237.4

1. Secured by way of first ranking pari passu floating charge over the eligible receivables to the extent of security cover of one time of the
obligations.

2.  Secured by way of first exclusive charge over the identified receivables on borrowings amounting to X 8,093.2 million and by way of
negative lien on identified receivables on borrowings amounting to X 3,421.6 million.

3. At March 31, 2023 there are no borrowings guaranteed by directors and others.

There has not been any default in repayment of borrowings and interest during the year
ended March 31, 2024, (no default during the year ended March 31, 2023).
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The following tables set forth, the
March 31, 2024.

a. Term loans from banks

interest rates and maturity pattern of term loans at

X in million
.r: 5 years
Maturities 0-1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 4 Total
and above
6.50% - 7.99% 1,744.2 5,246.7 1,043.6 - 8,034.5
8.00% - 9.50% 8,454.5 17,540.4 6,970.3 6,110.1 39,075.3
Total 10,198.7 22,787.1 8,013.9 6,110.1 47,109.8
b. Term loans from National Housing Bank o
X in million
.r: 5 years
Maturities 0-1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 4 Total
and above
<6.50% 1,738.0 3,828.3 2,223.9 1,389.6 9,179.8
6.50% - 7.99% 4125 1,078.9 958.1 1,551.0 4,000.5
8.00% - 9.50% 1,226.1 3,207.5 2,291.0 1,844.6 8,569.2
Total 3,376.6 8,114.7 5,473.0 4,785.2 21,749.5
c. Term loans from related parties o
X in million
.r: 5 years
Maturities 0-1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 4 Total
and above
8.00% - 9.50% 218.0 433.3 433.3 1,991.8 3,076.4
Total 218.0 433.3 433.3 1,991.8 3,076.4

The following tables set forth, the interest rates and contractual maturity pattern of term loans at March

31, 2023.
a. Term loans from banks R
X in million
. 5 years
Maturities 0-1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 4 Total
and above

6.50% - 7.99% 1,271.6 3,048.5 2,810.9 2,220.1 9,351.1

8.00% - 9.50% 4,327.2 14,462.9 7,707.5 4,683.4 31,181.0
Total 5,598.8 17,511.4 10,518.4 6,903.5 40,532.1
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b. Term loans from National Housing Bank

X in million
. 5 years
Maturities 0-1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 4 Total
and above
<6.50% 1,031.2 2,445.8 1,178.2 - 4,655.2
6.50% - 7.99% 996.6 2,645.2 2,410.0 807.8 6,859.6
Total 2,027.8 5,091.0 3,588.2 807.8 11,514.8
c. Term loans from related parties
X in million
. 5 years
Maturities 0-1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 4 Total
and above
6.50% - 7.99% 83.6 166.7 166.7 791.6 1,208.6
Total 83.6 166.7 166.7 791.6 1,208.6
Notes:

1. The Company has utilised the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the
purpose for which it was availed.

2. Borrowings from banks or financial institutions are secured by way of first ranking pari passu
floating charge over the eligible receivables. Further, the Company has filed Statement of
Asset Cover with Security Trustee and banks matching with books of accounts.

3. The Company has not entered into any transaction or arrangement with any person(s) or
entity(ies) including foreign entities (intermediaries) which would result in onward lending to
or on behalf of the lender.
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17. Deposits

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details of deposits.

X in million
At March 31, 2024
. Desi ted
Particulars At amortised | AtFair Value ate:;?rn:afue
Through " Total
cost . Through Profit
Profit or Loss or Loss
(i) Public deposits? 22,5229 - - 22,522.9
(i) From banks 941.1 - - 941.1
(iii) From others 14,642.2 - - 14,642.2
Total - Gross 38,106.2 - - 38,106.2
Less — Unamortised borrowing cost (100.8) - - (100.8)
Total - Net 38,005.4 - - 38,005.4

1. Public deposits, as defined in paragraph 3 (xiii) of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, are secured by floating charge and lien in favour of the Trustees for Depositors on the Statutory Liquid
Assets maintained in terms of sub-sections (1) and (2) of Section 29B of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

X in million
At March 31, 2023
. . Designated
Particulars At amortised | AtFair Value at Fair value
Through " Total
cost . Through Profit
Profit or Loss
or Loss

(i) Public deposits? 20,885.9 - - 20,885.9
(i) From banks 1,131.3 - - 1,131.3
(iii) From others 14,608.6 - - 14,608.6
Total - Gross 36,625.8 - - 36,625.8
Less — Unamortised borrowing cost (125.4) - - (125.4)
Total — Net 36,500.4 - - 36,500.4

1. Public deposits, as defined in paragraph 3 (xiii) of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, are secured by floating charge and lien in favour of the Trustees for Depositors on the Statutory Liquid
Assets maintained in terms of sub-sections (1) and (2) of Section 29B of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.
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18. Subordinate liabilities
The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details of subordinate liabilities.

X in million
At March 31, 2024

. . Designated

Particulars At amortised At Fair Vall.'e at Fair value
Through Profit or . Total
cost Through Profit
Loss
or Loss
Subordinate liabilities in India
Non-convertible debentures 4,335.5 - - 4,335.5
Total 4,335.5 - - 4,335.5
Less — Unamortised borrowing cost (16.7) - - (16.7)
Total - in India 4,318.8 - - 4,318.8
Subordinate liabilities outside India - - - -
Total - Subordinate liabilities 4,318.8 - - 4,318.8
X in million
At March 31, 2023

) . Designated

Particulars At amortised At Fair Vall.'e at Fair value
Through Profit or . Total
cost Through Profit
Loss
or Loss

Subordinate liabilities in India
Non-convertible debentures 4,335.7 - - 4,335.7
Total 4,335.7 - - 4,335.7
Less — Unamortised borrowing cost (18.9) - - (18.9)
Total - in India 4,316.8 - - 4,316.8
Subordinate liabilities outside India - - - -
Total - Subordinate liabilities 4,316.8 - - 4,316.8
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of subordinate liabilities.

X in million
Description Date of Date of Rlz:::f At March At March
P Allotment Redemption est 31, 2024 31, 2023

800 NCDs of X 500,000 each February 23,2021 | December 10,2035| 7.65% 400.0 400.0

400 NCDs of X 500,000 each December 10, 2020 | December 10, 2035 7.65% 200.0 200.0

500 NCDs of X 500,000 each January 11, 2021 December 10, 2035 | 7.65% 250.0 250.0

354 NCDs of X 500,000 each February 23,2021 [ August 23, 2033 7.50% 177.0 177.0

500 NCDs of X 500,000 each February 23,2021 | February 21, 2031 7.40% 250.0 250.0
November 10, November 08,

1,280 NCDs of X 500,000 each | 2020 2030 7.50% 640.0 640.0
November 08,

2,140 NCDs of X 500,000 each | December 10, 2020 | 2030 7.50% 1,070.0 1070.0
November 08,

500 NCDs of X 500,000 each January 11, 2021 2030 7.50% 250.0 250.0

1,000 NCDs of X 500,000 each | June 10, 2020 June 10, 2030 8.02% 500.0 500.0

910 NCDs of X 500,000 each June 26, 2020 June 10, 2030 8.02% 455.0 455.0

4,192.0 4,192.0

Add/(Less) — Interest Accrued 138.8 138.4

Add/(Less) — Unamortised
premium/(Discount) 4.7 5.3
Total 4,335.5 4,335.7

19. Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of other financial liabilities (at
amortised cost).

X in million
Particular At March 31, At March 31,
articuiars 2024 2023
Unpaid matured deposits and interest accrued thereon 3.9 8.8
Lease liability 590.0 260.4
Others!? 13,911.5 11,012.32
Total 14,505.4 11,281.5

1. Includes book overdraft, liability on sell down deals, unappropriated credits pertaining to loans and fixed deposits, accruals for expenses etc.
2. At March 31, 2023, amount of X 1,212.6 million, pertaining towards payable to assignee’s of sell down has been regrouped from “Trade

Payables”.
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20. Provisions

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of provisions.

X in million
Particulars At March 31, At March 31,
2024 2023

(a) Provision for employee benefits!?

Leave encashment 53.9 30.9

Gratuity 396
(b) Other provisions

Provision for others? 159.0 34.1
Total 252.5 65.0

1. For details refer note no. 46

2. Includes provision towards Loan commitments, litigations etc.

21. Other non-financial liabilities

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of other non-financial liabilities.

X in million
Particulars At March 31, | At March 31,
2024 2023
Statutory Dues Payable 215.9 187.8
Total 215.9 187.8
22. Equity share capital
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of share capital. !
X in million

Particulars

At March 31, 2024

At March 31, 2023

Authorised shares?

2,385,000,000 Equity shares of X 10/-
each (March 2023: 2,385,000,000)

23,850.0

23,850.0

Total authorised shares

23,850.0

23,850.0

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity share capital

1,203,527,870 Equity shares of X
10/- each fully paid-up (March 2023 -
1,203,527,870)

12,035.3

12,035.3

Total Issued, subscribed and paid-
up Equity share capital

12,035.3

12,035.3

1. Excluding 15,000,000 redeemable preference shares of X 10/- each (March 2023: 15,000,000)
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, reconciliation of the equity shares.

At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
Particulars No. X in million No. X in million
At the beginning of the year 1,203,527.,870 12,0353| 1,098,750,000 10,987.5
Issued during the year _ _ 104.777.870 1.047.8
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,203,527.870 12,0353 | 1,203,527.870 12,035.3

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated shares held by the promoters.

At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
Promoter name o % change o % change
No. of Shares bs:fq:::ul during No. of Shares bs:fq:::ul during the
the year year

ICICI Bank Limited

aniHmie 1,203,526,770 100% Nil | 1,203,526,770 100% Nil
ICICI Securities Limited 600 . il 600 . Nil
ICICI Venture Funds
Management Company
Limited 100 * Nil 100 * Nil
ICICI Investment
Management Company
Limited 100 * Nil 100 * Nil
ICICI Trusteeship
Services Limited 100 * Nil 100 * Nil
ICICI Lombard
General Insurance
Company Limited 100 * Nil 100 * Nil
ICICI Securities Primary
Dealership Limited 100 * Nil 100 * Nil
Total 1,203,527,870 100% 1,203,527,870 100%

*Insignificant percentage

a. All equity shares are held by the holding company (ICICI Bank Limited) and its nominees at March 31, 2024 and
at March 31, 2023.
b. The Company has not reserved any shares for issues under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale.
c. The Company has not allotted any shares pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash or as
bonus shares nor it has bought back any shares during the preceding five financial years.
d. The Company has not:
i. Issued any securities convertible into equity/preference shares.
ii. Issued any shares where calls are unpaid.
iii. Forfeited any shares.
e. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The holders
of equity shares are entitled to dividends, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by Shareholders

at the Annual General Meeting.
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f.On July 4, 2022, the Company issued a letter of offer for issuance of equity shares on right basis to its existing
shareholders. The equity shares having face value of X 10/- each were proposed to be issued at a premium of
X 13.86 per share in the proportion of 100,000 equity shares for every 1,048,647 equity shares aggregating to
X 2,500.0 million. Pursuant to the letter of offer, ICICI Bank Limited on July 28, 2022 applied for 104,777,870 equity
shares of face value of X 10/- each at a premium of X 13.86 per share aggregating to X 2,500.0 million, which was
duly approved by the Committee of Directors at its meeting held on July 28, 2022.

g. Company’s objectives, policies and process for managing Capital — Refer note no. 35.

h. For dividend related details, refer note no. 40.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets

of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

23. Other Equity

A. Summary of Other Equity balance
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of other equity.

X in million
Particulars At March 31, At March 31,
2024 2023

(i) | General reserve 249.4 249.4
(ii) | Statutory reserve (As per Section 29C of National Housing Bank

Act,1987) and Special reserve 6,886.8 5,741.8
(iii) | Securities Premium 14522 14522
(iv) | Retained earnings

- Re-measurements of net defined benefit plan (5.0) 10.7

- Others 9,427.0 5,149.7
(v) | Capital contribution (Share based compensation to employees) 152.5 150.9
(vi) | Items of Other Comprehensive Income

- Fair value change on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges _ B

- Fair value changes on loans classified under “Hold & Sell”

business model 3,684.2 3,279.6
Total Other Equity 21,847.1 16,034.3

Note: Refer “Statement of Changes in Equity” for detailed movement in Other Equity.
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B. Nature and purpose of reserves

a. General Reserve

The Company created a General Reserve in earlier years pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, wherein certain percentage of profits were required to be transferred to
General Reserve before declaring dividends. As per Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to
transfer profits to General Reserve is not mandatory. General reserve is a free reserve available
to the Company for distribution.

b. Statutory Reserve and Special Reserve

The Company has created a reserve fund as required by section 29C of National Housing Bank
Act, 1987, wherein a sum not less than twenty percent of its profit every year, as disclosed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend is declared, is transferred. For this
purpose, any Special Reserve created by the Company under Section 36(1) (viii) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 is considered an eligible transfer. Statutory Reserve can be utilised only for the
purposes as may be specified by the NHB from time to time and every such utilisation is required
to be reported to the NHB within twenty-one days from the date of such utilisation.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, reconciliation of the statutory reserve.

X in million

Particulars At March 31, At March 31,
2024 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of National Housing Bank, Act 1987 1,966.2 1,822.2

b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve under sec-

tion 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 3,775.6 3,315.6
Total 5,741.8 5,137.8
Addition/Appropriation/Withdrawal during the year
Add: | a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 345.0 144.0

b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C
of the NHB Act, 1987 800.0 460.0

Less: | a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the
NHB Act, 1987 = -

a) Amount Withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of
Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account which has been taken
into account for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act,
1987 - -

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act,
1987 2,311.2 1,966.2

b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve under
section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 4,575.6 3,775.6

Total 6,886.8 5,741.8
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Draw down from reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2024
(March 2023 — no drawdown).

c. Securities Premium

It represents share premium received on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for
limited purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

d. Retained earnings

It represents surplus in Profit and Loss account after appropriations and cumulative actuarial
gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans.

e. Capital contribution (Share based compensation to employees)

The Parent Bank (ICICI Bank Limited) has issued stock options to certain employees of the
Company. These transactions arerecognised as equity-settled share based payment transactions.
The stock compensation expense is determined based on fair value of options and the Parent
Bank’s estimate of options that will eventually vest and is recognised over the vesting period in
the Statement of Profit and Loss with corresponding increase in equity as contribution from the
Parent Bank on options granted till March 31, 2020. However, from April 1, 2020 the Company
is paying the cost of options granted to its employees by the Parent Bank.

f. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Cash flow hedge - It represents the cumulative gains/(losses) arising on fair valuation of the
derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges through OCI at reporting date.

Fair value changes on loans classified under “Hold & sell” business model - It represents
cumulative gains/(losses) arising on fair valuation of mortgage loans set aside under the hold
and sell business model at reporting date.

24. Interest income

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of interest income.

X in million
Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
On financial On financial

On financial | On financial assets On financial On financial assets
Particulars assets assets classified at assets ut cla classified at

measured at | measured at | fair value Total measured m uss: Z t fair value Total

Fair Value amortised through at fair value met:ts_u Z @ " through
Through OCI cost Profit or through OCI amortised cos Profit or
Loss Loss

Interest on
loans 9,513.4 13,016.4 -| 22,529.8 6,799.3 10,474.6 -| 17,273.9
Interest
income from
investments - 227.5 - 227.5 - 228.9 - 228.9
Interest on
deposits
with banks - 2.9 - 2.9 - 2.9 - 2.9
Interest on
TREPS - 378.6 - 378.6 - 226.9 - 226.9
Total 9,513.4( 13,625.4 -| 23,138.8 6,799.3 10,933.3 -1 17,732.6
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25. Fees and commission income

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of fees and commission income.

X in million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Property service fees - 7.4
Processing fee! 152.6 143.2
Referral fees — General insurance 89.7 43.0
Referral fees — Life insurance 81.6 79.4
Other fee income? 211.6 122.8
Total 535.5 395.8

1. Represents log-in/processing fee on expired/cancelled cases.

2. Includes transactional charges in nature of bounce charges, documentation charges, foreclosure charges, etc.

26. Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes?

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of net gain/(loss) on fair value
changes.
X in million

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(A) | Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss

(i) | On trading portfolio
- Investments 138.7 150.7

- Derivatives - -

- Others - -

(i) | On financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss = -

Total 138.7 150.7
(B) | Others i )
Total - -

(C) | Total net gain/(loss) on fair value
changes 138.7 150.7
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Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Fair value changes

- realised 108.9 108.1
- unrealised 29.8 42.6
(D) Total net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 138.7 150.7

1. Fair value changes in this schedule are other than those arising on account of accure interest income/expense.

27. Other income

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of other income.

X in million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rent income 12.2 11.7
Others? 62.6 2.4
Total 74.8 14.1
1. Includes interest on income tax refund
28. Finance Cost
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of finance cost. o
X in million
Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
On financial . . On financial On financial
. On financial . g eres e oeraes
Particulars liabilities . g, liabilities liabilities
. liabilities .
measured at fair measured at fair measured at
measured at .
value through amortised cost value through amortised
Profit or Loss Profit or Loss cost
Interest on deposits - 2,618.8 - 2,416.7
Interest on borrowings - 5,007.1 - 3,378.7
Interest on debt securities - 4,664.0 - 3,402.3
Interest on subordinate liabilities - 3224 - 321.4
Interest on lease liabilities - 26.9 - 17.6
Total - 12,639.2 - 9,5636.7

29. Fees and commission expenses

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of fees and commission expenses.

X in million
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Property services fee expense,
brokerage and commission (1.9) 5.4
Legal and technical fees 99.0 60.4
Total 97.1 65.8
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30. Impairment on financial instruments

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of impairment and write-offs of
financial instruments.

X in million
Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

On financial | On financial On financial | On financial

Particulars instruments | instruments instruments | instruments
measured measured at Total measured measured at Total

at fair value amortised at fair value amortised

through OCI cost through OCI cost
Loans 485.2 80.6 565.8 206.5 1,593.1 1,799.6
Investments - - - - - -
Others = 60.3 60.3 - (24.6) (24.6)
Total 485.2 140.9 626.1 206.5 1,568.5 1,775.0

Provisions and contingencies

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of provisions and
contingencies included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

X in million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for depreciation on
Investment - -
Provision/write-offs towards non-
performing assets 382.2 1,930.7
Provision for standard assets 183.6 (131.1)
-HL to individuals 119.2 (3.4)
-HL to others 0.3 -
-Teaser Loans = -
-Commercial Real Estate-Residential Housing Loans 65.2 (1.6)
-Commercial Real Estate- Other Loans 73.9 2.0
-Other Loans (75.0) (135.1)
Other provisions and contingencies write offs 60.3 (24.6)
Total 626.1 1,775.0
Provision made towards Income Tax, including deferred tax
charge/credit 1,661.3 850.0

Note: Standard assets represent loans classified as Stage-1 and Stage-2, NPAs represent loans
classified as Stage-3 and Provisions on loans represent ECL in the above table.
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31. Employee benefits expenses

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of employee benefits expenses.

X in million
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
Salaries and wages 3,080.0 1,894.6
Contribution to provident and other funds 159.1 106.5
Share based payment to employees 45.2 41.9
Staff welfare expenses 215.6 150.6
Total 3,499.9 2,193.6
32. Other expenses
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of other expenses. 2 in mill
In mitlion

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023

Rent, rates and energy cost 60.5 52.6
Repairs and maintenance 176.2 158.7
Communication costs 59.2 100.2
Printing and stationery 41.3 46.0
Advertisement and publicity 122.0 79.6
Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses 6.2 6.0
Auditors’ fees and expenses (refer note below) 10.4 8.6
Legal and professional charges 633.2 480.0
Collection expenses 198.1 178.4
Insurance 6.3 54
Travelling and conveyance 267.4 183.0
Office expenses 139.2 114.0
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure! 42.0 15.6
Computer consumables 33.2 25.2
Unwinding cost on derivatives - 265.0
Loss on sale of assets held for sale 6.7 -
Miscellaneous expenses 99.5 79.5
Total 1,901.4 1,797.8

1. Refer note 80 for details.
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Auditors’ fees and expenses

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of remuneration to auditors.

X in million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Statutory audit fees 5.5 5.2
Tax audit fees 0.5 0.5
Certification and other fees 3.1 1.6
Reimbursement of expenses 05 0.5
Total 9.6 7.8
Total including GST disallowance 10.4 8.6

33. Current and non-current assets and liabilities

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the assets and liabilities to be recovered

or settled within and after twelve months.

X in million
At March 31, 2024
Particulars
Amounts expected to be
recovered or settled
Within twelve After twelve Total
months months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,502.3 - 4,502.3
Bank balance other than above - 2.5 2.5
Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 23.4 - 23.4
(i) Other receivables - - -
Loans 9,976.8 215,241.1 225,217.9
Investments 64.2 3,234.2 3,298.4
Other financial assets 1,424.0 1,765.9 3,189.9
15,990.7 220,243.7 236,234.4

Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 732.0 732.0
Property, plant and equipment - 1,600.3 1,600.3
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X in million
At March 31, 2024
Amounts expected to be
Particulars recovered or settled
Within twelve After twelve Total
months months
Capital work-in-progress 0.1 - 0.1
Intangible assets under
development 54.1 - 54.1
Intangible assets - 75.2 75.2
Other non-financial assets 186.7 4.1 190.8
240.9 2,411.6 2,652.5
TOTAL 16,231.6 222,655.3 238,886.9
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises 92.2 - 92.2
(i) Other payables 775.2 - 775.2
Other Payables
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises - = =
(ii) Other payables - - -
Debt securities 29,683.7 44,330.9 74,014.6
Borrowings (Other than debt
securities) 13,793.6 58,118.9 719125
Deposits 9,024.3 28,981.1 38,005.4
Subordinate liabilities 136.5 4,182.3 4,318.8
Other financial liabilities 14,028.1 477.3 14,505.4
67,533.6 136,090.5 203,624.1
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 174.3 78.2 252.5
Deferred tax liabilities - 912.0 912.0
Other non-financial liabilities 215.9 - 215.9
390.2 990.2 1,380.4
Total 67,923.8 137,080.7 205,004.5
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X in million
At March 31, 2023
Amounts expected to be
Particulars recovered or settled
Within twelve After twelve Total
months months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,373.1 - 4,373.1
Bank balance other than above - 2.5 2.5
Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 20.7 - 20.7
(ii) Other receivables - - -
Loans 7,639.7 167,796.5 175,436.2
Investments 1,716.1 3,275.5 4,991.6
Other financial assets 907.3 1,174.3 2,081.6
14,656.9 172,248.8 186,905.7
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 1,004.4 1,004.4
Property, plant and equipment - 1,253.2 1,253.2
Capital work-in-progress 7.5 - 7.5
Intangible assets under
development 334 - 334
Intangible assets - 93.1 93.1
Other non-financial assets 139.6 11.8 151.4
180.5 2,362.5 2,543.0
Total 14,837.4 174,611.3 189,448.7
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises 89.3 - 89.3
(ii) Other payables 572.0 - 572.0
Other Payables
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises - - -
(ii) Other payables - - -
Debt securities 18,447.0 36,116.6 54,563.6
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At March 31, 2023
Particulars
Amounts expected to be
recovered or settled
Within twelve After twelve Total
months months
Borrowings (Other than debt
securities) 7,713.1 45,524.3 53,237.4
Deposits 12,857.4 23,643.0 36,500.4
Subordinate liabilities 136.2 4,180.6 4,316.8
Other financial liabilities 11,119.7 161.8 11,281.5
50,934.7 109,626.3 160,561.0
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 41.9 23.1 65.0
Deferred tax liabilities - 565.3 565.3
Other non-financial liabilities 187.8 - 187.8
229.7 588.4 818.1
Total 51,164.4 110,214.7 161,379.1

34. Newly issued or amendments in standards but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. At March 31, 2024, there are no notification issued by the MCA with respect to
applicability of any new standard or amendments to the existing standards, which are applicable
from April 1, 2024.

35. Capital Management

Objective

The Company actively manages its capital to meet regulatory norms as prescribed by RBI and
current and future business needs considering the risks in its businesses, expectation of rating
agencies, shareholders and investors and the available options of raising capital. No changes
have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous financial year.

The capital management framework of the Company is administered by the Finance team
under the supervision of the Board and the Assets Liability Management Committee.

The Company has complied in full, with externally imposed capital requirement over the
reporting period.

Monitoring and reporting

The Board of Directors maintains an active oversight over the Company’s capital adequacy
levels. On half yearly basis an analysis of the capital adequacy position and the risk-weighted

assets is reported to the Board.
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Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, computation of capital adequacy ratio.
X in million, except ratio (%)

. At March 31, 2024 At March 31, | At March 31, . Reqson fo.r
Ratio 2024 2023 % Variance variance (if
Numerator Denominator above 25%)
CRAR 30,657.7 153,917.7 19.92% 23.47% (3.55) NA
Tier |
CRAR 25,587.5 153,917.7 16.62% 19.20% (2.58) NA
Tier Il
CRAR 5,070.2 153,917.7 3.29% 4.27% (0.98) NA
Liquidity The ratio has
Coverage decreased,
Ratio since the
company had
maintained
excess High
Quality
Liquid asset
(HQLA) in
the previous
6,990.8 4,644.5 150.52% 183.00% (32.48) | Financial year
X in million, except ratio (%)
. At March 31, 2023 At March 31, | At March 31, . Reason for
Ratio 2023 2022 % Variance variance (if
Numerator Denominator above 25%)
CRAR 25,950.7 110,561.9 23.47% 21.90% 1.57 NA
Tier |
CRAR 21,227.0 110,561.9 19.20% 16.95% 2.25 NA
Tier Il
CRAR 4,723.7 110,561.9 4.27% 4.95% (0.68) NA
Liquidity The ratio has
Coverage decreased,
Ratio since the
company had
maintained
excess High
Quality
Liquid asset
(HQLA) in
the previous
Financial
6,735.1 3,680.5 183.00% 139.73% 43.27 | year
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, amount raised through subordinated

debt as Tier Il and perpetual debt instruments.

X in million

Particulars

At
March 31, 2024

At
March 31, 2023

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier Il
capital

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual debt
instruments

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, computation of the debt to equity ratio.

X in million, except ratio

Particulars At March 31, 2024 | At March 31, 2023
Debt 188,251.3 148,618.2
Equity 33,8824 28,069.6
Debt to equity ratio 5.6 5.3

36. Earnings per share

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, computation of the earnings per share.

X in million, except per share data

Particulars

Year ended March

Year ended March

31, 2024 31, 2023
Earnings
Net Profit attributable shareholders (before
dilution) 5,723.2 3,018.2
Dilution impact (if any) - -
Net Profit attributable shareholders (after dilution) 5,723.2 3,018.2
Common stock
Weighted average number of equity shares
(basic)* 1,203,527,870 1,169,654,476
Dilutive impact - -
Weighted average number of equity shares
(diluted)* 1,203,527,870 1,169,654,476
Basic earnings per share (X) 4.76 2.58
Diluted earnings per share (X) 4.76 2.58

1. Face value X 10/- per share (at March 31, 2023: Face value X 10/- per share)

There are no instruments outstanding that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future,
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but were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they are anti-
dilutive for the year(s) presented.

There were no transactions that have occurred after the reporting date that would have changed
significantly the number of ordinary shares outstanding or potential ordinary shares outstanding
at the reporting date.

37. Operating segment

The Company is engaged in lending business primarily into mortgages loans (home loans and
loans against properties) and real estate loans. All other activities of the Company revolve around
the main business. The Board reviews the Company’s performance as a single business. The
Company’s operation is within India only. There being only one segment, disclosure for operating
segment is not applicable.

Further, no clients individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue in financial years
ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

38. Leases
Presentation/disclosure related to leases in financial statements are given below.

1. The Company has presented lease liability as a separate line item in schedule on ‘Other
Financial Liabilities. The Company presents Right of Use (ROU) assets (pertaining to its
branch/office premises) as part of ‘Properties, Plant and Equipment.’.

2. The Company has presented interest expenses on lease liability separately from depreciation
charge for the ROU assets. Interest expenses on lease liability is a component of finance cost.

3. In statement of cash flow, the Company has classified:

a) Principal portion of lease payment as financing activities,
b) Interest on lease liability as financing activities,
c) Lease payment for short-term assets or low-value assets as operating activities.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, movement in carrying value of right of
use assets (for branch premises).

R in million

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
reu 31, 2024 31, 2023

Opening balance 234.1 239.7
Addition’ 463.4 100.0
Deletion (6.5) (7.6)
Depreciation to date (127.8) (98.0)
Closing balance 563.2 234.1

1. Includes impact on account of lease-modifications.
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The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details pertaining to lease liabilities.

a) Movement in carrying value (present value) of lease liability

X in million
Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Opening balance 260.4 271.9
Addition’ 460.5 100.0
Deletion (6.5) (8.7)
Finance cost accrued during the year 26.9 17.6
Payments made (151.3) (120.4)
Closing balance 590.0 260.4
1. Includes impact on account of lease-modifications.
b) Break-up of lease liability in to current and non-current
X in million
Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Current lease liabilities 161.0 122.7
Non-current lease liabilities 429.0 137.7
Total 590.0 260.4
c) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis
X in million
Up to one Over 1 Over 3 Over 1 year Over
Particulars month month to 3 | months to | to 5 years 5 years Total
months 1 year
At March
31, 2024 14.7 28.0 118.3 542.0 0.4 703.4
At March
31, 2023 11.5 22.8 88.4 174.6 2.0 299.3

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the
current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they

fall due.

Further, for the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company
e Recorded expense of X 21.5 million for short-term and low value leases (March 31, 2023:

X 24.6 million).

X 120.4 million).

Did not have any variable lease payments (March 31, 2023: Nil).
Did not have any sale and leaseback transactions (March 31, 2023: Nil).
Had not sub-leased right of use assets (March 31, 2023: Nil).
Had total cash outflow for long term leases amounting to X 151.3 million (March 31, 2023:
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e Does not have any significant restrictions or covenants imposed by leases (March 31, 2023:
Nil).

e Does not have committed undiscounted value of the leases not yet commenced (March 31,
2023: X 3.6 million).

39. Provisions, commitments and contingencies
Provisions

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of provisions and
contingencies included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

X in million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment on financial instruments 565.8 1.799.6
Investment _ _
Others 60.3 (24.06)
Total 626.1 1,775.0

The Company has assessed its obligations arising in the normal course of business, including
pending litigations, proceedings pending with tax authorities and other contracts including
derivative and long term contracts. In accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 37 on ‘Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, the Company recognises a provision for material
foreseeable losses when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the
contingency is reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, a
disclosure to this effect is made as contingent liabilities in the financial statements. The Company
does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its
financial statements.

Contingencies
a. Litigation

A number of litigations and claims against the Company and its directors are pending in
various forums. The claims on the Company mainly arise in connection with civil cases involving
allegations of service deficiencies, property or labor disputes, fraudulent transactions, economic
offences and other cases filed in the normal course of business. The Company is also subject to
counter-claims arising in connection with its enforcement of contracts and loans. A provision is
created where an unfavorable outcome is deemed probable and in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. In view of inherent unpredictability of litigation and cases where claims
sought are substantially high, actual cost of resolving litigations may be substantially different
than the provision held. The total amount of provision held was X 13.5 million March 31, 2024
(March 31, 2023: X 8.7 million).

Based upon a review of open matters with its legal counsels including loss contingency on account
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of such litigation and claims, and classification of such contingency as ‘probable’, ‘possible’ or
‘remote’ and with due provisioning for the relevant litigation and claims, the management believes
that the outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, movement in provision for legal cases.

X in million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening provision 8.7 4.3
Provision made during the year 6.1 4.5
Utilisation (0.4) *
Provision reversed during the year (0.9) (0.1)
Closing provision 135 8.7

*insignificant amount

Claims filed against the Company not acknowledged as debt amounted to X 36.0 million at
March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: X 34.0 million).

b. Tax contingencies

Various tax related legal proceedings are pending against the Company at various levels of
appeal either with the tax authorities or in the courts. Where after considering all available
information in the opinion of the management a liability requires accrual, the Company accrues
such liability.

Where such proceedings are sufficiently advanced to enable the management to assess that a
liability exists and are subject to reasonable estimation, management records its best estimate
of such liability. Where a reasonable range of potential outcomes is estimated, management
records its best estimate, or in the absence of a basis for selecting a specific estimate within
a range, management records a liability no less than the lower end of the estimated range.
The contested tax demands are adjusted by the tax authorities against refunds due to the
Company on favorable resolution of earlier year’s appeals/completion of assessments or paid.
The payment/adjustment does not prejudice the outcome of the appeals filed by the Company.
The advance tax payments are recorded as advance tax payments.

At March 31, 2024, the Company has assessed its contingent tax liability at an aggregate
amount of X 357.5 million pertaining to income tax demands by the Government of India’s tax
authorities for past years (March 31, 2023: X 417.4 million). Based on consultation with counsel
and favorable decisions in the Company’s own or other cases, the management believes that the
tax authorities are not likely to be able to substantiate their tax assessments and accordingly, has
not provided for these tax demands at March 31, 2024. Disputed tax issues that are classified
as remote are not disclosed as contingent liabilities by the Company. The key disputed matters

are detailed below:
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a. Income tax deduction for special reserve available to financial institutions.
b. Disallowance of expenses incurred for earning tax exempt income.

Based on judicial precedents in the Company’s and other cases and upon consultation with
tax counsels, the management believes that it is more likely than not that the Company’s tax
position will be sustained. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the accounts.

Commitments
a. Loan commitments

The Company has outstanding undrawn commitments to provide loans to customers. These
loan commitments aggregated X 22,696.9 million at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023:X 10,603.1
million). Further, the commitments have fixed expiration dates and are contingent upon the
borrower’s ability to maintain specific credit standards.

b. Capital commitments
X in million

At At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Commitments towards fixed assets
(March 31, 2024: X 15.2 million (Gross); March 31,
2023: X 17.0 million (Gross)) 15.1 9.5

Commitments towards software
(March 31, 2024: X 82.4 million (Gross); March 31,
2023: X 68.2 million (Gross)) 28.3 34.8

Total 43.4 44.3

c. Commitment towards investments

The Company does not have any commitments towards uncalled amount on investments at
March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil).

40. Proposed dividend on equity shares

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on April 20, 2024, has recommended dividend of X
0.50 per equity share for the year ended March 31, 2024 (year ended March 31, 2023: X 0.25
per equity share). Further, the Company didn’t declare any interim dividend during year ended
March 31, 2024 (year ended March 31, 2023: Nil).

41. Income taxes

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, major components of income tax expense/
(benefit).
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X in million

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Current tax expense/(benefit)
Tax expense/(benefit) for current year 1,465.0 827.6
Changes in estimates related to prior years - -
Adjustments in respect of current income tax -
earlier years (19.6) -
Total current tax expense/(benefit) 1,445.4 827.6
Deferred tax expense/(benefit)
Origination and reversal of temporary difference 215.9 22.4
Change in tax rates - -
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 215.9 22.4
Total income tax expense/(benefit) 1,661.3 850.0

The tax expense and tax assets have been computed as per applicable tax laws and generally
accepted tax computation policies and procedures. Further, there is no uncertain tax treatment.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, income taxes charged or credited directly to

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income.

X in million

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Items that will not be reclassified to the profit
or loss
Defined benefit plan actuarial gains/(losses) (5.3) 21
Change in tax rates - -
Items that will be reclassified to the profit or
loss
Impact due to cash flow hedge reserve - 62.1
Change in tax rates - -
Impact due to fair value changes on loans classi-
fied under “Hold & Sell” business model 136.1 494.4
Change in tax rates - -
Income tax charged/(credited) to OCI 130.8 558.6
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Reconciliation of tax rates

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, reconciliation of the income taxes at
statutory income tax rate to income tax expense/ (benefit) as reported.

X in million

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Profit/(loss) before income taxes 73845 3.868.2
Total 7,384.5 3,868.2
Enacted statutory tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax expense/(benefit) at the statutory tax
rate 1,858.5 973.5
Increases/(reductions) in taxes on account of:
Income tax deduction for Special Reserve
available to financial institutions (191.1) (115.0)
Exempt income - -
Income charged at rates other than statutory tax
rate - -
Changes in the statutory tax rate - -
Deferred tax not recognized - -
Expenses disallowed for tax purposes 13.5 (8.5)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax -
earlier years (19.6) -
Income tax expense/(benefit) reported 1,661.3 850.0
Current Tax 1,445.4 827.6
Deferred Tax Asset 215.9 22.4
Total Tax 1,661.3 850.0

The effective income tax rate for year ended March 31, 2024 was 22.5% (March 31, 2023: 22.0%).
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Current tax assets (net)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, components of the current tax assets.

X in million
Particulars Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Advance tax (net of provisions) 732.0 1.004.4
Total 732.0 1,004.4

Components of deferred tax balances

The tax effects of temporary differences are reflected through a deferred tax asset/liability,
which is included in the Balance Sheet of the Company.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, components of the deferred tax

balances.
X in million
Particulars At At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses 811.2 880.3
Cash flow hedge reserve ) )
Provisions (other than ECL provisions) 216.2 133.4
Deferred loan origination expenses (net) and

borrowing cost (EIR method of accounting) and

interest on stage 3 loans 146.2 110.2
Total deferred tax asset 1,173.6 1,123.9
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 80.3 90.3
Deferred loan origination expenses

(net) and borrowing cost (EIR method of

accounting) and interest on stage 3 loans - -
Fair value changes in investments and derivatives 20.0 14.1
Unrealised gains chargeable to tax on realisation

basis 746.2 481.8
Fair value changes on financial assets (loans) 1.239.1 1.103.0
Total deferred tax liability 2,085.6 1,689.2
Net deferred tax usset/(liability) (912.0) (565.3)
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In assessing the realisability of deferred tax assets, management has considered whether it is
probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realised. The ultimate
realisation of the deferred tax asset is dependent on the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management has
considered the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, the projected future taxable income
and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable incomes over the periods in which the deferred tax
assets are deductible, management believes that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available against which the Company will realise the benefits of those deductible differences.

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, movement in temporary differences
during the year.

X in million
Balance at Recognised i:f)::cga:::?r:- Balance at
Particulars April 1, in profit and rehensive March 31,
2023 loss account | P 2024
income

Allowance for loan losses 880.3 (69.1) - 811.2
Deferred loan origination
expenses (net) and
borrowing cost (EIR
method of accounting) and
interest on stage 3 loans 110.2 36.0 - 146.2
Depreciation on Property,
plant and equipment (90.3) 10.0 - (80.3)
Fair value changes in
investments and derivatives (14.1) (5.9) - (20.0)
Cash flow hedge reserve - - - -
Unrealised gains chargeable
to tax on realisation basis (481.8) (264.4) - (746.2)
Others 133.4 77.5 5.3 216.2
Fair value changes on
financial assets (loans) (1,103.0) - (136.1) (1,239.1)
Total (565.3) (215.9) (130.8) (912.0)
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X in million
Balance Recognised R?ﬁo‘?t'l“t‘fd Balance at
Particulars at April in profit and comprehensive March 31,
1, 2022 loss account income 2023

Allowance for loan losses 979.3 (99.0) - 880.3
Deferred loan origination
expenses (net) and
borrowing cost (EIR
method of accounting) and
interest on stage 3 loans 6.0 104.2 - 110.2
Depreciation on Property,
plant and equipment (96.7) 6.4 - (90.3)
Fair value changes in
investments and derivatives (21.7) 7.6 - (14.1)
Cash flow hedge reserve 62.1 - (62.1) -
Unrealised gains chargeable
to tax on realisation basis (411.6) (70.2) - (481.8)
Others 107.0 28.5 (2.1) 133.4
Fair value changes on
financial assets (loans) (608.6) - (494.4) (1,103.0)
Total 15.8 (22.4) (558.6) (565.3)

42. Dercognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Company, in order to meetits objective of maintaining leverage at desired level and well within
the regulatory requirements and also to ensure that its capacity of originating new loans is not
impacted due to these requirements, considered selling of certain portion of its retail mortgage
through direct assignment route from year ended March 31, 2020. The Company, w.e.f. October
1, 2020, as per its Board approved policy, classifies part of its newly originated loans in to ‘Hold’
and ‘Hold and sell’ categories. Further, considering the Asset Liability Maturity, liquidity plans
and funding needs, the Company sells a part of a portfolio which has been originally classified
as amortised cost and continues to hold certain portion of those loans as Minimum Retention
Requirement (MRR) as per the regulatory requirement. As the Company transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards relating to sold portion of loan, the same is derecognised.

The following table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, the summary of carrying amounts
of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost at the time of derecognition
and the gain/(loss) on derecognition.
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X in million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carrying amount at the time of derecognition 4.952.1 9.351.2
Gain on derecognised financial assets?? 480.3 430.0

1. Since the Company transferred the above financial asset in a transfer that qualified for derecognition in its entirety therefore
the whole of the interest spread at its present value (discounted over the expected life of the asset) is recognised on the date
of derecognition as EIS with a corresponding credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2. Includes upfront amortisation of income on loan origination of X 15.7 million (March 31, 2023: X 22.5 million) and gain/(loss
recognised at the time of annual reassessment of X 226.2 million (March 31, 2023: X (23.4) million).

43. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are subject to offsetting where there is currently
a legally enforceable right to set-off recognised amounts and the Company intends to either
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability, simultaneously. Certain
derivative financial instruments are subject to master netting agreements, whereby in the case
of insolvency, derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities will be settled on a
net basis.

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the information on the impact of off-
setting on the Balance Sheet and other related information.

At March 31, 2024

X in million
Particulars Effect of offsetting on Amounts not set-off on the
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
a::(::s:ts Net Impact of
amounts Master Cash Net
Gross set off on p Collateral
amounts the presented Netting collateral (D) amount
on the Agreements (©) (A-B-C-D)
Balance
Sheet Balance (B)
Sheet (A)

Financial
assets
Other
financial
assets - - - - - - -
Financial
liabilities
Other
financial
liabilities - - - - - - -
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At March 31, 2023

X in million
Particulars Effect of offsetting on Amounts not set-off on the
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
a:l:zs:ts Net Impact of
amounts Master Cash Net
Gross set off on . Collateral
amounts the presented Netting collateral (D) amount
on the Agreements (C) (A-B-C-D)
Balance
Sheet Balance (B)
Sheet (A)

Financial
assets
Other
financial
assets - - - - - - -
Financial
liabilities
Other
financial
liabilities - - - - - - -

44. Financial risk management
Introduction and overview

The Company is exposed primarily to credit, market, liquidity and operational risk from financial
instruments.

This section presents information about the Company’s exposure to the above risks, its objectives,
policies and processes for managing the risk and methods used to measure the risk.

Risk management framework

The key principles underlying the risk management framework are as follows:

1. The Board of Directors has oversight on all the risks assumed by the Company. Specific
committees of the Board have been constituted to facilitate focused oversight of various risks.
The Board reviews the risk management policies, Risk Management Committee reviews the
compliance withriskmanagement guidelines stipulated by the RBI. It reviews key risk indicators
covering areas such as credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risks. Audit
Committee provides direction to and also monitors the quality of the internal audit function.

2. Policies approved from time to time by the Board of Directors/committees of the Board
form the governing framework for each type of risk. The business activities are undertaken
within this policy framework.
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3. Independent groups have been constituted across the Company to facilitate
independentevaluation, monitoring and reporting of various risks. These control groups
function independently of the business groups/sub-groups.

The risk management framework forms the basis of developing consistent risk principles.

Material risks are identified, measured, monitored and reported to the Board of Directors and
Board level committees.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk in its lending operations. Credit risk is the risk of loss
that may occur from the failure of any counterparty to abide by the terms and conditions of any
financial contract with the Company, principally the failure to make required payments as per
the terms and conditions of the contracts.

Objectives

The Company manages its risk with the broad objectives of mitigating the risk arising from
losses on account of the default, maintaining a healthy credit portfolio, complying with regulatory
norms as specified by RBI and maximising return to the stakeholders.

Policies and processes

All credit risk related aspects are governed by the Board approved Credit and Recovery Policy
(CRP). CRP outlines the type of products that can be offered, customer categories, target customer
profile, credit approval process and limits. The delegation structure for approval of credit limits
is approved by the Board of Directors. All credit proposals relating to construction realty finance
and other funding to corporates are rated by risk management team prior to approval by the
appropriate forum.

Credit approval authorisation structure

Every new credit facility and every extension or material change of an existing credit facility
(such as its tenor, collateral structure or major covenants) to any counterparty requires credit
approval at the appropriate authority level. The Company assigns credit approval authorities
to individuals according to their qualifications, experience and training, and these are reviewed
periodically. The authorisation is based on the level of risk and the quantum of exposure, to
ensure that the transactions with higher exposure and level of risk are put up to correspondingly
higher forum/committee for approval.

Inrespect of retail loans, all exposures are approved under operating notes or programs approved
by the Committee of Directors (COD). This involves a cluster-based approach for a particular
product or for homogeneous group of individuals/business entities that comply with certain laid
down parameter based norms. The norms vary across product segments/customer profile, but
typically include factors such as the borrower’s income, the loan-to-value ratio and demographic
parameters. The individual credit proposals are evaluated and approved by executives on the

basis of the product policies.
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Collateral management

The Company defines collateral as the assets or rights provided to the Company by the
borrower or a third party in order to secure a credit facility. The main types of collaterals are
registered/equitable mortgage of property, pledge of fixed deposits/gold ornaments, assignment
of receivables, liquidity support collateral [e.g. DSRA (Debt Service Reserve Account)]. The
Company would have the rights of secured creditor in respect of the assets offered as security
for the obligations of the borrower/obligor.

The Company ensures that the underlying documentation for the collateral provides the Company
appropriate rights over the collateral or other forms of credit enhancement including the right
to liquidate retain or take legal possession of it in a timely manner in the event of default by the
counterparty. The Company follows the due procedure as laid down under Securitisation and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI)
to take possession of assets given as collateral. The assets so repossessed are sold on behalf of
the customers so as to settle the receivables. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/
obligors. Accordingly, the collaterals are not recorded on the Balance Sheet and not treated as
non—current assets held for sale.

The collateral is valued at the time of sanctioning the credit facility and loan-to-value (LTV)
norms are applied as specified in the credit policies. For loan accounts classified as Stage 3,
collaterals are valued on annual basis.

Quantitative information of Collateral - Credit impaired assets

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, quantitative information of collaterals
of credit impaired assets.

Gross value of loan
Loan to value (LTV) range At March 31, At March 31,
2024 2023
Less than 50% 864.1 1,779.4
51 to 70% 1,190.7 1,681.1
71 to 90% 1,616.4 1,951.7
91 to 100% 239.1 197.4
More than 100% 5.7 2.0
Total 3,916.0 5,611.6
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Impairment assessment

Loans and advances are classified into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3. For classifying loans into
Stage 1 and assessing significant increase in credit risk and impairment in case of retail loans,
accounts are identified based on number of days the account is overdue. Overdue flagging is
done for day end overdues based on day end process in the system.

The Company determines credit loss allowances in accordance with Ind AS 109 as follows:
Stage 1-Borrowers having delinquencies less than or equal to 30 days overdue and not classified
as Stage 2 or 3.

Stage 2 -

a. Borrowers having delinquencies greater than 30 days overdue; or

b. Where the contractual terms of the loans were renegotiated/modified as per the RBI circular
on resolution framework for Covid-19 related stress dated August 6, 2020 and May 5, 2021
and which are not classified as Stage 3.

Stage 3 (Default) -

a. Borrowers with overdue for a period greater than 90 days; or

b. Where the contractual terms of the loans are renegotiated/modified, other than those where
contractual terms of the loans are renegotiated/modified as per the RBI circular on resolution
framework for Covid-19 related stress dated August 6, 2020 and May 5, 2021; or

c. Borrowers identified as Credit Impaired; or

d. Overdue accounts based on future cash flows being negative; or

e. Cases where fraud has been identified.

However, where moratorium is granted to borrower in accordance with extant guidance of
regulator, assets classification/staging is also in accordance with the guidance.

Further, the expected credit loss calculation for Stage 3 distinguishes between transactions in
homogeneous and non-homogenous portfolios.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECL. In order to determine whether a
borrower accounts is subject to 12-month ECL or life time ECL, the Company assesses whether
there has been a significantincrease in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company considers
an exposure in retail loans to have significantly increase in credit risk if a borrower becomes 30
days overdue on its contractual payments or where the contractual terms of loans with respect
to EMI payments and/or tenure of the loans were renegotiated/modified, as per RBI circular
on resolution framework for COVID-19 related stress. In addition to overdue days criteria, the
Company also considers an exposure in Real estate loans to have significant increase in credit
risk on moving a customer to watch list.

Basis for inputs, assumptions and the estimation techniques

The Company calculates ECL for each financial asset individually. Similarly, the determination
of the need to transfer between stages is made on an individual asset basis. The Company uses
three main components to measure ECL. These are Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default
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(LGD) and Exposure at Default (EAD). Risk Management Committee approves the underlying
estimates, assumptions and methodology for computing allowances.

The estimation techniques for the input factors for retail portfolio of the Company are described
in more detail below;

Probability of default (PD)

One year PD - For the purpose of PD estimation, the portfolio is segmented based on months-
on-books and overdue status. For estimating the PD, historical data at quarterly time points
have been used. The one-year PD is generated by taking a simple average of the defaults rates
of the most recent 20 quarters of the corresponding pool.

Life time PD — 13-year default rate is considered for lifetime PD estimation since it has been
observed that the cumulative PD curve tends to flatten out by 12" year. For cohorts where
observation window is less than 13 years, a chain ladder approach has been used to project
defaults rates over 13 years. The lifetime PD curves have been generated by taking a simple
average of the cumulative PD curves of the most recent 20 quarters of the corresponding pool.

Since a Stage 3 transaction is defaulted, the probability of default is equal to 100%.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

LGD is defined as the likely loss intensity in case of a counterparty default. It provides an
estimation of the exposure that cannot be recovered in a default event and therefore captures
the severity of a loss. For estimation of LGD, portfolio is segmented based on the default status.
The LGD for the non-default segment has been considered for all Stage 1 and 2 assets. The time
horizon ensures that the projected recoveries used for LGD estimation are based on the defaults
that have seen at least four years of recovery. The LGD estimation for the non-default segment
at each of the financial year end has been based on the observed recoveries for the accounts
moving in to default over the next one year. For cohorts where less than 4 years of observed
recoveries are available, the recoveries are projected using chain ladder projection method. The
recoveries are discounted to the default period using the cost of funds for the respective periods.

Macro-economic Variables (MEV)

The measurement of ECL should be forward looking in nature. To incorporate forward looking
macroeconomic characteristics into ECL, relationships with macroeconomic variables such as
real Gross Domestic Product, Private consumption, Lending interest rate, etc. (relevant variables
to the underlying loan portfolio) are analysed and modelled into estimates of Probability of
Default (PD) only if a strong co-relation is established between MEVs and the observed default
rates of the Company based on its historical data.

Management overlays

The Company assessed the correlation with MEVs, as detailed above, however since no significant
MEVs were identified to separately compute a statistically significant Point-in-time (PIT) PD,
scenario analysis using historical data has been carried out and has been factored into the ECL
computation, whereby Company maintains a minimum ECL% on its stage-1 portfolio. Assessment
carried out during the year ended March 31, 2024 resulted into maintaining a higher minimum
ECL% which resulted into increase in ECL provision by X 141.4 million.
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Further, in case of loans which are in certain deeper buckets, management overlays are being
applied over and above the LGDs as derived from the model. The overlays are applied primarily
due to uncertainties over collections from the borrowers in these buckets due to prolonged legal
processes affecting the recoveries and time-value loss on delayed recoveries on these buckets.
The overlays resulted into increase in ECL provision by X 487.6 million for the year ended March
31, 2024.

The change in the estimates has an impact on the ECL provision of future periods. As it is
impracticable to ascertain the impact of the same in future periods, the same is not disclosed.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The EAD is defined as the expected amount of the credit exposure to a counterparty at the time
of its default. For cases involving undrawn amount, a percentage share of undrawn amount is
added to the outstanding amount in order to appropriately reflect the expected outstanding
amount in case of a counterparty default. The calibrations of such parameters are based on
regulatory guidelines and product type specifics.

Real Estate Loans

For real estate loans the Company carries out on quarterly basis the individual borrower wise
assessment to quantify the Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) impact. The Stage 1 and
2 assets have been analysed based on scenario analysis to arrive at the potential SICR impact.
Scenarios analysis was done basis impact on sales/future demand and asset valuation.

Further, impact analysis has been done considering the developer pedigree, project completion
stage, promoter’s vested interest, affordability factor, sales velocity, location advantage and
repayment track record parameters and based on the same loans were being identified for
having low, medium and high impact. Accordingly, wherever loans are classified as high impact,
ECL as considered for stage-2 loans is applied and wherever loans are classified as medium
impact, twice of ECL considered for stage-1 is applied.

For Stage 3 accounts, discounted Cash flow analysis was done to arrive at final allowance for
each account in construction realty finance.

The underlying forecasts and assumptions applied in the determination of ECL provision are
subject to uncertainties which are often outside of the Company’s control and accordingly, actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Quantitative disclosures on credit risk

Maximum credit risk exposure
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the carrying amount of financial assets.

X in million

Category At At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balances with banks 4,502.3 4,373.1
Deposits with banks 2.5 2.5
Trade receivables (net of allowances) 23.4 20.7
Advances (net of allowances)? 225,217.9 175,436.2
Other assets 3,189.9 2,081.6
Total 232,936.0 181,914.1

1. Advances generally have a significant level of collateralisation depending on the nature of the product. Mortgage
loans are secured against residential/commercial property as collateral and gold loan are secured against gold.
Lending to construction finance customers is also secured. Collateral provides a secondary source of repayment for

funds advanced in the event that a customer cannot meet their contractual repayment obligations.

Reconciliation of gross carrying amount of loans and advances

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, movement in gross carrying amount of

loans and advances.

X in million
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance at April 1, 2023 163,755.9 9,533.4 5,611.6 178,900.9
Loans and advances originated 130,136.5 - - 130,136.5
Loans and advances purchased - - - -
Interest capitalisation - - - -
Assets derecognised (on
repayment and assignments,
excluding write-offs)? (76,426.7) (1,746.8) (2,156.1) (80,329.6)
Changes due to fair value
changes on loans classified un-
der “Hold & sell” business model 540.7 - - 540.7
Transfer to Stage 1 4,206.5 (3,056.8) (1,149.7) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (5,834.3) 6,530.9 (696.6) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (522.1) (2,685.1) 3,207.2 -
Amount written off - - (900.4) (900.4)
Balance At March 31, 2024 215,856.5 8,575.6 3,916.0 228,348.1

1. Includes assets derecognised pursuant to direct assignment transactions undertaken during the year. For details, refer note

no. 53.
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X in million
. Year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance at April 1, 2022 129,268.6 11,028.4 8,597.0 148,894.0
Loans and advances originated 88,885.2 - - 88,885.2
Loans and advances purchased - - - -
Interest capitalisation - 75.2 0.1 75.3
Assets derecognised (on
repayment and assignments,
excluding write-offs)?! (55,968.2) (1,695.0) (1,017.3) (58,680.5)
Changes due to fair value
changes on loans classified un-
der “Hold & sell” business model 1,964.6 - - 1,964.6
Transfer to Stage 1 6,999.3 (3,407.6) (3,591.7) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (6,465.8) 8,293.5 (1,827.7) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (927.8) (4,761.1) 5,688.9 -
Amount written off - - (2,237.7) (2,237.7)
Balance at March 31, 2023 163,755.9 9,533.4 5,611.6 178,900.9

1. Includes assets derecognised pursuant to direct assignment transactions undertaken during the year.

For details refer note no. 53.

Reconciliation of allowances for loans and advances

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, movement in impairment allowance for

loans and advances.

X in million
Measured at Measured at
an amount an amount On financial
Measured at equal to life equal to life assets that
an amount | time expected | time expected are purchased
Particulars equal to credit losses credit losses or ::'i inated Total
12- month on non-credit on credit crg dit
credit losses impaired impaired . ired
financial financial impaire
instruments instruments
Impairment allowance
at April 1, 2023 428.3 988.7 2,047.7 - 3,464.7
New assets originated 4298 _ _ - 429.8
Transfer to 12-month
credit losses 522.4 (235.5) (286.9) - -
Transfer to life-time
credit losses —not credit
impaired (92.5) 282.4 (189.9) - -
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Measured at

Measured at
an amount
equal to life

Measured at
an amount
equal to life

On financial
assets that

an amount | time expected | time expected hased
Particulars equal to credit losses credit losses | "¢ PUre utse;’ Total
12- month on non-credit on credit or or'g:‘.: €
credit losses impaired impaired _credt d
financial financial impaire
instruments instruments
Transfer to life-time
credit losses impaired —
credit impaired (11.3) (244.5) 255.8 - -
Reversal on write-off - - (1,537.1) -| (1,537.1)
Change in ECL on loans
measured at FVOCI - - - - -
Reversal on recovery (134.2) (133.3) (438.1) - (705.6)
Changes in provision
on account of migration
between stages and
in same stage due to
change in buckets (367.7) 168.0 1,678.1 - 1,478.4
Impairment allowance
At March 31, 2024 774.8 825.8 1,529.6 - 3,130.2

The decrease in ECL was driven by movements between stages as a result of decrease in credit
risk and change in probability of default and loss given default.

Xin million
Measured at Measured at
an amount an amount On financial
Measured at equal to life equal to life assets
an amount | time expected | time expected that are
Particulars equal to 12- credit losses credit losses purchased Total
month credit | on non-credit on credit or originated
losses impaired impaired credit
financial financial impaired
instruments instruments
Impairment allowance
at April 1, 2022 370.5 1,177.5 2,361.0 - 3,909.0
New assets originated? 177.8 7.5 * - 185.3
Transfer to 12-month
credit losses 1,075.8 (300.3) (775.5) - -
Transfer to life-time
credit losses —not credit
impaired (90.3) 386.2 (295.9) - -
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Measured at Measured at
an amount an amount On financial
Measured at equal to life equal to life assets
an amount | time expected | time expected that are
Particulars equal to 12- | credit losses credit losses purchased Total
month credit | on non-credit on credit or originated
losses impaired impaired credit
financial financial impaired

instruments instruments
Transfer to life-time
credit losses impaired —
credit impaired (18.0) (491.3) 509.3 - -
Reversal on write-off - - (972.5) - (972.5)
Change in ECL on loans
measured at FVOCI - - - - -
Reversal on recovery (28.6) (139.1) (386.3) - (554.0)
Changes in provision
on account of migration
between stages and
in same stage due to
change in buckets (1,058.9) 348.2 1,607.6 - 896.9
Impairment allowance
at March 31, 2023 428.3 988.7 2,047.7 - 3,464.7

* Insignificant amount

1. Includes ECL on interest capitalised on loans under moratorium.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the closing balance
allowance on loans and advances.

of impairment

X in million

Particulars At At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment allowances measured at an amount
equal to 12- month credit losses 774.8 428.3
Impairment allowances measured at an amount
equal to life time expected credit losses on
non-credit impaired financial instruments 825.8 988.7
Impairment allowances measured at an amount
equal to life time expected credit losses on credit
impaired financial instruments 1,529.6 2,047.7
Total 3,130.2 3,464.7
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The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, comparison between provisions
required as per RBI Master Directions and impairment allowances made under Ind AS 1009.

At March 31, 2024

X in million
Loss Difference
Provisions | between Ind
Gross Allowances .
. . . Net required AS 109
. Carrying (Provisions) . . -
Particulars Stage . Carrying as per RBI Provisions
amount as | as required
amount Master and RBI
per Ind AS under Ind Direction Master
AS 109 . .
Direction
A.
Performing
Assets
Standard
Stage 1* 215,856.5 774.8 215,081.7 837.1 (62.3)
Stage 2? 8,575.6 825.8 7,749.8 587.4 238.4
Sub-Total
(A) 224,432.1 1,600.6 222,831.5 1,424.5 176.1
B. Non
Performing
Assets
(NPA)
a)Sub-stan-
dard Stage 3 2,151.6 530.4 1,621.2 303.8 226.6
b)Doubtful
Doubtful
upto 1 year Stage 3 1,210.4 580.8 629.6 289.1 291.7
Doubtful
1-3 years Stage 3 554.0 418.4 135.6 221.6 196.8
Doubtful
More than 3
years Stage 3 - = - - -
Sub-Total
for Doubtful 1,764.4 999.2 765.2 510.7 488.5
c) Loss Stage 3 ) } ) } }
Sub-Total
for NPAs (B) 3,916.0 1,529.6 2,386.4 814.5 715.1
C. Other
items such
as Stage 13 22,696.9 87.5 22,609.4 - 87.6
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Loss Difference
Gross Allowances Provisions | between Ind
. Carrying | (Provisions) Nei_: required AS.1.0 9
Particulars Stage . Carrying as per RBI Provisions
amount as | as required
amount Master and RBI
per Ind AS under Ind . .
AS 109 Direction h_llustfer
Direction
guarantees,
loan
commit- Stqge 2 - - - - -
ments etc.
which are
in the scope
of Ind AS
109 but not
covered un-
der current
RBI Master
Directions Stage 3 - - - - -
Sub-Total
(C) 22,696.9 87.5 22,609.4 - 87.5
Total Stage 1 238,553.4 862.3 237,691.1 837.1 25.2
Stage 2 8,575.6 825.8 7,749.8 587.4 238.4
Stage 3 3,916.0 1,529.6 2,386.4 814.5 715.1
Total 251,045.0 3,217.7 247,827.3 2,239.0 978.7

1.  Gross carrying amount includes fair value gain on FVOCI pool and unamortised EIR income/expense. Loss allowances

includes loss allowance on FVOCI pool.
2. Gross carrying amount includes fair value gain on FVOCI pool. Loss allowances includes loss allowance on FVOCI pool.
3.  Represents loan commitment

At March 31, 2023

X in million
Difference
Loss Provisions between
Gross Allowances . Ind AS
Carryin (Provisions) Net required 109
Particulars Stage ying . Carrying as per RBI . -
amount as | as required Provisions
amount Master
per Ind AS under Ind Direction and RBI
AS 109 Master
Direction
A.
Performing
Assets
Standard Stage 1! 163,755.9 428.3| 163,327.6 572.5 (144.2)
Stage 2 9,5334 988.7 8,544.7 720.3 268.4
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Difference

Loss Provisions between
Gross Allowances Ind AS

Carrying | (Provisions) Net required 109

. Carrying as per RBI . .
amount as | as required amount Master Provisions
per Ind AS under Ind Direction and RBI
AS 109 Master

Direction

Particulars Stage

Sub-Total
(A) 173,289.3 1,417.0 171,872.3 1,292.8 124.2

B. Non
Perforing
Assests
(NPA)

a)Sub-
standard Stage 3 2,788.0 430.1 2,357.9 394.0 36.1

b)Doubtful

Doubtful-upto
1 year Stage 3 1,327.0 451.6 875.4 310.6 141.0

Doubtful-1-3
years Stage 3 716.5 385.9 330.6 283.2 102.7

Doubtful
-More than 3
years Stage 3 780.1 780.1 - 780.1 -

Sub-Total for
Doubtful 2,823.6 1,617.6 1,206.0 1,373.9 243.7

c) Loss Stage 3 - - - - -

Sub-Total for
NPAs (B) 5,611.6 2,047.7 3,563.9 1,767.9 279.8

C. Other
items such as
guarantees, Stage 12 10,603.1 30.0 10,573.1 - 30.0
loan
commitments
etc. which
are in the Stage 2 - - - - -
scope of Ind
AS 109 but
not covered
under current
RBI Master
Directions Stage 3 - - - - -
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X in million
Difference
Loss Provisions between
Gross Allowances . Ind AS
Carrying (Provisions) Net required 109
Particulars Stage d . Carrying as per RBI . -
amount as | as required amount Master Provisions
per Ind AS under Ind Direction and RBI
AS 109 Master
Direction
Sub-Total (C) 10,603.1 30.0/ 10,573.1 - 30.0
Total Stage 1 174,359.0 458.3| 173,900.7 572.5 (114.2)
Stage 2 9,533.4 988.7 8,544.7 720.3 268.4
Stage 3 5,611.6 2,047.7 3,563.9 1,767.9 279.8
Total 189,504.0 3,494.7| 186,009.3 3,060.7 434.0

1. Gross carrying amount includes fair value gain on FVOCI pool and unamortised EIR income/expense. Loss allowances
includes loss allowance on FVOCI pool.
2. Represents loan commitment.

Impairment on financial instruments by category

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, closing balances of impairment
allowances by category of financial instruments.

X in million
At March 31, 2024
On financial
. On financial instruments
Particulars . .
instruments measured as fair Total
measured at value through other
amortised cost comprehensive
income
1
Loan and advances 2,385.2 745.0 3,130.2
Trade receivables ) ) )
Total 2,385.2 745.0 3,130.2

1. Excluding allowance for loan commitment of X 87.5 million.
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X in million
At March 31, 2023
On financial
. On financial instruments
Particulars . .
instruments measured as fair Total
measured at value through other
amortised cost comprehensive
income
Loan and advances?
3,138.3 326.4 3,464.7
Trade receivables _ _ -
Total 3,138.3 326.4 3,464.7

1. Excluding allowance for loan commitment of X 30.0 million.

Ageing analysis of loans and advances

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the ageing analysis of gross carrying

amount of loans and advances.

X in million
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Not due 215,807.8 8,453.4 - 224,261.2
Overdue up to 30 days 48.7 8.3 - 57.0
Overdue 31 - 60 days - 91.1 - 91.1
Overdue 61 - 90 days - 22.8 - 22.8
Overdue More than 90 days? - - 3,916.0 3,916.0
Total 215,856.5 8,575.6 3,916.0 228,348.1
1. Includes instalments which are not due.
X in million
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Not due 163,706.4 9,407.2 - 173,113.6
Overdue up to 30 days 49.5 10.0 - 59.5
Overdue 31 - 60 days - 87.4 - 87.4
Overdue 61 - 90 days - 28.8 - 28.8
Overdue More than 90 days? - - 5,611.6 5,611.6
Total 163,755.9 9,533.4 5,611.6 178,900.9

1. Includes instalments which are not due.

The contractual amount outstanding on loans that have been written off, but are still subject to
enforcement activity amounts to X 5,129.0 million at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023:X 5,023.3

million).
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Concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is monitored in accordance with the guidelines stipulated by the RBI. None of the
borrower has exceeded the Single Borrower Limit and Group Borrower Limit as set by the

regulator during the year ended March 31, 2024.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the product wise concentration of loans

and advances.

X in million

Particulars ot o~
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Mortgage loans 216,747.8 172,756.2
Real estate loans 11,247.8 5,795.4
Loan against securities/deposits 19.1 18.2
Gold loan 3334 331.1
Total 228,348.1 178,900.9

Loans under RBI resolution framework

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details with respect to loans where
resolution plan has been implemented as per RBI circulars on ‘Resolution
COVID-19 - related stress’ dated August 6, 2020 and May 5, 2021.

Framework for

X in million
Type of Exposure Of (A), aggre- | Of (A), amount | Of (A) amount Exposure
borrower to accounts gate debt that written off paid by the to accounts
classified slipped into during the borrowers classified as
as standard NPA during the half-year! during the Standard
consequent to half-year half-year consequent to
implementation implementation
of resolution of resolution
plan - Position plan — Position
as at the end of as at the end of
the March 31, Sept 30, 2023
2023 (A)
Personal
loans 29711 89.6 11.2 285.0 2,607.7
Corporate
persons 809.5 22.0 0.1 87.5 701.8
Of which,
MSMEs 319.5 0.6 * 62.0 256.7
Others 1,127.8 17.5 18 166.1 948.0
Total 4,908.4 129.1 13.1 538.6 4,257.5

1. Represents debt that slipped into NPA and was subsequently written off during the half-year ended September 30, 2023
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Exposure Exposure
to accounts to accounts
classified classified as
as standard of (A), Of (A), amount Of (A) amount Standard
Type of _consequent t © uggregu_t e debt writ’ten off paid by the consequent to
borrower implementation that slipped during the borrowers implementation
of resolution | into NPA during half-vear during the of resolution
plan - Position the half-year y half-year plan Position
as at the end as at March 31,
of the Sept 30, 2024
2023(A)
Personal
loans 2,607.7 52.3 1.2 266.4 2,298.7
Corporate
persons 701.8 14.6 - 88.9 599.6
Of which,
MSMEs 256.7 - - 61.6 195.0
Others 948.0 9.7 - 104.5 837.4
Total 4,257.5 76.6 1.2 459.8 3,735.7

1. Represents debt that slipped into NPA and was subsequently written off during the half-year ended March 31, 2024
Liquidity Risk Management

In line with RBI guidelines and ICICI Group’s overall business framework, the Board of the
Company had approved a comprehensive ALM policy that defines composition of Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) and the ALM framework for liquidity and interest rate risk
management. ALCO reviews the Asset Liability profile and interest rates on regular basis.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations

associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Company proactively manages liquidity risk as part of its ALM function. The ALCO of the
Company monitors liquidity risk through various tools like statements of short term dynamic
liquidity, structural liquidity, liquidity stock ratios, Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) amongst others.

For measuring and managing net funding requirements, the Company has adopted use of a
maturity ladder and calculation of cumulative surplus or deficit of funds at selected maturity dates.
The Statement of Structural Liquidity is prepared by placing all cash inflows and outflows in the
maturity ladder according to the expected timing of cash flows. The Company monitors absolute
and/or cumulative mismatches across all time buckets by establishing internal prudential limits
consistent with regulatory requirements. Further, the Statement of Structural Liquidity is used
as a standard tool for measuring and managing net funding requirements and the assessment
of a surplus or shortfall of funds in various maturity buckets in the future. The Company has
certain resources (enumerated as below) at its disposal for meeting the shortfall in liquidity if
the outflows of cash occur significantly earlier than indicated in the ALM statements or are for
significantly different amounts from those indicated in the ALM statements.
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a. Balances in tri-party repo, schemes of mutual funds

b. Line of credit (overdraft limit) from banks

c. Other liquid investments (in excess of statutory requirements, if any)
d. Unavailed term loans/NCDs/Transfer of loan limits from various banks

Liquidity Contingency Plan

A Liquidity Contingency Plan (LCP) has been formulated to assist the ALCO in responding to
situations arising out of liquidity crisis. The plan is an extension of dynamic liquidity statement
and assists in:

Liquidity planning for contingencies

Identifying mitigants to liquidity stress arising out of contingencies

Assessment of liquidity indicators and liquidity monitoring threshold

Communication and action protocol

Restoring normalcy in the event of any contingency

In order to ensure stability in liquidity management, the Company’s ALM policy also defines
monitoring of liquidity ratio of ‘High value bulk deposits to Total borrowings and High value
Customers’ deposits(aggregate of all deposits having value X 250.0 million and more from single
depositors) to Total deposits’. Further as per revised regulatory framework, the Company has
adopted the below stock approach ratios in the ALM Policy.

a. Short-term liability to total assets

b. Short-term liability to long-term assets

c. Long-term assets to total assets

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the cash flows under financial liabilities
as per their residual contractual maturities at the Balance Sheet date.

At March 31, 2024

X in million

Over 1 Over 3

Particulars Up to 1 month to 3 | monthsto 1 Over 1 year Over Total
month to 5 years 5 years

months year
Trade
payables 867.4 - - - - 867.4
Debt
securities 275.3 7,530.7 21,892.5 41,775.3 2,576.5 74,050.3
Borrowings 331.9 1,703.5 11,757.9 45,255.4 12,887.0| 71,935.7
Deposits 500.9 1,158.9 7,400.0 26,742.2 2,304.2 38,106.2
Subordinate
liabilities = 61.1 77.7 - 4,196.7 4,335.5
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Uptol Over 1 Over 3 Over 1 year Over
Particulars P month to 3 | monthsto 1 d Total
month to 5 years 5 years
months year
Committed
credit lines - 109.2 3,659.4 26,765.8 51,215.6 81,750.0
Derivative
financial
liabilities - - - - - -
Other
financial
liabilities 11,731.8 1,833.2 126.4 467.9 346.1 14,505.4
At March 31, 2023 L
X in million
Over 1 Over 3
Particulars Up to 1 month to 3 | months to 1 Over 1 year Over Total
month to 5 years 5 years
months year
Trade
payables 661.3 - - - - 661.3
Debt
securities 1,152.3 6,890.3 10,419.5 33,561.8 2,576.0 54,599.9
Borrowings 94.5 842.5 6,773.1 37,042.4 8,503.0| 53,255.5
Deposits 1,153.4 3,568.8 8,184.7 20,801.2 2,917.7 36,625.8
Subordinate
liabilities - 60.9 77.5 - 4,197.3 4,335.7
Committed
credit lines - 251.7 2,122.0 20,937.4 26,813.3 50,124.4
Derivative
financial
liabilities - - - - - -
Other
financial
liabilities 8,5685.8 1,507.5 110.6 167.2 910.4 11,2815

For non-derivative financial liabilities, amounts represent undiscounted cash flows.

Market risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk.

a. Currency risk (or foreign exchange risk) arises on financial instruments that are denominated
in a foreign currency, that is, in a currency other than the functional currency in which they

are measured.
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The Company does not have any foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2024.

b. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates might adversely affect the
Company’s financial condition. It is the risk of potential variability in earnings and capital
value resulting from changes in market interest rates. A Company generally faces interest
rate risk when one side of the Balance Sheet largely has rate sensitive items and the
other side has rate insensitive items. Interest rate risk arises on interest-bearing financial
instruments recognised in the Balance Sheet (e.g. debt instruments acquired or issued) and
on some financial instruments not recognised in the Balance Sheet (e.g. loan commitments).
The Company uses various tools including gap analysis, Earnings at Risk (EaR) and duration
of equity (DoE) for interest risk management.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of borrowings into variable
rate and fixed rate.

Particulars At At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Variable rate borrowings 36.4% 38.2%
Fixed rate borrowings 63.6% 61.8%
Total borrowings 100.0% 100.0%

At March 31, 2024, the Company has Earnings (Profit) at Risk (EaR) impact of X 247.3 million
(March 31, 2023: X 129.6 million) due to interest rate sensitivity of 100 basis point adverse
change in borrowing rates and 50 basis point adverse change in lending rates as per approved
Asset Liability Management Policy of the Company.

c. Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as the result of changes
in their prices. The Company does not trade in equities. The unquoted investments are
valued in accordance with Ind AS 113 ‘Fair Value Measurements’. The Company does not
have any significant value of investments in equities.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems or from external events.

Operational risk management in the Company follows three lines of defense approach:

1. Thefirstline of defense is business line management -They are responsible for identifying and
managing operational risks inherent in the products and processes. They are also responsible
for assessing and enhancing controls thereby promoting a strong risk culture.

2. Second line of defense is risk management group —They are responsible for independent
review of processes and functions and implementation of the operational risk management
function in the Company. Key responsibilities include risk identification, risk assessment, risk

measurement, risk monitoring, and risk reporting.
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3. Third line of defense is internal audit department -They provide independent assurance
that the first and second lines are operating in line with policies, regulations and internal
standards defined for management of operational risk in the Company. Operational risk and
related areas are governed by the Board approved policies.

45. Fair value measurements

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company
and provides additional information on Balance Sheet items that contain financial instruments.
The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised are disclosed in note
3.

a) Valuation framework

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal market at the measurement date under current market
conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.

The Company uses valuation models for computing the valuation of instruments wherever a
traded price is not readily available for such instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company measures fair values using the following value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1

Valuation is based upon unadjusted quoted prices of identical instruments traded in active
markets. The instruments that have been valued based upon such quoted prices include mutual
funds.

Level 2

Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, prices quoted by market
participants and prices derived from valuation models which use significant inputs that are
observable in active markets. The instruments that have been valued based upon such valuation
include derivatives.

Level 3

Valuation is based on valuation techniques or models which use data based on unobservable
market input or assumptions. Financial instruments are considered Level 3 when their values are
determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques and
at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable or when determination of the
fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.
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Valuation models

Level 1

Prices quoted in active markets — The fair value of instruments that are quoted in active markets
is determined using the quoted prices where they represent prices at which regularly and recently
occurring transactions take place.

Level 2

Valuation techniques with observable inputs - The Company uses valuation techniques to
establish the fair value of instruments where price, quoted in active markets, are not available.
Valuation techniques used for financial instruments include modeling techniques, the use of
indicative quotes for proxy instruments, quotes from recent and less regular transactions and
broker quotes.

Derivatives are valued using mark-to-market receivable/payable indicated by the counterparties.
The valuation derived based on counterparties quote are also independently validated.

Level 3

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs - This level of hierarchy includes
financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation
model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The following table sets forth, carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories
at March 31, 2024.

X in million
Fair Derivative irlii:lt‘l’:l?r::s Fair value Total
. value [ instruments . through other | Amortised . Total fair
Particulars . . not in . carrying
through | in hedging . comprehensive cost value
. : hedging . value
P&L relationship . . income
relationship
Assets
Cash
and cash
equivalents - - - 4,502.3 4,502.3 4,502.3
Bank
deposits - - - 2.5 2.5 2.5
Derivative
financial - -
instruments - - - -
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. . Derivative .
Fair Derivative instruments Fair value Total
value | instruments through other | Amortised Total fair

Particulars through | in hedging h:zt :: comprehensive cost CT:I):: :g value
P&L relationship fging income
relationship

Trade
receivables - - - - 23.4 23.4 234

Loans = = = 105,183.6| 120,034.3 | 225,217.9| 225,217.9

Investments | 1019 - - -| 31965| 32984| 32786

Other
financial
assets - - - - 3,189.9 3,189.9 3,189.9

Total 101.9 - - 105,183.6 | 130,948.9 | 236,234.4 | 236,214.6

Liabilities

Derivative
financial
instruments - - - - - - -

Trade
and other
payables - - - - 867.4 867.4 867.4

Borrowings
(including
Debt
securities,
Deposits
and
Subordinate
Liabilities)

- - - -| 188,251.3| 188,251.3| 186,138.4

Other
financial
liabilities - - - -1 14,505.4| 14,505.4| 14,505.4

Total - - - - | 203,624.1| 203,624.1| 201,511.2

At March 31, 2024, financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss was X 101.9 million,
financial assets carried at fair value through OCI was X 105,183.6 million and financial assets
carried at amortised cost was X 130,948.9 million. A significant portion of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are mainly investments in liquid debt securities (classified as
Level 1) and accordingly, material volatility is not expected.

Loans and advances carried at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, which are valued
considering allowances for losses using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method. Based on the
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asasessment as given in note no. 44 on ECL, the allowance for loans of X 3,130.2 million at
March 31, 2024 is considered adequate.

A Significant amount of financial assets, other than loans and advances which are carried
at amortised cost are in the form of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, government
securities, where in the Company does not expect any increase in credit risk.

The following table sets forth, carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories
at March 31, 2023.

X in million
Fair Derivative _;:::iv:‘t:::s Fair value Total
. value | instruments | ' um through other | Amortised . Total fair
Particulars . . not in . carrying
through | in hedging h . comprehensive cost value
. : edging . value
P&L relationship . . income
relationship
Assets
Cash
and cash
equivalents - - - - 4,373.1 4,373.1 4,373.1
Bank
deposits - - - - 2.5 2.5 2.5
Derivative
financial
instruments - - - - - - -
Trade
receivables - - - - 20.7 20.7 20.7
Loans - - - 71,645.7| 103,790.5( 175,436.2 | 175,436.2
Investments | 1 687.5 - - -| 3,304.1| 4991.6| 49376
Other
financial
assets - - - - 2,081.6 2,081.6 2,081.6
Total 1,687.5 - - 71,645.7 | 113,572.5( 186,905.7 | 186,851.7
Liabilities
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Particulars

Fair value
through
P&L

Derivative
instruments
in hedging
relationship

Derivative
instruments
not in
hedging
relationship

Fair value
through other
comprehensive

income

Amortised
cost

Total
carrying
value

Total fair
value

Derivative
financial
instruments - - - - - - -

Trade
and other
payables - - - -

661.3 661.3 661.3

(including
Debt
securities,

Deposits
and
Subordinate
Liabilities) - - - -

Other
financial
liabilities - - - -

148,618.2| 148,618.2| 145,743.4

11,281.5| 11,281.5| 11,2815

Total

160,561.0 | 160,561.0 | 157,686.2

At March 31, 2023, financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss was X 1,687.5
million, financial assets carried at fair value through OCI was X 71,645.7 million and financial
assets carried at amortised cost was X 113,572.5 million. A significant portion of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are mainly investments in liquid debt securities
(classified as Level 1) and accordingly, material volatility is not expected.

Loans and advances carried at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, which are valued
considering allowances for losses using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method. Based on the
assessment as given in note no. 44 on ECL, the allowance for loans of X 3,464.7 million at March
31, 2023 is considered adequate.

A Significant amount of financial assets, other than loans and advances which are carried
at amortised cost are in the form of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, government
securities, where in the Company does not expect any increase in credit risk.
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The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1, 2 and 3.

X in million

At March 31, 2024

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Investments

Mutual funds

Equity Shares

101.9

101.9

Units of venture capital
funds

15.3

15.3

Loans classified under “Hold
& sell” business model

105,183.6

105,183.6

Derivative financial assets

Total

105,300.8

105,300.8

Less: Provision held?

(15.3)

(15.3)

Total

105,285.5

105,285.5

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Total

1. Provision held as per the RBI notification RBI/2023-24/90 DOR.STR.REC.58/21.04.048/2023-24 dated December 19, 2023,
on Investments in Alternative Investment Funds (AlFs).

X in million

At March 31, 2023

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Investments

Mutual funds

1,615.4

1,615.4

Equity Shares

56.5

56.5

Units of venture capital
funds

15.6

15.6

Loans classified under
“Hold & sell” business model

71,645.7

71,645.7

Derivative financial assets

Total

1,615.4

71,717.8

73,333.2

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial
liabilities

Total
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b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value measurement
Estimated fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature and are made at a specific point in time
based on the characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant market information. Quoted
market prices are used, wherever available. In other cases, fair values are based on estimates
using present value or other valuation techniques. These techniques involve uncertainties and are
significantly affected by the assumptions used and judgments made regarding risk characteristics
of various financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates and the resulting fair values.
Derived fair value estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated by comparison to independent
markets and may not be realised in an immediate sale of the instruments.

The short-term financial assets (cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, receivables
and other assets) and liabilities (Trade payables and other liabilities) are stated at amortised
cost, which is approximately equal to their fair value.

The details of methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments is given below.

i. Loans and advances

Substantially all the loans reprice frequently, with interest rates reflecting current market pricing,
hence the carrying value of loan approximates fair value. The advances are classified as level 3
instruments in view of absence of any significant market observable data for valuation of these
instruments.

ii. Investments

The Company has investments in government securities which are carried at amortised cost. The
fair value of these investments is computed based on prices published by Fixed Income Money
Market and Derivatives Association (FIMMDA)/Financial Benchmark India Private Limited (FIBIL).

iii. Debt securities and other borrowings (including fixed deposits)

The fair value of the Company’s debt is estimated by discounting future contractual cash flows
using appropriate interest rates and credit spreads. The carrying value of short-term borrowings
approximates fair value. The borrowings in the form of bonds and debentures (including MLDs
and sub-debts) are classified as level 2 instruments. All other borrowings are classified as level
3 instruments.

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated provides an analysis of fair value of
financial instruments that are not measured at fair value, grouped into Level 1, 2 and 3 categories.
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X in million
At March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Loans - = 120,034.3 120,034.3
| t t
nvestments 3,176.7 _ - 3,176.7
Total 3,176.7 - 120,034.3 123,211.0
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 71,818.0 114,320.4 186,138.4
Total - 71,818.0 114,320.4 186,138.4
X in million
At March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Loans
- - 103,790.5 103,790.5
| t t
nvestments 3.250.1 ) ) 3.250.1
Total 3,250.1 - 103,790.5 107,040.6
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 51,040.8 94,702.6 145,743.4
Total - 51,040.8 94,702.6 145,743.4

c) Reclassification of financial assets

During financial years ended March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023, the Company had not
reclassified any of financial assets from one category to another category.

d) Movement in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
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The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the reconciliation of the opening and
closing amounts of level 3 financial assets measured at fair value.

X in million

Description

Equity

instruments

Units of Venture
capital fund

Loans Measured
at fair value

Total

Opening balance
at April 1, 2023

56.5

15.6

71,645.7

71,717.8

Total gains or
losses included in
statement of Profit
and Loss

45.4

(0.3)

45.1

Expected Credit
Loss (ECL)
included in
statement of Profit
and Loss

(418.5)

(418.5)

Purchases/
Originated

71,348.3

71,348.3

Sales

(37,932.6)

(37,932.6)

Total gains or
losses included
in Other
Comprehensive
Income (OCI)

2,561.0

2,561.0

Gain/(loss)
reclassified to
Profit & Loss

(2,020.3)

(2,020.3)

Closing balance
at March 31, 2024

101.9

15.3

105,183.6

105,300.8

Provision held1

(15.3)

(15.3)

Net balance at
March 31, 2024

101.9

105,183.6

105,285.5

Total amount of
gains or (losses)
included in
Statement of Profit
and Loss on account
attributable to
change in unrealised
gains or (losses)
relating to assets
still held at reporting
date

45.4

(15.6)

1. Fully provided for as required by RBI/2023-24/90 DOR.STR.REC.58./21.04.048/1023-24 dated December 19, 2023, on
investments in Alternative Investment Funds(AIF).
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X in million

Equity Units of Venture | Loans Measured Total

Description instruments capital fund at fair value

Opening balance at
April 1, 2022

443.3

16.2

37,550.6

38,010.1

Total gains or losses
included in State-
ment of Profit and
Loss

38.9

(0.6)

38.3

Total gains or losses
included in State-
ment of Profit and
Loss

38.9

(0.6)

38.3

Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) included in
Statement of Profit
and Loss

(173.6)

(173.6)

Purchases/
Originated

46,982.3

46,982.3

Sales

(425.7)

(14,678.2)

(15,103.9)

Total gains or losses
included in Other
Comprehensive
Income (OCI)

2,748.9

2,748.9

Gain/(loss)
reclassified to Profit
& Loss

(784.3)

(784.3)

Closing balance
at March 31, 2023

56.5

15.6

71,645.7

71,717.8

Total amount of
gains or (losses)
included in
Statement of Profit
and Loss on account
attributable to
change in unrealised
gains or (losses)
relating to assets
still held at reporting
date

38.9

(0.6)

38.3

1. Represents sale of investment in the Asset Reconstruction Company India Limited (ARCIL) which were classified as asset
held for sale at March 31,2021.
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e) Unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments categorised
as level 3

Thefollowingtables setforth, forthe periodsindicated, information aboutsignificantunobservable
inputs used in measuring financial instruments categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

X in million
Fair value
Type of financial Fair value Significant measurement
instruments At March 31, 2024 unobservable input sensitivity to

unobservable inputs

Unlisted equity A significant increase/
decrease in the price
Fair value as determined | would  result in a
101.9 | by Independent valuer | higher/lower fair value

Venture funds? A significant increase/
Net Assets Value (NAV) [ decrease in the NAV
provided by the Venture |would result in a
- [Capital Fund (VCF) | higher/lower fair value

Loans classified under A significant increase/
“Hold & sell” business decrease in the pre-
model Pre-payment rate | paymentand/ordiscount
Discount rate [ rate would result in a

105,183.6 lower/higher fair value

Total 105,285.5 - -

1. Fully provided for as required by RBI/2023-24/90 DOR.STR.REC.58/21.04.048/2023-24 dated December 19, 2023, on
Investments in Alternative Investment Funds (AIFs).

Investment in equity shares is valued by Independent valuer using investee company’s net worth.
Based on the assessment of current financial conditions and business prospects of investee
company, valuation was appropriately discounted to reflect the risks and uncertain market
conditions. Any changes in the scenario could be a key risk to valuation.

X in million
Fair value
Type of financial Fair value Significant measurement
instruments At March 31, 2023 unobservable input sensitivity to

unobservable inputs

Unlisted equity A significant increase/

Fair value as determined

decrease in the price
\t,)zme:he Independent would result in a higher/

56.5 lower fair value

Venture funds A significant increase/
Net Assets Value (NAV) decrease in the NAV

provided by the Venture . .
. would result in a higher/
Capital Fund (VCF) lower fair value
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Fair value
Type of financial Fair value Significant measurement
instruments At March 31, 2023 unobservable input sensitivity to
unobservable inputs
Loans classified under A significant increase/
“Hold & sell” business decrease in the
model Pre-payment rate | pre-payment and/or
Discount rate [ discount rate would
result in a lower/
71,645.7 higher fair value
Total 71,717.8

The effect of unobservable inputs on fair value measurement

Although the Company believes that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value.

The total outstanding carrying amount of unlisted equity and units in venture capital funds at
March 31, 2024 was X 101.9 million (at March 31, 2023: X 72.1 million). The most significant
input impacting the fair value of the unlisted equity shares and units in venture capital fund are
prices or values provided by external valuer/fund and recent market transactions. A 10% change
in price would result in an impact of X 10.2 million (at March 31, 2023: X 7.2 million).

The total outstanding carrying amount of loans under FVOCI category at March 31, 2024 was
X 105,183.6 million (at March 31, 2023: 71,645.7 million). The most significant input impacting
the fair value of the loans under FVOCI category is pre-payment rate and discount rate used by
the Company. An upward 10% change in pre-payment rate and discount rate would resultin an
impact of X 398.8 million and X 1,583.4 million respectively (at March 31, 2023: X 350.4 million
and X 1,192.2 million respectively) and a downward 10% change would result in an impact of
X 479.0 million and X 1,616.1 million respectively (at March 31, 2023: X 420.0 million and

X 1,219.1 million respectively).
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46. Employee benefits
Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The Company’s defined benefit
gratuity plan requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The fund
has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees is
responsible for the administration of the plan assets.

The gratuity benefit is provided through annual contributions to a fund administered and
managed by ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited (ICICI Prudential). Under this
scheme, the settlement obligation remains with the Company.

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and the Company is exposed to the following risks:

a) Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Securities rate,
will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount
rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of
the asset.

b) Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to
the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than
the assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

c) Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using
a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the reporting date on
government bonds. If the return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

d) Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan are not payable for life time and payable till
retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the funded status of the plans and the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

X in million

Particular Year ended Year ended
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Change in benefit obligations
Opening obligations 100.7 97.8
Service cost 19.6 18.2
Interest cost 7.1 5.5
Remeasurements gains/(losses)
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. Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
Particulars

2024 2023

-Actuarial gain/(loss) from changes in

demographic assumptions - -
-Actuarial gain/(loss) from changes in

financial assumptions 2.4 (9.2)
-Actuarial gain/(loss) from changes in

experience adjustments 22.1 (3.7)
Past service cost _ _
Transfer in/(out) of liability 217 )
Benefits paid (46.0) (7.9)
Benefit obligations at the end of the year 127.6 100.7

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the
year 101.3 107.2

Interest on plan assets

7.5 6.4
Actual return on plan assets less interest on
plan assets 35 (4.4)
Actuarial gain/(loss) from changes in
demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) from changes in financial
assumptions - -
Employer contributions _ }
Transfer in/(out) of assets 21.7 _
Benefits paid (46.0) (7.9)
Plan assets at the end of the year 88.0 101.3
Expected employer’s contribution next year 10.0 10.0
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the
year 88.0 101.3
Present value of the defined benefit
obligations at the year 127.6 100.7
Unrecognised prior service cost _ _
Amount not recognised as an Asset : )
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the components of the income and
expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

X in million

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Opening balance of actuarial
(gains)/losses recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

(14.3)

(5.8)

Remeasurements loss/(gains)

Actuarial loss or gain arising from:

Demographic assumptions

Financial assumptions

24

(9.2)

Experience adjustment

22.1

(3.7)

Return on plan assets excluding interest
income

(3.5)

4.4

Effects of movements in exchange rates

Closing balance of actuarial
(gains)/losses recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

6.7

(14.3)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the components of the net gratuity cost

recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

X in million

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Service cost

19.6 18.2
Interest cost/(income) (0.4) (0.9)
Amortisation of prior service cost ~ _
Net gratuity cost 19.2 17.3
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Gratuity cost is included in the line item ‘Employee benefits expenses’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The discount rate used to discount gratuity obligations has been determined with reference to
the prevailing market yields on government of India bonds, for the estimated term of obligations,
at the end of the reporting period.

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, assumptions used to determine benefit

obligations.
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.20% 7.55%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 7.00% 7.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality
tables. The current longevities underlying the value of the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting date were as follows:

Age (years) Year ended Year ended

ge ly March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
21-24 41% 41%
25-29 36% 36%
30-34 30% 30%
35-44 20% 20%
45 and above 9% 9%
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Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assump-
tions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amount shown below.

X in million

Particulars (years) At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023

Discount rate (0.5% movement)

On increase (3.3) (2.7)

On decrease 3.7 3.0

Future salary growth (0.5% movement)

On increase 3.7 3.0

On decrease (3.4) (2.7)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in
the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There is no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.
Plan assets

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the asset allocation for gratuity by asset
category based on fair values.

X in million

At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023

Asset Category Amount | As percentage Amount | As percentage
of total of total

Insured managed funds 87.5 99.4% 100.9 99.6%
Others 0.5 0.6% 0.4 0.4%
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Maturity analysis of the benefit payments from the fund

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, maturity analysis of the benefit payments
from the fund.

X in million
Future year from the date of reporting At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
1st year
25.7 13.4
2nd year
15.0 12.1
3rd year
135 13.0
4th year
17.6 25.1
5th year
114 8.2
6th year
19.2 7.8
7th year
10.5 9.5
8th year
15.7 11.6
9th year
8.5 80.8
10th year and above 66.7 58.2

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 5.51 years (March 31, 2023: 5.67 years).

Compensated absence

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details for compensated absence.

X in million
Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Cost 44.4 19.2
Assumptions
Discount rate 7.20% 7.55%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%

Cost for the year is included in the line item ‘Employee benefits expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

Employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund. These
contributions were being made under defined benefit obligation plan to a fund set up by the
Company and administered by a Board of Trustees. With effect from August 1, 2022, the
administration of the Employees’ Provident Fund was transferred to the Employees’ Provident
Fund Organisation (EPFO). Accordingly, monthly contributions from July 2022 and onwards
were paid to the EPFO as defined contribution plan. The Company contributed X 119.7 million
towards defined contribution plan for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 58.1
million towards defined contribution plan and X 17.6 million towards defined benefit plan) to the
employees’ provident fund, which includes compulsory contribution made towards employee
pension scheme under Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. This
costis included in the line item ‘Employee benefits expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, contribution made by the Company
towards defined contribution plans.

X in million

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Employer's Contribution to Provident
fund?? 119.7 58.1
Employer's Contribution to Employees
state insurance scheme?? 34 2.7
Employer's Contribution to National
Pension Scheme* 6.0 4.7
Employer's Contribution to
Superannuation Scheme* 2.7 15
Total 131.8 67.0

1. Amount represents the contribution made to Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation (EPFO) as defined contribution plan.
2. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

3. For employees eligible as per Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948.

4. For employees who have opted for the scheme.

Cost for the year is included in the line item ‘Employee benefits expenses’ in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
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47. Share based payments

In terms of an Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS), of the Parent Bank, share options are
granted to eligible employees and Directors of the Bank and its subsidiaries. As per the ESOS, as
amended from time to time, the maximum number of options granted to any eligible employees/
Directors in a financial year shall not exceed 0.05% of the Parent Bank’s issued equity shares at
the time of the grant of the options and the aggregate of all such options granted to any eligible
employees/Directors shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of the Parent Bank’s issued
equity shares on the date(s) of the grant of the options in line with SEBI Regulations.

Options granted prior to March 2014 vested in a graded manner over a four-year period, with
20%, 20%, 30% and 30% of the grants vested in each year, commencing from the end of 12
months from the date of grant. Options granted after March 2014, vest in a graded manner over a
three-year period with 30%, 30%, and 40% of the grants vesting in each year, commencing from
the end of 12 months from the date of grant. In April 2016, the Parent Bank modified the exercise
period from 10 years from the date of grant or five years from the date of vesting, whichever
is later, to 10 years from the date of vesting of options. In June 2017, the exercise period was
further modified by the Parent Bank to not exceed 10 years from the date of vesting of options
as may be determined by the Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee of
the Parent Bank to be applicable for future grants. In May 2018, exercise period was further
modified by the Parent Bank to not exceed 5 years from the date of vesting of options as may
be determined by the Board Governance, Remuneration & Nomination Committee of the Parent
Bank to be applicable for future grants.

During the year ended March 31, 2024, X 45.2 million was charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss account in respect of equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Year ended
March 31, 2023: X 41.9 million).

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, movement in share options during the
year

At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
Particulars No. of No. of
options Price? options Price?
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,076,930 339.21( 2,094,655| 311.59
Add: Granted during the year! 484,601 631.92 120,100| 747.65
Less: Exercised during the year?! 319,041 300.31 137,825( 275.29
Less: Expired/lapsed during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,242,490 408.00( 2,076,930 339.21
1. Including changes in outstanding stock options on account of group company transfers.
2. Indicates weighted average price.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the key assumptions used to estimate

the fair value of options granted.

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Risk-free interest rate

6.91% to 7.03%

5.99% to 6.62%

Expected life

3.23 to 5.23 years

3.23 to 5.23 years

Expected volatility

34.68% to 37.41%

35.75% to 38.81%

Expected dividend yield

0.56%

0.27%

The weighted average fair value, based on Black-Scholes model, of options granted by the
parent Bank during the year ended March 31, 2024 was X 340.68 (Year ended March 31, 2023:
X 291.04).

Risk free interestrates over the expected term of the option are based on the government securities
yield in effect at the time of the grant. The expected term of an option is estimated based on the
vesting term as well as expected exercise behavior of the employees who receive the option of
the Parent Bank. Expected exercise behavior is estimated based on the historical stock option
exercise pattern of the Parent Bank. Expected volatility during the estimated expected term of
the option is based on historical volatility determined based on observed market prices of the
Parent Bank’s publicly traded equity shares. Expected dividends during the estimated expected
term of the option are based on recent dividend activity of the Parent Bank.

48. Related party disclosure

The Company has transactions with its related parties comprising Holding Company, fellow
subsidiaries, post-employment benefit plans, key management personnel (KMP) and close
members of their family. The transactions between the Company and its related parties were in
the ordinary course of business and based on the principles of arm’s length.

The following table sets forth, names of related parties and their relationship as per Ind AS 24
‘Related party disclosures’.
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S.No. |Name of the related party Nature of relationship
1 ICICI Bank Limited Holding Company
2 ICICI Securities Limited Fellow Subsidiary
3 ICICI Securities Primary Dealership Limited Fellow Subsidiary
4 ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited Fellow Subsidiary
5 ICICI Securities Inc. Fellow Subsidiary
6 ICICI Securities Holdings Inc. Fellow Subsidiary
7 ICICI Venture Funds Management Company Limit- | Fellow Subsidiary
ed
8 ICICI Trusteeship Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary
9 ICICI Investment Management Company Limited | Fellow Subsidiary
10 ICICI International Limited Fellow Subsidiary
11 ICICI Bank UK PLC Fellow Subsidiary
12 ICICI Bank Canada Fellow Subsidiary
13 ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company Fellow Subsidiary
Limited
14 ICICI Prudential Trust Limited Fellow Subsidiary
15 ICICI Prudential Pension Funds Management Fellow Subsidiary
Company Limited
16 ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limit- | Fellow Subsidiary
ed?
17 I-Process Services (India) Private Limited? Fellow Subsidiary
18 India Infradebt Limited Associate of Holding Company
19 NIIT Institute of Finance, Banking and Insurance Associate of Holding Company
Training Limited
20 ICICI Merchant Services Private Limited Associate of Holding Company
21 India Advantage Fund-lil Associate of Holding Company
22 India Advantage Fund-IV Associate of Holding Company
23 Arteria Technologies Private Limited Associate of Holding Company
24 ICICI Foundation for Inclusive Growth Other related entity of Holding
Company
25 ICICI Strategic Investments Fund? Other related entity of Holding
Company
26 Comm Trade Services Limited* Other related entity of Holding

Company

Annual Report 2023-24 ﬁ




Notes Forming Part Of The Accounts

S.No. | Name of the related party Nature of relationship

27 Sandeep Bakhshi Key Managerial Personnel of
(Relatives - Shivam Bakhshi, Esha Bakhshi and Holding Company
Minal Bakhshi)

28 Anup Bagchi® Key Managerial Personnel

29 Anirudh Kamani, Managing Director and CEO Key Managerial Personnel
(Relative — Nilima Goel)®

30 Vineeta Rajadhyaksha, Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel

CEO?’

31 Sankaran Santhanakrishnan Key Managerial Personnel

32 Vinod Kumar Dhall® Key Managerial Personnel

33 G. Gopalakrishna Key Managerial Personnel

34 Supritha Shetty® Key Managerial Personnel

35 Sanjay Singhvi®® Key Managerial Personnel

36 Rakesh Jha'! Key Managerial Personnel

37 Zeenat Hamirani2 Key Managerial Personnel

38 Atul Arora®? Key Managerial Personnel

39 Sandhya Gadkari Sharmat4 Key Managerial Personnel

40 ICICI Home Finance Company Limited Employees | Post-Employment benefit plan
Provident Fund?®®

41 ICICI Home Finance Company Limited Employees |Post-Employment benefit plan

Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme

N
N

ICICI Home Finance Company Limited Employees |Post-Employment benefit plan
Superannuation Scheme

Fellow Subsidiary effective from February 29, 2024, earlier associate

Fellow Subsidiary effective from March 20, 2024, earlier associate

Entity consolidated by the Holding Company as per AS-21

Included as related party effective from June 30,2022

Ceased to be related party effective from September 17, 2022

Ceased to be related party effective from February 16, 2024

Included as related party effective from February 16, 2024

Ceased to be related party effective from January 17, 2024

Ceased to be related party effective from January 5, 2023

10. Ceased to be related party effective from July 25, 2023

11. Included as related party effective from October 13, 2022

12. Included as related party effective from January 5, 2023 and ceased to be related party effective from
November 29, 2023

13. Included as related party effective from July 23, 2023

14. Included as related party effective from January 13, 2024

15. W.e.f August 1, 2022, the administration of the Employees’ Provident Fund has been transferred to the

Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation (EPFO).

CONOUTAWNE
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of outstanding balance with related

parties.
X in million
At At
Particulars Name of::\e related r::::il:::sz: March 31, | March 31,
party P 2024 2023
Assets
Bank Balance ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
(Including interest
outstanding on
Fixed Deposit) 2,167.7 831.1
Fee Receivable ICICI Lombard General | Fellow subsidiary
Insurance Company
Limited 10.3 9.3
ICICI Prudential Life Fellow subsidiary
Insurance Company
Limited 12.2 10.3
Loan Receivable Anirudh Kamani, Man- | Key Managerial Per-
from KMP (staff aging Director and sonnel
home loan)? CEO NA 52.5
Other Receivable [ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 67.3 58.6
I-Process Services Fellow subsidiary
(India) Private Limited 0.1 *
Liabilities
Equity Share ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
Capital 12,035.3| 12,035.3
Loans ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 3,075.0 1,208.3
Bank/book over- ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
drafts in current
accounts 11,259.8 7,918.8
Amount collected |ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
from borrowers
pending to be
transferred (for
portfolio sold) 1,065.7 893.0
Security deposit ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
payable 5.8 5.8
Fee Payable ICICI Bank Limited Holding company - 5.5
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At At
Particulars Name Of::'e related r;:::;:)l:sﬁ: March 31, | March 31,
party P 2024 2023
Bonds ICICI Lombard General | Fellow subsidiary
Insurance Company
Limited 1,600.0 1,600.0
ICICI Securities Limited | Fellow subsidiary - 0.5
Interest payable on | ICICI Lombard General | Fellow subsidiary
bonds Insurance Company
Limited 29.5 29.2
ICICI Securities Limited | Fellow subsidiary - *
Fixed deposits Anirudh Kamani, Key Managerial
accepted (FDs) Managing Director and | Personnel
CEO NA 4.8
Nilima Goel Relative of Key
Managerial Personnel NA 14
Shivam Bakhshi Relative of Key 1.7 3.2
Esha Bakhshi Managgrial Personnel 16 26
of Holding Company
Minal Bakhshi 15 2.2
Interest payable on | Anirudh Kamani, Key Managerial
FD Managing Director and | Personnel
CEO NA 0.9
Nilima Goel Relative of Key
Managerial Personnel NA 0.3
Other payables ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 78.4 66.7
(Including on ICICI Securities Limited | Fellow subsidiary 2.3 3.9
account of
expenses) ICICI Investment Fellow subsidiary
Management Company
Limited 0.3 0.4
Directors Sankaran Key Managerial
commission Santhanakrishnan Personnel 0.8 0.8
payable? Vinod Kumar Dhall Key Managerial
Personnel NA 0.8
G. Gopalakrishna Key Managerial
Personnel 0.8 0.8
Sandhya Gadkari Key Managerial
Sharma Personnel 0.2 -
Others
Letter of ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
undertaking
(utilised) 8,260.9( 11,5148
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At At
Particulars Name of the related Nat_u re of March 31, | March 31,
party relationship 2024 2023
Guarantee ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 2.5 2.5
Government ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
Securities held in
CLGS account 3,099.8 3,199.8

*Insignificant amount.

1. Staff home loan given at staff rate.
2. Represents provision made.
3. The receivables/payables above are expected to be realised/settled in cash/cash equivalents during the regular course of

business.

4. No impairment losses or allowances have been recorded during the period against balance outstanding with related party.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of transactions with related parties.

X in million
At At
Particulars Name of the related Nat_u re of March 31, | March 31,
party relationship 2024 2023

Income
Rent Received ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 12.2 11.7
Expense Recovery |ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 8.0 6.2
Servicing fees ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 32.8 24.4
Interest on Fixed ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
Deposit 0.2 0.2
Interest income on | Anirudh Kamani, Key Managerial
loans Managing Director and | Personnel

CEO 1.4 1.9
Referral fee ICICI Lombard General | Fellow subsidiary

Insurance Company

Limited 89.7 43.0

ICICI Prudential Life Fellow subsidiary

Insurance Company

Limited 81.6 79.4
Insurance claim ICICI Lombard General |Fellow subsidiary
received Insurance Company

Limited 2.7 -
Expense
Servicing Fees ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 0.8 1.1
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At At
Particulars Name Of::'e related r;:::;l:sz: March 31, | March 31,
party P 2024 2023
Collection Cost ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
(shared expenses) 0.1 1.9
IT infrastructure ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
cost (shared
expenses) 61.9 1.9
Interest & other ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
finance expenses
(including hedging
cost) 168.4 417.7
Interest expenses |ICICI Lombard General |Fellow subsidiary
on bonds Insurance Company
Limited 127.1 140.3
ICICI Securities Limited | Fellow subsidiary 0.2 0.3
ICICI Bank Limited Holding company - 5.5
Royalty fees ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 329 17.9
Share based ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
payment to
employees 43.6 38.1
Sourcing cost ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 217.1 101.5
(Loans & FDs) ICICI Securities Limited | Fellow subsidiary 7.3 10.9
ICICI Investment Fellow subsidiary
Management Company
Limited 3.5 3.4
Fee expenses - ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
property service - 53
Arranger fee ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 1.9 1.6
ICICI Securities Limited | Fellow subsidiary - 0.1
ICICI Securities Primary | Fellow subsidiary
Dealership Limited 1.1 1.5
Insurance premium | ICICI Lombard General |Fellow subsidiary
Insurance Company
Limited 115.0 81.3
ICICI Prudential Life Fellow subsidiary
Insurance Company
Limited 16.8 13.6
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At At
Particulars Name Of::'e related r;:::;:)l:sﬁ: March 31, | March 31,
party P 2024 2023
Remuneration Anirudh Kamani, Key Managerial
Managing Director and | Personnel
CEO 38.4% 40.4
Vineeta Rajadhyaksha, [ Key Managerial
Managing Director and | Personnel
CEO
1.8 -
Interest expenses | Anirudh Kamani, Key Managerial
on deposits Managing Director and | Personnel
CEO 0.3 0.4
Nilima Goel Relative of Key
Managerial 0.1 0.1
Shivam Bakhshi Relative of Key 0.2 0.3
Esha Bakhshi Managerial 0.2 0.2
Minal Bakhshi 0.2 0.2
Sitting fees/ Sankaran Key Managerial
Commission Santhanakrishnan Personnel 2.2 2.0
G. Gopalakrishna Key Managerial
Personnel 2.1 2.0
Vinod Kumar Dhall Key Managerial
Personnel 1.6 2.0
Sandhya Gadkari Key Managerial
Sharma Personnel 0.4 -
Employer’s ICICI HFC Employees Post-Employment
contribution to Provident Fund benefit plan
provident fund - 9.7
Contribution to ICICI HFC Employees Post-Employment
Gratuity Fund Group Gratuity Scheme | benefit plan 2.1 3.4
Contribution to ICICI HFC Employees Post-Employment
Superannuation Group Superannuation |benefit plan
Fund Schemes 2.7 1.5
Miscellaneous (IPA |[ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 69.9 28.7

charges, call centre
cost, operation
cost, common
corporate expenses
and manpower
services)

ICICI Lombard General
Insurance Company
Limited

Fellow subsidiary

I-Process Services
(India) Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary

*)
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At At
Particulars Name of the related Nat_u re of March 31, | March 31,
party relationship 2024 2023
Unwinding cost for | ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
derivatives - 95.2
Contribution for ICICI Foundation for Other related entity of
CSR activities Inclusive Growth Holding Company 385 10.1
Others
Recovery of Anirudh Kamani, Key Managerial
principal amounts | Managing Director and | Personnel
of loans from KMP | CEO 63.4 5.6
Investment in ICICI Lombard General | Fellow subsidiary
bonds of the Insurance Company
Company by Limited - 1,000.0
Related Parties ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 2,200.0 -
Redemption/ ICICI Lombard General | Fellow subsidiary
Maturity of bonds |Insurance Company
Limited = 1,615.5
Fixed deposits Anirudh Kamani, Key Managerial
matured Managing Director and | Personnel
CEO 3.5 -
Shivam Bakhshi Relative of Key 15 -
Esha Bakhshi quoggrial Personnel 1.0 _
of Holding Company
Minal Bakhshi 0.7 -
Staff home loan Anirudh Kamani, Key Managerial
given Managing Director and | Personnel
CEO 10.9 -
Sale of retail ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
mortgage
loans (Direct
assignment) 39,196.7| 19,290.7
Bank loan repaid/ |ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
OD repaid during
the period 556.5 4,541.7
Bank loan/OD ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
taken during the
period 2,423.2 1,250.0
Employees’ ICICI HFC Employees Post-Employment
contribution to Provident Fund benefit plan
Provident fund - 19.2
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At At

Particulars Name of the related Nat_u re of March 31, | March 31,

party relationship 2024 2023
Sale of fixed ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
assets - 14
Equity Dividend ICICI Bank Limited Holding company 300.9 164.7
Infusion of Equity [ ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
Share Capital - 1,047.8
Premium on equity | ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
share capital
infusion - 1,452.2
Receipt of excess | ICICI Bank Limited Holding company
interest spread
(EIS) on loans
assigned on direct
assignment basis 1,258.0 607.8

*Insignificant amount.

# Excludes X 13.7 million paid post-retirement towards benefits on early retirement.

Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of compensation paid by the Company to
the Key Managerial Personnel.

X in million
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Short-term employee benefits (including salaries) 38.0 38.1
Post-employment benefits 2.2 2.3
Other long-term benefits - -
Total? 40.2 40.4

1. Excludes X 30.9 million payable to the Parent Bank for the cost of options granted for purchase of the Parent

Bank’s equity shares (March 31, 2023: X 27.5million)

2. Includes perquisite value of ESOP issued by the Parent Bank

Expenses towards gratuity and leave encashment provisions are determined actuarially on an overall
basis at the Company level at the end of each year and accordingly, have not been considered in the

above information.
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Notes Forming Part Of The Accounts

49. Principal Business Criteria

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, fulfiiment of the principal business
criteria as applicable for housing finance companies (HFCs).

Percentage of total assets?
Percentage of total assets? ds housina fi f
» ds housing finance towards housing finance for
Position as at towards 9 Individuals
Required Actual Required Actual
At March 31, 2024 >=60% 65.13% >=50% 61.53%
At March 31, 2023 >=55% 66.10% >=45% 64.50%

1. Total Assets netted off by Intangible Assets
50. Securitisation of financial assets

The Company has not sponsored any SPVs during the current year, and there is no outstanding
amount of securitised assets as a result of any such sponsorships (March 31, 2023: Nil).

51. Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation/ Reconstruction Company for
Asset Reconstruction

The Company has not sold any financial asset to securitisation/reconstruction company during
the current financial year (March 31, 2023: Nil).

52. Off balance sheet SPVs sponsored

The Company has not sponsored any SPVs — Domestic or Overseas as at the end of current
financial year (March 31, 2023: Nil).

53. Details of assignment transactions undertaken

d. During the year, the Company has not purchased performing mortgage loans from other
housing finance company(ies) (March 31, 2023: Nil).

b. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of loans transferred
through Direct Assignment.
X in million, except number of accounts and months

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of loans 29,735 16,757
Aggregate amount 42,884.7 24,029.4
Sale consideration 42,884.7 24,029.4
Number of transactions 9 10

Annual Report 2023-24 ﬁ
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Weighted average maturity (remaining) 193 187

Weighted average holding period (after

origination) 15 22

Retention of beneficial economic interest

(average) 10% 10%

Coverage of tangible security coverage 100% 100%

Rating wise distribution of rated loans NA NA

Number of instances (transactions) where

transferor has agreed to replace the

transferred loans Nil Nil

Number of transferred loans replaced Nil Nil

Notes:

1. The Company recognised gain of X 2,594.8 million on derecognition of financial assets (March 31, 2023: X1,214.3 million).
2. Includes loans assigned to Parent Bank amounting to X 39,196.7 million (March 31, 2023: X 19,290.7 million for 27,663 accounts (March 31,

2023: 13,229), where the Company recognised gain of X 2,338.1 million on derecognition (March 31, 2023: X 1,038.3 million).

c. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of stressed loans transferred to ARCs.

X in million, except number of accounts and months

Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars To | Topermitted | To other To To permitted To other
ARCs transferees | transferees| ARCs transferees transferees
No. of accounts - - - 196 - -
Aggregate principal
outstanding of loans
transferred - - -| 351.0 - -
Weighted average
residual tenor of the
loans transferred - - - 142 - -
Net book value of loans
transferred (at the time
of transfer) - - -| 162.5 - -
Aggregate Consideration - - -| 1334 - -
Additional consideration
realized in respect of
accounts transferred in
earlier years - - - - - -
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Notes Forming Part Of The Accounts

54. Details of Non-performing financial assets purchased

The Company has not purchased non-performing financial assets from other Housing Finance

Companies during the year ended March 31, 2024(March 31, 2023: Nil).

55. Exposure to real estate sector

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the position of exposure to real estate

sector.

< in million

Particulars

At March 31, 2024

At March 31, 2023

(a)Direct exposure

(i) Residential mortgages

Lending fully secured by mortgages

on residential property that is or will

be occupied by the borrower or that

is rented. Exposure shall also include
non-fund based (NFB) limits. (Individual
Housing Loans up to X 1.5 million — March
2024 - X 41,809.7 million, March 2023 - X
40,859.1 million)

193,071.7

160,587.9

(b) Commercial real estate

Lending secured by mortgages on
commercial real estates (office buildings,
retail space multipurpose commercial
premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space,
hotels, land acquisition, development and
construction etc). Exposure shall also
include non-fund based (NFB) limits.

34,924.0

17,963.8

(c) Investments in mortgage backed
securities (MBS) and other securitised
exposures

(i)Residential

(i) Commercial real estate

(d) Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures
on National Housing Bank (NHB) and
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

227,995.7

178,551.7
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56. Exposure to Capital Market

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the position of exposure to capital
market.

< in million

Particulars At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023

(i) Direct investment in equity shares,
convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity oriented
mutual funds the corpus of which is not
exclusively invested in corporate debt?; 15.1 15.1

(ii) Advances against shares/bonds/
debentures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in
shares (including IPOs/ESOPs),
Convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds; - -

(iii) Advances for any other purposes
where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of eq-
uity-oriented mutual funds are taken
as primary security; - -

(iv) Advances for any other purposes to
the extent secured by the collateral
security of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity-oriented mutual funds
i.e. where the primary security other
than shares/convertible bonds/
convertible debentures/units of
equity-oriented mutual funds’ does not
fully cover the advances; - -

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to
stockbrokers and guarantees issued
on behalf of stockbrokers and market
makers; - -

(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates - -
against the security of shares/bonds/
debentures or other securities or on
clean basis for meeting promoter’s
contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising
resources;
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Notes Forming Part Of The Accounts

Particulars

At March 31, 2024

At March 31, 2023

(vii) Bridge loans to companies against
expected equity flows/issues;

(viii) Underwriting commitments taken
up by the Company in respect of
primary issue of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds;

(ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin

trading

(x) All exposures to Alternate Investment 15.3 15.6
Funds (both registered and
unregistered)

(i) Category |

(i) Category Il

(iii) Category 11123

Total Exposure to Capital Market 30.4 30.7

1. As per RBI master directions, direct investment of a housing finance company in shares shall be calculated

at their cost price
2. Represents investments in venture capital fund

3. Provision held as per the RBI notification RBI/2023-24/90 DOR.STR. REC.58/21.04.048/2023-24 dated
December 19, 2023, on Investments in Alternative Investment Funds (AlFs).

57. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

The Company does not have any group company engaged in real estate business at the end of
the current financial year and at the end of the preceding financial year and hence no exposure.

Following are intra group exposures,

(i) Total intra-group exposures: Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil)
(ii) Total of top 20 intra-group exposures: Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil)
(iii)  Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure on borrowers/customers: Nil

(March 31, 2023: Nil).
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58. Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
(a) Concentration of loans and advances

X in million
Particulars At March 31, | At March 31,
2024 2023
Total loans and advances to twenty largest borrowers 5,920.1 5,215.9
Percentage of loans and advances to twenty largest
borrowers to total advances of the HFC 2.6% 2.9%
(b) Concentration of all exposure (including Off-Balance Sheet exposure)
X in million
Particulars At March 31, | At March 31,
2024 2023
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 9,641.3 7,914.2
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/
customers to total exposure of the HFC on borrowers/
customers 3.8% 4.2%
(c) Concentration of NPAs
X in million
Particulars At March 31, | At March 31,
2024 2023
Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts 383.2 1,203.1
(d) Concentration of deposits
i Public d it
(1) ublic deposits X in million
Particulars At March 31, | At March 31,
2024 2023
Total deposits of twenty largest depositors 6,592.6 6,105.2
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to to-
tal deposits of the deposit taking HFC 17.3% 16.7%
(ii) Total deposits
X in million
Particulars At March 31, | At March 31,
“ 2024 2023
Total Deposits of 20 largest depositors (X in million) 13,146.6 10,515.3
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to to-
tal deposits of deposit taking HFC 34.6% 28.8%
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(e) Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and

borrowings)

At March 31, 2024

X in million
. % of Total o
Sr. No. | Particulars No. of Slgmﬁczant Amount Deposits/ /': of_'l_'o_t al
Counterparties . Liabilities
Borrowings
1 Borrowings 18 99,510.5 52.9% 48.5%
2 Deposits 16 11,853.2 31.2% 5.8%
At March 31, 2023 % in million
. % of Total o
Sr. No. |Particulars No. of Slgmﬁcfant Amount Deposits/ /t: of_'l_'o_t al
Counterparties . Liabilities
Borrowings
1 Borrowings 18 80,821.8 54.4% 50.1%
2 Deposits 15 8,923.3 24.4% 5.5%
(f) Top 10 borrowings 2 in million
Particulars At March 31, | At March 31,
2024 2023
Total of Top 10 borrowings! 77,465.0 63,770.9
Percentage of Top 10 borrowings to total borrowings 41.1% 42.9%
1. Excluding borrowings in form of deposits
(g) Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product
X in million

At March 31, 2024

At March 31, 2023

Name of the Instrument/

S.No. Product Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Liabilities Liabilities

1 | Deposits 38,005.4 18.5% 36,500.4 22.6%
5 Secured Non-Convertible

Debentures 67,590.1 33.0% 47.677.0 29.5%
4 Refinance facility from

National Housing Bank 21,749.5 10.6% 11,514.8 7.1%
5 Term Loans from banks 47,086.6 23.0% 40,514.0 25.1%
6 |Commercial Papers 6,424.5 3.1% 6,886.6 4.3%
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At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
S.No Name of the Instrument/
e Product Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Liabilities Liabilities
7 | Sub-ordinate debt 4,318.8 2.1% 4,316.8 2.7%
Loans from Parent Bank (incl.
8 Term Loans and Demand
Loans) 3,076.4 1.5% 1,208.6 0.7%
Total Borrowings 188,251.3 91.8% 148,618.2 92.1%
Total Liabilities 205,004.5 100.0% 161,379.1 100.0%

(h) Stock Ratio

. At March 31, | At March 31,
S.No. | Particulars 2024 2023

1. | Commercial Papers as % of Total Public Funds 3.4% 4.6%
2. | Commercial Papers as % of Total Liabilities 3.1% 4.3%
3. |Commercial Papers as % of Total Assets 2.7% 3.6%
4 Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity < 1

" |year) as % of Total Public Funds Nil Nil
5 Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity < 1

" |year) as % of Total Liabilities Nil Nil
6 Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity < 1

" |year) as % of Total Assets Nil Nil
- Other Short Term Liabilities1 as % of Total Public

" | Funds 32.4% 29.2%
8 Other Short Term Liabilities1 as % of Total

" | Liabilities 29.8% 26.9%
9. |Other Short Term Liabilities1 as % of Total Assets 25.5% 22.9%

1. Short term liabilities represent the amount payable within 12 months from the reporting date excluding for
commercial papers.

B59. Sector-wise NPAs

Percentage of NPAs to total Advances in that
Sector sector
At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
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Percentage of NPAs to total Advances in that
Sector sector
At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
1. Individuals 1.5% 2.1%
2. Builders/Project Loans 0.0% 21.1%
3. Corporates - -
4. Others (specify) - -
B. Non-Housing Loans
1. Individuals 2.5% 4.2%
2. Builders/Project Loans - -
3. Corporates 3.1% 8.3%
4. Others (specify) - -
The following table sets forth for the period indicated sectoral exposure,
X in million
Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Total Total
Exposure Percentage Exposure Percentage
(includes OL?:AO:S (includes of Gross
Sector on Balance Gross to total on Balance Gross NPAs
sheet and NPAs exposure Sheet and NPAs to total
Off-Balance inthat | Off-Balance exposure in
Sheet sector Sheet that sector
exposure) exposure)
1. Agriculture and - - - - -
Allied Activities
2. Industry
i. Real Estate 22,684.7 - 9,194.9 815.5 8.9%
ii. Others - - - - -
Total of Industry
(i+ii) 22,684.7 - 9,194.9 815.5 8.9%
3. Services
i. - - - - -
ii. - - - - -
Others - - - - -
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Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Total Total
Exposure Percentage | Exposure Percentage
S (includes of Gross (includes of Gross
ectors on Balance Gross NPAs on Balance Gross NPAs
sheet and NPAs to total Sheet and NPAs to total
Off-Balance exposure in | Off-Balance exposure in
Sheet that sector Sheet that sector
exposure) exposure)
Total of Services - - - - - -
(i+ii+Others)
4. Personal Loans
i. Housing 160,372.7 | 2,282.0 1.4%| 132,679.2| 2,616.1 2.0%
ii. Non Housing 67,635.1| 1,633.8 2.4% 47,280.6| 2,179.9 4.6%
Others 3525 0.2 0.1% 349.3 0.1 -
Total of Personal Loans
(i+ii+Others) 228,360.3| 3,916.0 1.7% | 180,309.1| 4,796.1 2.7%
5. Others - - - - - -
Total 251,045.0| 3,916.0 189,504.0| 5,611.6

60. Overseas Assets

The Company does not hold any overseas assets at the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31,
2023: Nil).

61. There is no financing of the parent bank’s products during the year ended March 31, 2024
(March 31, 2023: Nil).

62. The Company had not exceeded the prudential exposure limits (Single Borrower Limit and/or
Group Borrower Limit) as defined in the RBI Master Direcions during the year ended March
31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil).

63. During the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil), there was no breach in cove-
nants of term loans availed and debt securities issued and outstanding at March 31, 2024
(March 31, 2023: Nil).

64. There was no income and expenditure of exceptional nature during the year ended March
31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil).
65. Frauds reporting

As required by RBI Master Directions — Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Di-
rections, 2016, the Company had reported frauds amounting to X 137.1 million during year

ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: X 149.5 million).
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66. The Company is registered with the following other financial sector
regulators:

(a) Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India

67. Details of Gold Loan Auctions

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of auctions conducted during
the year.
X in million, except number of accounts

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of loan accounts 53 67
Outstanding amount 5.7 5.4
Value fetched on loan accounts 7.2 6.1

1. No sister concerns have participated in the Gold loan auctions.
68. Customer Complaints

The Company has Customer Grievance Redressal Mechanism (CGRM) for convenience of customers
to register their complaints and for it to monitor and redress them.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, details of customer complaints

. At March 31, | At March 31,
Particulars

2024 2023
Complaints received by the Company from its customers
1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year - -
2. Number of complaints received during the year 1,182 1,022
3. Number of complaints disposed during the year 1,182 1,022

a) Of which, number of complaints rejected by the
Company - -

4. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year - -

Maintainable complaints received by the Company from Office of Ombudsman

5. Number of maintainable complaints received by the
Company from Office of Ombudsman - -

a) Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the
Company by Office of Ombudsman - -
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Particulars

At March 31,
2024

At March 31,
2023

b) Of 5, number of complaints resolved through
conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of
Ombudsman

c) Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of
Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the Company

6. Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated
time (other than those appealed)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of top five grounds of
complaints received by the Company.

Grounds of
complaints,
(i.e.
complaints
relating to)

(1)

Number of
complaints
pending
at the
beginning of
the year

(2)

Number of
complaints
received
during the
year

(3)

% increase/
decrease in
the number
of complaints
received over
the previous
year

(4)

Number of
complaints
pending at
the end of
the year

(5

Of 5, number
of complaints
pending
beyond 30
days

(6)

Year ended M

arch 31, 2024

Deliverable /

Documents
related - 358 47 -
Refund/
charges
related

- 263 25 -
Sanction/
disbursement/
loan related

- 130 (34) -
EMI/
rescheulement
related - 111 63 -
Collection
related - 88 42 -
Others - 232 12 -
Total - 1,182 -
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Grounds of Number of Number of % increase/ Number of | Of 5, number
complaints, | complaints complaints decrease in complaints |of complaints
(i.e. pending received the number | pending at pending
complaints at the during the |of complaints| the end of beyond 30
relating to) | beginning of year received over the year days
the year the previous
year
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
Year ended March 31, 2023

Deliverable/
documents
related - 244 116 -
Refund/
Charges
related - 210 239 -
Sanction/
disbursement/
loan related - 196 65 -
ROl related - 86 34 -
EMI/
rescheulement
related B 68 277 B
Others - 218 91 -
Total - 1,022 -

69. Penalties

No penalties were levied by RBI, NHB or any other regulator during the year ended March 31,
2024. (March 31, 2023: Nil).

70. Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)

The Company does not have any subsidiary - domestic as well as overseas, and accordingly,
is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements as per Ind AS 110- “Consolidated
Financial Statements”.

71. Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in
accounting policies

There were no prior period items or there were no changes in material accounting policies except
disclosed otherwise in the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and

March 31, 2023.
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72. Asset Liability Management

The following table sets forth, maturity pattern of certain types of items of Assets and
Liabilities at March 31, 2024.

X in million
Maturity Liabilities Assets
Bucket

Borrowings Market Fixed Foreign Foreign
. . currency | Advances [Investments!| currency
from banks | borrowing | deposits liabiliti
iabilities assets

1 Dayto7
Days - - 275.5 - 2,039.5 202.0 -
8 Days to 14
Days 34.1 - 54.9 - 272.6 11.6 -
15 Days upto
30/31 days 297.8 275.3 170.3 - 96.5 22.0 -
Over 1
month upto 2
months 915.0 6,351.3 616.5 - 596.6 134 -
Over 2
months upto
3 months 788.5 1,240.5 542.5 - 628.5 7.0 -
Over 3
months upto
6 months 3,688.2 8,402.0| 12,8425 - 2,030.7 8.8 -
Over 6
months upto
1 Year 8,069.7 13,568.2( 4,557.5 - 4,312.4 - -
Over 1 year
upto 3 years 31,335.2 26,817.5| 17,681.2 - 23,968.0 549.2 -
Over 3 years
upto 5 years 13,920.3 149579 9,061.1 - 22,577.2 830.0 -
Over 5 years 12,863.7 6,720.7| 2,203.4 -1 168,695.9 1,654.4 -
Total 71,912.5| 78,333.4( 38,005.4 -| 225,217.9 3,298.4 -

1. Includes government securities amounting to X 202.0 million, which forms part of excess statutory liquidity

securities.

2. Refer note no. 44 for para on liquidity risk management.
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The following table sets forth, maturity pattern of certain types of items of Assets and
liabilities at March 31, 2023.

X in million
Liabilities Assets
Maturity
Bucket Borrowings Market Fixed de- cI:::'::ir?:y Advances Investments? cI::;:il?:y
from banks | borrowing posits liabilities assets
1 Day to 7
Days 26.5 - 63.9 - 1,774.4 1,868.1
8 Days to 14
Days - - 642.3 - 146.0 11.6
15 Days upto
30/31 days 68.0 1,152.3 447.3 - 23.5 22.0
Over 1 month
upto 2 months 3729 3.3| 1,850.4 - 437.5 13.4
Over 2 months
upto 3 months 469.6| 6,948.0| 1,718.3 - 445.8 7.0
Over 3 months
upto 6 months 1,929.9| 2,935.0| 1,946.0 - 1,545.8 109.2
Over 6 months
upto 1 Year 4843.2( 7,562.0| 6,238.7 - 3,266.7 -
Over 1 year
upto 3 years 22,769.0| 25,012.5| 12,857.0 -| 15,050.8 15.6
Over 3 years
upto 5 years 14,273.4 8,549.2| 7,944.3 -1 17,939.8 651.2
Over 5 years 8,4849( 6,718.1| 2,792.2 -| 134,805.9 2,293.5
Total 53,237.4| 58,880.4 | 36,500.4 -| 175,436.2 4,991.6 -

1. Includes government securities amounting to X 252.7 million, which forms part of excess statutory liquidity

securities.

2. Refer note no. 44 for para on liquidity risk management.
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73.

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, computation of liquidity coverage ratio.

X in million
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Total Total Total
Particulars unweighted weighted To_tc;llt d weighted
value value t;nwelg € value
(average) (average) value (average) (average)
High quality liquid assets
Total high quality liquid
1 assets 12,218.9 11,598.5 9,839.7 9,203.2
Cash Outflows
Deposits (for deposit taking
2 companies) 656.6 755.1 1,435.9 1,651.3
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 4,154.0 4,777.1 3,531.7 4,061.4
4 Secured wholesale funding 3,405.5 3,916.3 711.4 818.1
Additional requirements, of
5 which 1,874.6 2,155.8 876.8 1,008.3
Outflows related to derivative
exposures and other
(i) collateral requirements - - - -
Outflows related to loss of
(i) funding on debt products - - - -
(iii) | Credit and liquidity facilities 1,874.6 2,155.8 876.8 1,008.3
Other contractual funding
6 obligations 9,852.0 11,329.8 7,883.8 9,066.4
Other contingent funding
7 obligations - - - -
8 Total Cash Outflows 19,942.7 22,934.1 14,439.6 16,605.5
Cash Inflows
9 Secured lending - - - -
Inflows from fully performing
10 exposures 627.1 470.3 458.3 343.7
11 Other cash inflows 39,690.5 29,767.9 44,335.9 33,251.9
12 Total Cash Inflows 40,317.6 30,238.2 44,794.2 33,695.6
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March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

. Total Total Total
Particulars unweighted weighted To.tal:t d weighted
value value l.lmwelg € value
(average) (average) value (average) (average)
Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value
13 Total High Quality Liquid
Assets (HQLA) 11,598.5 9,203.2
14 Total Net Cash Outflows 5,733.5 4,151.4
15 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 202.29% 221.69%
X in million
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
. Total Total Total Total
Particulars unweighted weighted unweighted weighted
value value value value
(average) (average) (average) (average)
High quality liquid assets
1 Total high quality liquid
assets 9,807.8 9,191.7 8,042.0 7,398.6
Cash Outflows
2 Deposits (for deposit taking
companies) 1,652.2 1,900.1 922.9 1,061.4
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 3,158.2 3,631.9 3,511.9 4,038.7
4 Secured wholesale funding 903.0 1,038.5 2,310.8 2,657.4
Additional requirements, of
which 1,530.8 1,760.5 871.3 1,002.0
(i) Outflows related to derivative
exposures and other
collateral requirements - - - -
(i) Outflows related to loss of
funding on debt products - - - -
(iii) Credit and liquidity facilities 1,530.8 1,760.5 871.3 1,002.0
6 Other contractual funding
obligations 8,605.6 9,896.4 6,449.5 7,416.9
7 Other contingent funding
obligations - - - -
8 Total Cash Outflows 15,849.8 18,227.3 14,066.4 16,176.4
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December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

. Total Total Total Total
Particulars unweighted | weighted unweighted weighted
value value value value
(average) (average) (average) (average)
Cash Inflows
9 Secured lending - - - -
10 Inflows from fully performing
exposures 599.9 450.0 545.8 409.3
11 Other cash inflows 45,913.0 34,434.7 32,894.0 24,670.5
12 Total Cash Inflows 46,512.9 34,884.7 33,439.8 25,079.8

Total Adjusted Value

Total Adjusted Value

13 Total High Quality Liquid

Assets (HQLA) 9,191.7 7,398.6

14 Total Net Cash Outflows 4,556.8 4,044.1
15 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 201.70% 182.95%
X in million

September 30, 2023

September 30, 2022

. Total Total Total Total
Particulars unweighted | weighted unweighted weighted
value value value value
(average) (average) (average) (average)
High quality liquid assets
1 Total high quality liquid
assets 9,154.6 8,514.6 7,126.9 6,480.7
Cash Outflows
2 Deposits (for deposit taking
companies) 1,139.1 1,309.9 1,213.2 1,395.2
Unsecured wholesale funding 2,903.1 3,338.5 1,668.3 1,9185
4 Secured wholesale funding 1,881.7 2,164.0 2,039.0 2,344.9
Additional requirements, of
which 1,239.9 1,425.9 779.2 896.1
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September 30, 2023 September 30, 2022
. Total Total Total Total
Particulars unweighted | weighted unweighted weighted
value value value value
(average) (average) (average) (average)
(i) Outflows related to derivative
exposures and other
collateral requirements - - - -
(i) Outflows related to loss of
funding on debt products - - - -
(iii) Credit and liquidity facilities 1,239.9 1,425.9 779.2 896.1
6 Other contractual funding
obligations 7,958.9 9,152.7 6,100.2 7,015.2
7 Other contingent funding
obligations - - - -
8 Total Cash Outflows 15,122.7 17,391.1 11,799.9 13,569.9
Cash Inflows
9 Secured lending - - - -
10 Inflows from fully performing
exposures 549.7 412.3 475.5 356.6
11 Other cash inflows 54,660.7 40,995.6 29,704.0 22,278.0
12 Total Cash Inflows 55,210.4 41,407.8 30,179.5 22,634.6
Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value
13 Total High Quality Liquid
Assets (HQLA) 8,514.6 6,480.7
14 Total Net Cash Outflows 4,347.8 3,392.5
15 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 195.84% 191.03%
X in million
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
. Total Total Total Total
Particulars unweighted | weighted unweighted weighted
value value value value
(average) (average) (average) (average)
High quality liquid assets
1 Total high quality liquid
assets 8,795.4 8,152.1 7,580.7 6,942.6
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June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
. Total Total Total Total
Particulars unweighted | weighted unweighted weighted
value value value value
(average) (average) (average) (average)
Cash Outflows
2 Deposits (for deposit taking
companies) 1,432.4 1,647.2 1,023.5 1,177.1
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 2,777.5 3,194.1 1,012.9 1,164.9
4 Secured wholesale funding 1,027.0 1,181.0 4,642.8 5,339.2
5 Additional requirements, of
which 966.8 1,111.8 612.7 704.6
(i) Outflows related to derivative
exposures and other
collateral requirements - - - -
(i) Outflows related to loss of
funding on debt products - - - -
(iii) Credit and liquidity facilities 966.8 1,111.8 612.7 704.6
6 Other contractual funding
obligations 7,814.8 8,987.0 9,947.5 11,439.7
7 Other contingent funding
obligations - - - -
8 Total Cash Outflows 14,0184 16,121.2 17,2394 19,825.5
Cash Inflows
9 Secured lending - - - -
10 Inflows from fully performing
exposures 526.4 394.8 494.8 371.1
11 Other cash inflows 41,687.9 31,266.0 38,153.2 28,614.9
12 Total Cash Inflows 42,214.3 31,660.7 38,648.0 28,986.0
Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value
13 Total High Quality Liquid
Assets (HQLA) 8,152.1 6,942.6
14 Total Net Cash Outflows 4,030.3 4,956.4
15 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 202.27% 140.07%

RBI issued Master direction for HFCs on February 17, 2021, in which the regulator has
prescribed LCR guidelines. The minimum regulatory prescribed LCR requirement (phase wise)
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will be applicable as per the following timeline, which shall be maintained on an ongoing basis
to monitor and control liquidity risk. The LCR requirement was applicable from December 1,
2021 with the minimum HQLAs to be held being 50% of the LCR, progressively reaching a level
upto 60%, 70%, 85% and 100% by December 1, 2022, December 1, 2023, December 1, 2024,
December 1, 2025 respectively.

LCR aims to maintain adequate liquidity for upcoming 30 days under severe stress scenario in
which 30 days’ cash flows are stressed by assigning a predefined stress percentage. LCR is to
be maintained by holding investments in HQLA. HQLA primarily includes cash on hand, bank
balances in current account, Triparty Repo Dealing and Settlement (TREPs) and Government
securities (such unencumbered approved securities held as per the provisions of section 29B of
NHB Act, 1987 is reckoned as HQLA only to the extent of 80% of the required holding). LCR is
represented as (Stock of HQLA/Total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days).

The average LCR is computed at as simple averages of daily observations component wise
over the previous quarter (e.g. for March 2024, average of daily observations component wise
for January 2024, February 2024 and March 2024). The Company has implemented the LCR
framework and has maintained LCR well above the regulatory threshold. The average LCR for
the quarter ended March 31, 2024 was 202.29% which is above the regulatory requirement of
70%.

74. Details of Crypto currency or Virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year
ended March 31, 2024. (March 31, 2023: Nil)

75. Undisclosed Income

For the year ended March 31, 2024, there are no instances of transactions not recorded in the
books of account, which have been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (section 43 of 1961) (March 31, 2023: Nil).

76. Willful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender during the year or in the preceding financial year.

77. Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company has not undertaken any transactions with companies struck off under section 248
of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the year or in the
preceding financial year.

78. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

There is no charge form filed beyond the statutory period during the year or in the preceding

financial year.
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79. Compliance with number of layers of companies

Not applicable, since the Company does not have any subsidiary.
80. Details of CSR Expenditure

The Company was required to contribute X 42.0 million towards CSR expenditure in the year
ended March 31, 2024, of which company was eligible to avail credit of X 0.1 million, being
excess expenditure incurred in the year ended March 31, 2023. Accordingly, the Company was
required to spend X 41.9 million in the year ended March 31, 2024 against which the Company
spent X 42.0 million in the year ended March 31, 2024. (March 31, 2023: X 15.6 million). The
excess contribution amounting to X 0.1 million will be carried forward and utilised as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules thereunder.

The following table sets forth, the details of amount spent on CSR by the Company for the Year
ended March 31, 2024.

X in million
Amount Amount of | Shortfall | Total of | Reason Nature of CSR Details of Where a provision
required expenditure | at the previous | for activities related is made with
to be incurred end of years shortfall party respect to a liability
spent the year | shortfall transactions | incurred by entering
by the into a contractual
company obligation, the
during the movements in the
year provision during

the year should be
shown separately

41.9 42.0 Nil Nil NA [ 1.Rain Water ICICI -
Harvesting in the | Foundation
states of Gujarat, | for Inclusive
Madhya Pradesh, | Growth
Karnataka,
Rajasthan,
Madhya Pradesh,
Haryana through
ICICI Foundation
for inclusive
growth

2.Providing Medical
Equipments to
KEM Hospital
through IFIG

3.Providing funds
to Society for
Innovation &
Entrepreneurship
who acts as
Incubator for
Technology
Business

4.Providing funds
to IIT Madras who
acts as Incubator
for Technology

Business
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The Company has partnered with “ICICI Foundation for inclusive growth” for rain water harvesting
projects in certain states amounting to X 36.5 million and for providing medical equipments to
“KEM Hospital” amounting to X 2.0 million for the year ended March 31, 2024.

The Company contributed to “Society for Innovation and Entrepreneurship (SINE) — lIT Bombay” to
support startups in areas such as Automation of construction activities, waste water recycling and
Energy saving equipment amounting to X 1.0 million. The Company also contributed X 2.5 million
to “lIT Madras” to be utilised for 3D printing machine for construction projects. The Company has
partnered with ICICI Foundation for inclusive growth

The following table sets forth, the details of amount spent on CSR by the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2023.

2. Environmental /
Social project —
Rain water
harvesting in rural
government
schools in any
major states.

3. Contribution to
Incubators to
support startups,
Other areas -
Automation
of construction
activities, Waste
water recycling
and Energy saving
equipment.

4. Contribution to
Indian Institute of
Technology,
Madras

X in million
Amount Amount of | Shortfall | Total of | Reason for | Nature of CSR Detadils of Where a provision
required to | expediture | at the end | previous | shortfall activities related party | is made with
be spent by | incurred of the year | years transactions | respect to a
the shortfall liability incurred
company by entering into
during the a contractual
year obligation, the
movements in the
provision during
the year should be
shown separately
155 15.6 Nil Nil NA | 1. Healthcare ICICI -
Projects - Foundation
Ambulances/
healthcare
equipment.
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The Company has partnered with “ICICI Foundation for inclusive growth” for providing one
ambulance to “Be Well hospital, Chennai” and for rain water harvesting projects in certain states
amounting to X 3.0 million and X 7.1 million respectively for the year ended March 31, 2023. The
Company contributed to “Society for Innovation and Entrepreneurship (SINE) — IIT Bombay” to
support startups in areas such as Automation of construction activities, waste water recycling
and Energy saving equipment amounting to X 3.0 million. The Company also contributed X 2.5
million to “lIT Madras” to be utilised for 3D printing machine for construction projects.

81. Events after reporting date

There have been no significant events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these
financial statements.

82. NHB Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

In terms of the RBI circular no. DOR.ACC.REC. N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022,
NBFCs are required to disclose the divergencesin asset classification and provisioning consequent
to NHB'’s (in case of HFCs) annual supervisory process in their notes to accounts to the financial
statements, wherever either (a) the additional provisioning requirements assessed by NHB
exceed 5% of the reported net profits before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments or
(b) the additional gross NPAs identified by NHB exceed 5% of the published reported gross NPAs
for the reference period, or both. Based on the condition mentioned in RBI circular, no disclosure
on divergence in asset classification and provisioning for NPAs is required with respect to NHB’s
supervisory process for the year ended March 31, 2023.

83. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of the Housing Finance Company as required under
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

X in million
Particulars Amount Amount
. - outstanding overdue
Liabilities side
(1) |Loans and advances availed by the Company
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid: 188,427.7 3.9
(a) Debentures : Secured 67.625.8 -
: Unsecured 43355 _

(other than falling within the meaning of public
deposits*)

(b) Deferred credits

(c) Term loans 71.935.7
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Particulars Amount Amount
A - outstanding overdue
Liabilities side
(d) |Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 15.085.0 -
(e) Commercial paper 6.424.5 -
(f) Public deposits* 23.021.2 3.9
(9) Other loans (specify nature) . -
*Please see Note 1 below
(2) |Break-up of (1)(f) above (outstanding public
deposits* inclusive of interest accrued thereon but
not paid): 23,021.2 -
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures _ _
(b) |Inthe form of partly secured debentures i.e. de-
bentures where there is a shortfall in the value
of security - -
(c) Other public deposits 23.021.2 -
* Please see Note 1 below
X in million
Assets side Amount
outstanding
(3) [Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (4) below]: 225,217.9
(a) |Secured 225,217.9
(b) [Unsecured -
(4) |[Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets

counting towards asset financing activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors

(a) Financial lease

(b) | Operating lease

(ii) | Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

(a) [Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed assets

(iii) | Other loans counting towards asset financing activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed -

(b) Loans other than (a) above
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Assets side Amoun.t
outstanding

(5) |Break-up of investments -

Current investments

1. Quoted -
(i) Shares -
(a) Equity -

(b) Preference -

(i) Debentures and Bonds -

(iii) [ Units of mutual funds -

(iv) | Government Securities -

(v) Others (please specify) -

2. Unquoted -
(i) Shares

(a) Equity ]

(b) Preference -

(i) Debentures and bonds -

(iii) | Units of mutual funds -

(iv) |[Government securities -

(v) Others (please specify) -

Long Term investments 3,298.4
1. Quoted 3,196.5
(i) Shares -

(a) Equity _

(b) Preference -

(i) Debentures and bonds -

(iii) [ Units of mutual funds -

(iv) | Government securities 3,196.5

(v) Others (please specify) -

2. Unquoted 101.9
(i) Shares
(a) Equity 101.9

(b) Preference -

(i) Debentures and bonds -
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Amount

Assets side R
outstandmg

(iii) | Units of mutual funds -

(iv) | Government securities -

(V) Others (Units in venture capital fund) -

(6) | Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:
(Please see Note 2 below)

Category Amount net of provisions

Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties **

(a) |Subsidiaries - - -

(b) | Companies in the same - - _

group

(c) |Other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties 225,217.9 - 225,217.9
Total 225,217.9 - 225,217.9

(7) |Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in
shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
(Please see Note 3 below)

Category Market Value / Book Value (net of
Break up or fair Provisions)
value or NAV

1. Related Parties **

(a) | Subsidiaries - -

(b) | Companies in the same - -

group

(c) [Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parties 3,278.6 3,298.4
Total 3,278.6 3,298.4

** As per notified Accounting Standard (Please see Note 3)

(8) |Other information

Particulars Amount

(i) Gross non-performing assets

(a) |Related parties -
(b) | Other than related parties 3,916.0

(ii) | Net non-performing assets

(a) |Related parties -
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(b) | Other than related parties 2,386.5

(iii) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -
Notes :

1. As defined in Paragraph 4.1.30 of the RBI Master direction.
2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in the RBI Master direction.

3. All notified Accounting Standards are applicable including for valuation of investments
and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value
in respect of quoted investments and break up / fair value / NAV in respect of unquoted
investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term
or current in (5) above.
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84. Diagrammatic representation of group

ICICI Bank Limited
(Holding Company)

( Subsidiaries ) ( Associates )

v

Y

ICICI Prudential
ICICI Securities Life Insurance
Limited Company
Limited

}

ICICI Securities
Holdings Inc.

ICICI Prudential
Pension Funds
Management

Company Limited

ICICI Lombard

> General Insurance
Company

\ Limited?* ,

ICICI Securities

Inc.

1. Fellow Subsidiary effective February 29, 2024, earlier associate

ICICI Home
Finance Company
Limited

[ NIIT Institute of )

Finance Banking

and Insurance

\_ Training Limited )

ICICI Merchant

Services Private

Limited

—

Arteria

Technologies
Private limited

)

India Infradebt

Limited
__/
O )

India Advantage

Fund - Il

ICICI Bank ICICIsTrusteeship
> Canada ervices
Limited
ICICI Securities /ICICI Investment\
Primary Management B
Dealership Company <
Limited K Limited /
/ ICICI Vent \ / \
_ Funednsure ICICI International
- Macnagement Limited =
\ ompany / \ /
/ ICICI Prudential \ / \
>| Asset Management ICICI Prudential |
Company Limited Trust Limited
/ I-Process \ / ICICI Strategic \
> Services (India) Investments <
Private Limited? Fund

ICICI Bank
UK PLC

2. Fellow Subsidiary effective March 20, 2024, earlier associate
Note: The above group structure does not cover entities (including entities using common brand name) which

are not consolidated in the financial statements of the Holding Company as there is no control/significant

—

India Advantage

Fund - IV
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85. The previous year figures have been reclassified/regrouped/restated to conform to
current year’s classification.

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Singhi & Co. For Mukund M. Chitale For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants & Co. Directors
Firm’s Registration No: Chartered Accountants ICICI Home Finance Company Limited
302049E Firm’s Registration No:

106655W
Amit Hundia A. V. Kamat Rakesh Jha Vineeta
Partner Partner Chairman Rajadhyaksha
Membership No.: 120761 Membership No.: 039585 DIN-00042075 Managing

Place: Mumbai Director &

Dated: April 20, 2024 CEO
DIN-10483840

Shyamsunder Priyanka Shetty

Tailor Company
Chief Financial Secretary
Officer
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